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Company Information
NAIE R

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman
KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN SINGAPORE

571 Ubi Avenue 1
#02-17/18 Paya Ubi Industrial Park
Singapore 408933

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 912, 9/F

Two Harbourfront

22 Tak Fung Street, Hunghom
Kowloon, Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE
www.fuchangroup.com

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Man Yun Wah ACG, ACS
Unit 912, 9/F

Two Harbourfront

22 Tak Fung Street, Hunghom
Kowloon, Hong Kong
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COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigiang)
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COMPLIANCE ADVISER

HeungKong Capital Limited
Suite 622, Ocean Centre
Harbour City

Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon, Hong Kong

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigiang)
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Leow Poh Hoon (Liao Baoyun)

Ms. Chu Pek Si (Zhu Peishi)
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Mr. Wong Loke Tan
Mr. Loh Eu Tse Derek
Mr. Mah Seong Kung
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Mr. Wong Loke Tan

Mr. Mah Seong Kung
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Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigiang)
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
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HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
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Chairman’s Statement
TEREE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the "Directors”)
of K2 F&B Holdings Limited (the “Company”, and together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”), it is my pleasure to present to our
shareholders (the “Shareholders”) the annual report of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (“FY2020").

COVID-19

The onset of the coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19") at the
beginning of 2020 presented unprecedented challenges to the
economy of Singapore.

To recap, due to the pandemic, in April 2020 the Singapore
Government implemented an elevated set of containment
measures known as Circuit Breaker to pre-empt the trend of the
increasing local transmission of COVID-19. Under these measures,
all schools and most physical workplaces were closed from 7 April
2020 to 1 June 2020. In addition, all food establishments were
open only for takeaway or delivery.

The Singapore Government announced the progressive lifting of
the Circuit Breaker restrictions in three phases, with the first phase
on 2 June 2020, and the second phase on 19 June 2020. Under the
first phase, Singaporeans were allowed to return to work in
businesses with lower transmission risks, subject to safe
management measures at the workplace. Most retail outlets
remained closed and dine-in at food establishments were still not
permitted. Under the second phase, more activities were permitted
to resume, in particular the ability to dine-in at food establishments
with a maximum of 5 persons per group with safe distancing
restrictions.

Singapore entered the third phase of lifting of the Circuit Breaker
on 28 December 2020, with further relaxation of measures,
including increasing the group size for dine-in from 5 to 8 persons.

The pandemic has adversely affected the business of the Group, in
particular:

° No dine-in at food establishments during the Circuit Breaker

and Phase 1 of the lifting of restrictions, resulting in lower
footfall and hence lower revenue;
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

TRHEE(E)

° Reduced revenue from food establishments located in the
central business district, as a result of closure of physical
workspaces during the Circuit Breaker and ongoing work
from home policies; and

o Closure of the food street next to a hotel in the shopping
district arising from lack of patronage from tourists due to the
partial closure of Singapore’s borders.

The COVID-19 pandemic has undoubtedly changed the F&B
landscape. Going forward and in view of the challenges brought
about by the COVID-19 outbreak, the Group will re-evaluate its
businesses and will identify new opportunities and develop
business strategies to respond to the fast-evolving market and
trends. In particular, the Group will divest underperforming assets
or businesses, and utilise the resources to re-invest in the F&B
businesses and other synergetic growth opportunities areas for the
new normal and beyond.

Operational Review

During these uncertain times, the Group leveraged its competitive
advantages and experience of the Directors and management to
act quickly to the changing landscape.

In January 2020, the Group relocated to its present premises in
Paya Ubi Industrial Park to bring all operations of the Group under
one roof for greater efficiency and effectiveness.

In February 2020, the Group exercised the options to acquire nine
adjoining investment properties in a mixed-use commercial and
residential development in the heart of Chinatown district in
Singapore for a total consideration of S$22.2 million. Completion of
the acquisitions took place on 24 March 2020.

In September 2020, the Group exercised the option to acquire a
coffeeshop for a total consideration of S$5 million. The coffeeshop
is located within a mature public housing estate in Singapore
surrounded by schools, private apartments, industrial zones and a
neighbourhood park. Completion of this acquisition occurred on 10
March 2021.

These acquisitions would produce commercial benefits for the
Group, including a foreseeable increase in revenue, profit and
market share, and greater economies of scale and certainty in cost
control.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

TRHEE(E)

In October 2020, the Group welcomed Ms. Chu Pek Si (Zhu Peishi)
to be an executive Director, who is responsible in assisting
Management in overseeing its mergers & acquisitions and property
management initiatives.

Financial Review

For FY2020, the Group recorded a consolidated revenue of
approximately S$34.9 million, a decrease of approximately 16.9%
from S$42.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
("FY2019"). The decrease was mainly due to lower revenue from
sale of cooked food, beverages and tobacco products brought
about by COVID-19, and the termination of the food street in the
shopping district.

The Group recorded a consolidated net profit of approximately
S$2.2 million for FY2020, a decrease of approximately 57.5% from
S$5.2 million in FY2019. The decrease in the consolidated net profit
was mainly attributable to a decline in the Group’s consolidated
revenue, and fair value losses of approximately S$0.8 million from
investment properties in FY2020, compared to fair value gains of
approximately S$5.1 million in FY2019. The fall was partially offset
by a corresponding reduction in operating expenses as a result of
the decrease in the Group’s business, the receipt of grants from
the Singapore Government to mitigate the adverse economic
impact brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic, and no listing
expenses for FY2020.

The balance sheet of the Group remains healthy. The Group
generated an operating cash flow of approximately S$7.7 million
with cash and cash equivalents as of 31 December 2020 at
approximately S$10.2 million.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Besides fostering a corporate culture that encourages integrity,
accountability, communication, teamwork and innovation, the
Group strives to be a good corporate citizen and an engaged
neighbour in the communities that it operates in by giving back
through donations and volunteerism.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

FEHREE (B)

The Group participates in various community activities to help the
needy in the society. Amongst other activities, it has over the years
arranged monthly events to help elders in the Asian Women's
Welfare Association, although such events have been scaled down
significantly due to the COVID-19 outbreak.

Not forgetting the Group’s employees, a study fund for their
children was established to defray the cost of education. For
FY2020, 19 employees of the Group benefitted from this scheme.

In Appreciation

| would like to express my appreciation to the Singapore
Government for the financial support that has been provided to the
Group and the Singapore economy in general during these
challenging times. These grants had enabled the Group to weather
the economic impact of COVID-19, as well as preserving the
livelihood of the Group’s employees.

| also would like to take this opportunity to express my utmost
gratitude to my fellow Directors, management and staff for their
diligence, hard work, commitment, dedication and contributions.
Finally, | would like to thank our suppliers, clients, landlords,
tenants and other stakeholders for their ongoing trust and support.

| look forward to working with each and every one of you in
growing the businesses and bringing the Group to greater heights.

Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigiang)
Chairman

29 March 2021
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREIERE

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigiang) (%) (“Mr. Chu”), aged
49, has been with the Group since 2004. He is the chairman of the
Board, the chief executive officer of the Company, an executive
Director, and a controlling shareholder of the Company (the
“Controlling Shareholder”), as well as a member of the
remuneration committee of the Board (the “Remuneration
Committee"”) and a member of the internal control compliance
committee of the Board (the “Internal Control Compliance
Committee”). Mr. Chu was appointed as a Director on 13 March
2018 and redesignated as an executive Director, the chairman of
the Board and chief executive officer of the Company on 30 August
2018. He is primarily responsible for the overall strategic planning,
management and operation of the Group.

Mr. Chu is an entrepreneur and has over 18 years of experience in
the food and beverage industry. Since May 1993, Mr. Chu has
been the sole proprietor of E Teng What Fisheries, a business
principally engaged in wholesale import, export and retail of fishes,
and he was primarily responsible for the overall management of
the business. Since July 2002, Mr. Chu has been working in Fu
Chan Food Paradise, a sole-proprietor business that is principally
engaged in food and beverage industry.

Save for being the spouse of Ms. Leow Poh Hoon (Liao Baoyun)
and the father of Ms. Chu Pek Si (Zhu Peishi), both executive
Directors, Mr. Chu does not have any relationship with other
Directors and members of the senior management of the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

SEEZNEREERE(8)

Ms. Leow Poh Hoon (Liao Baoyun) (BZ=) (“Ms. Leow”), aged
50, has been with the Group since January 2004 as operations
manager of Fu Chan F&B Pte Ltd. She was appointed as a Director
on 13 March 2018 and re-designated as an executive Director on 30
August 2018. She is primarily responsible for the day-to-day
operation, budget and strategic planning and administration of the
Group.

Ms. Leow has over 18 years of experience in the food and
beverage industry. Prior to joining the Group, from October 1992 to
July 2000, Ms. Leow worked in E Teng What Fisheries as an
operation assistant, being primarily responsible for operation of
business. Since April 2003, Ms. Leow began working in Fu Chan
Food Paradise together with Mr. Chu, being primarily responsible
for operation of business.

Save for being the spouse of Mr. Chu and the mother of Ms. Chu
Pek Si (Zhu Peishi), both executive Directors, Ms. Leow does not
have any relationship with other Directors and members of the
senior management of the Group.

Ms. Chu Pek Si (Zhu Peishi) (4 1f1¥) (“Ms. Chu”), aged 24, was
appointed as a non-executive Director on 30 August 2018 and was
redesignated as an executive Director on 10 October 2020. Ms.
Chu is the daughter of Mr. Chu and Ms. Leow, both executive
Directors. She is responsible for mergers & acquisitions and
property management initiatives of the Group.

Ms. Chu joined the Group in December 2012 and worked as an
administrative assistant until June 2017 during which she was
responsible for providing administrative support to the business
operations and assisting daily operation and co-ordination of the
food centres and food street. Ms. Chu rejoined the Group in April
2018 and has been working as a part-time administrative assistant
of the Group where she is mainly responsible for payroll and
operations.

Ms. Chu obtained a certificate in supervise construction work for
workplace safety and health (formerly known as building
construction supervisors safety course) and a diploma in civil
engineering with business, in January 2015 and March 2016, both
from Singapore Polytechnic. She also obtained a Degree of
Bachelor of Engineering with Honours in Civil Engineering in
September 2020 from the Singapore Institute of Technology.

Save for being the daughter of Mr. Chu and Ms. Leow, Ms. Chu
does not have any relationship with other Directors and members
of the senior management of the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

SEENEREERE(8)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Loke Tan (“Mr. Wong”), aged 65, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 1 February 2019. He is the
chairman of the nomination committee of the Board (the
“Nomination Committee”), a member of the audit committee of
the Board (the “Audit Committee”) and a member of the
Remuneration Committee. He is responsible for providing
independent judgment on issues of policy, accountability, resources
and standard of conduct.

Mr. Wong has over 30 years of banking experience. His experience
and expertise span across syndicated loans, project financing,
structured trade financing and mergers and acquisitions. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Wong worked in various international banks
including OCBC Bank where he worked from 1989 to 2003 and
was responsible for handling various portfolios of corporate clients.
From July 2003 to his retirement in June 2016, he worked at
Maybank, with his last position as senior vice president and head
of Singapore main branch business centre in the bank’s commercial
banking unit, where he built a strong SME portfolio consisting of
many established players in their respective industries in
Singapore.

Mr. Wong is an independent director of the following listed
companies:

(@) Union Steel Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Mainboard of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
(the "SGX-ST") (stock code: BLA.SI);

(b)  Adventus Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Catalist
board of the SGX-ST (stock code: 5EF.SI); and

(c) International Cement Group Ltd, a company listed on the
Mainboard of the SGX-ST (stock code: KUQO.SI).

Mr. Wong is also the non-executive independent chairman of Koyo
International Limited, a company listed on the Catalist board of the
SGX-ST (stock code: KOYO.SI).

Mr. Wong is dedicated to contribute to civic organisations such as
the Saint Gabriel's School Management Committee in Singapore.
In 2018, he was awarded the silver medallion service award by the
Ministry of Education of Singapore in recognition of his
contributions and services.

Mr. Wong obtained his master of business administration degree
from Brunel University London in the United Kingdom in May 1996.
He later obtained an executive diploma in directorship from the
Singapore Management University and the Singapore Institute of
Directors in March 2013.

12 K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020

BAFHITES

Wong Loke Tanst4 ([ Wongst4 /) * 655%
R2019F2 R 1 REZERBYIFNTES -
BREFSREZZEG((REEEE®)DER -
EEeERZES ([ BREEY])KE LFH
ZEEKE - HABHBEK BEM - - BRK
TAIRAERRE FIRUEE T HIE -

Wong 5e A A BB 30 FR1TIE K5 - HEE
BLNEERERAER BERE £EMNLE
SMERAHBEWE - RMAKXEEH -
Wong e AN Z REIBERTT I - B HEE 1989
FE203FREFBRITIE BEEERT
EEMEEKREHEEG - B2003F 7 AE2016
FeARNK  HRBEREIRITIIE - Exkl
N ASRBBE R AERITHBI NP ED ZE
ERLMEE  BREESY T —ERENF )N
RINEEER BERTINESaTERRER
% o

Wong A TNBI T EARIRBLESE

(a) FIMFEFELFZIZAERAE ([HFHMER
% Fr 1) b 2 & Union Steel Holdings
Limited (A% 355 © BLA.SI) :

(b) NI A 5 AT el AR £ A 7] Adventus
Holdings Limited ( #% 13 X 9% : 5EF.SI) :
&

(c)  FTINIE A B FrER £ A A International
Cement Group Ltd ( & 5 £ 5% : KUO.
SI) »

Wong St TR B FT I 2 S ATel iR £ A A
Koyo International Limited (A% {71X5% : KOYO.
S BIFERITBILESE o

Wong 7t &£ Bt I = BN B AR &% - a0 N3
Saint Gabriel’s School Management
Committee ° 18 72 2018 & & 1 I 3% 2 B 26 4%
F silver medallion service award * LA 5 & H

Z=RR S AR 7

Wong LR 1996 F 5 AR E M A2
BIBEEBEITEMN  RER2013FE3AR
M EERER MY EEEeRBEET
BABE »



Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

SEEZNEREERE(8)

Mr. Loh Eu Tse Derek (EEZ) (“Mr. Loh”), aged 54, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 1 February
2019. He is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and the
Internal Control Compliance Committee, a member of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee. He is
responsible for providing independent judgment on issues of
policy, accountability, resources and standard of conduct.

Mr. Loh is a practising lawyer in Singapore. He graduated from the
University of Cambridge in the United Kingdom in June 1990. He
then obtained his postgraduate practical course in law certificate
from the Board of Legal Education in Singapore in December 1992.
Mr. Loh was admitted as a fellow of the Singapore Institute of
Arbitrators in August 2011 and was appointed as an adjudicator of
the Singapore Mediation Centre in April 2016. Mr. Loh joined his
current firm, TSMP Law Corporation in Singapore, in September
2001, where he is currently a partner. His practice is focused on
construction and engineering law.

Mr. Loh is also an independent director of the following listed
companies:

(@)  Vietnam Enterprise Investments Limited, a company listed on
the London Stock Exchange (stock code: VEIL);

(b)  Vibrant Group Limited, a company listed on the Mainboard of
the SGX-ST (stock code: BIP.SI);

(c)  Federal International (2000) Limited, a company listed on the
Mainboard of the SGX-ST (stock code: BDU.SI);

(d)  Adventus Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Catalist
board of the SGX-ST (stock code: 5EF.SI); and

(e) DISA Limited, a company listed on the Catalist board of the
SGX-ST (stock code: 532.SI).

BEEFELRLE(TELE]) 5457 1201952
A1AEZERBIUFFNTES - WAFME
BEMAMENEREEGTR BRZES
LRt ZEEKE - REBMBEK WEM -
BIR K17 SRR IR B H T -

B ERIMEHZERR - 199046 A
EENIEBIBARE - HER1992F12 AR
M EEYELZEEMBRREELZERR
BHEE-ELXAER201MFSAHERT A
Singapore Institute of Arbitrators & )&% & B I
R2016F4 AEZ XA INFEABZHRLHH
EA BERER2001FIRMAERERA
¥ AN 3% TSMP Law Corporation * B Bl A% A
AINEBA  BUEERTRE -

EXENBAT LW RARNBLES

(a) WX HFT LT AF] Vietnam Enterprise
Investments Limited (B&{D 5% : VEIL)

(b) ¥ N3 X 5 AT E IR £ T A A Vibrant
Group Limited (B2 5% : BIP.SI) :

() F ¥ XX 5P xR £ A & Federal
International (2000) Limited (A% {9 X85 :
BDU.SI) :

(d  FranE A 5 Frsl AR LT A 7 Adventus
Holdings Limited ( 3% 13 X 5% : BEF.SI) :
53

(e) FT AN X 5 Pl F 4R £ 2 A]DISA
Limited (& 5% : 532.SI) ©
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Mr. Loh was an independent director of Metech International
Limited, a company listed on the Catalist board of the SGX-ST
(stock code: V3M.S1), from February 2010 to November 2018. He
also sits on the Board of Governors of St Joseph's Institution
International School, a leading private international school in
Singapore, and is a trustee of the St Joseph's Institution
Foundation, a registered charity in Singapore that is an institution of
public character.

Mr. Mah Seong Kung (B %M/) (“Mr. Mah”), aged 53, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 1 February
2019. He is the chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee. He is responsible for providing independent judgment
on issues of policy, accountability, resources and standard of
conduct.

Mr. Mah obtained his bachelor's degree of accountancy from the
National University of Singapore in 1991. He is also a chartered
accountant of the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants.
Mr. Mah is currently the chief financial officer of Mercurius Capital
Investment Limited, a company listed on the Catalist of the SGX-ST
(stock code: MERC.SI), an associate partner of Biztrack Consultants
Private Limited, a nominated advisor with the National Stock
Exchange of Australia (“NSX") and a listing advisor with the Dutch
Caribbean Securities Exchange.

Mr. Mah is also an independent director of | M Quarries Limited, a
company listed on the NSX (stock code: NSX.IM1).

Mr. Mah has over 20 years of industry experience by having
worked in managerial positions of an entertainment content
production company, licensed capital market services advisory firm,
public listed education provider, and as an investment manager of
private equity fund management company.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EENERERE (B

COMPANY SECRETARY NEME

Mr. Man Yun Wah (X&) (“Mr. Man”), aged 38, was appointed X B s 4 ([ X E4£ ) 3855 - 202049
as the company secretary of the Company on 30 September 2020.  H30 AEZ T AR AR AT ME o

Mr. Man holds a bachelor's degree in business administration and XA FEIGITRAEEE L8 NPEE
management and a master’s degree in corporate governance. Heis  JARE+ 247 - HI AEHFATLAE A= (F1B
currently an associate member of both The Chartered Governance 4 ERITHRAEAS ) UL BB EHFMWE
Institute (formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries A& 8 o WASRAFIMEEEHEEEE T
and Administrators) and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered  {E&&

Secretaries. Mr. Man has extensive working experience in the

company secretarial profession.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cui Kewei Joshua (EE34) (“Mr. Cui”), aged 36, is the chief
financial officer of the Group and a member of the Internal Control
Compliance Committee. He joined the Group in May 2017 as
financial controller and was promoted to chief financial officer in
August 2018. Mr. Cui is primarily responsible for the overall
accounting and financial management, project management,
strategic planning and internal control of the Group.

Mr. Cui has over 13 years of work experience in accounting and
finance. From October 2007 to December 2009, Mr. Cui worked in
Foo Kon Tan GT in Singapore as an audit assistant where he was
primarily responsible for carrying out statutory audit work. From
December 2009 to November 2010, Mr. Cui worked in the
Singapore office of Ernst & Young LLP, with his last position as an
audit senior, where he worked as a team leader in various audit
assignments. From March 2011 to February 2012, Mr. Cui worked
in Mapletree Logistics Trust Management Ltd. in Singapore as an
accountant where he was primarily responsible for preparing
reports related to the compliance with reporting requirements
under the rules of the SGX-ST. From February 2012 to September
2015, Mr. Cui then worked at Cogent Holdings Limited in Singapore
with his last position as assistant finance manager where he was
primarily responsible for the group’s financial reporting, forecast
and budget, SGX-ST compliance and preparation of annual reports.
From September 2015 to April 2017, Mr. Cui worked as financial
controller in Conversant Solutions Pte. Ltd. in Singapore where he
was primarily responsible for managing the company’s accounts,
strategic planning and internal control.

Mr. Cui graduated from Oxford Brookes University in the United
Kingdom with a bachelor of science degree in applied accounting in
July 2007. Mr. Cui has been a member of the Institute of Singapore
Chartered Accountants (formerly known as the Institute of Certified
Public Accountants of Singapore) since December 2010.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
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Ms. Koh Poy Poy (£E %) (“Ms. Koh”), aged 42, is the head of
food centre operations of the Group. She joined the Group in
February 2008 as an accounts assistant where she was initially
responsible for accounts related work and assisting in day to day
business operations. Ms. Koh was promoted to the position of
operation assistant in May 2015 and began also to oversee human
resources and operation matters of the Group. In June 2018, she
was further promoted to current position as head of food centre
operations of the Group. Ms. Koh is responsible for the overall
management and oversight of all food establishments, including
but not limited to setting up of new food establishments,
coordinating with all parties and monitoring compliance with
applicable laws, regulations and licensing requirements across the
Group.

Before joining the Group in February 2008, Ms. Koh worked in
various industries in Malaysia.

EFFLL(ELL]) 425 AEAEEE
RAPLEEEE - HHR2008F2 AMARE
EASE  BRVAERESTHEELT
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE T wm ko

BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND PROSPECT XBOERREE

The core business and revenue structure of the Group remained #2020 Bf ERF & + AN E B #9100 275 MUk
unchanged for FY2020. The Group's operations are located in 4B RIGTE o REB AL EMRITINE - B
Singapore, as it owns and operates food centres in Singapore since 2004 R HFIAIT IR B REELERF D, o
2004. The revenue of the Group was principally derived from (i)  ZN&EE Uz BHFE R I I () EEEE R
Outlet Management and (ii) Food and Beverage Stalls business (i) Z &R iE A #7526 o

segments in Singapore.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group owned and managed 19 food  # 20204 12 A31H * NEEES REEUT
centres as follows: 19MERFD ¢

FY2020 FY2019
2020 UFE 2019 REE

Food centres owned and/or managed TEBHEER HLEBHNERPL
by the Group 19 19

The following sets forth the changes in the number of food centres R HJANEFBERNREHREEREEEB T
owned and/or managed by the Group under the Outlet FiEAER SEBEERP LSS E
Management and Leasing Business for the year stated below:

Number of food centres as at 1 January 2020 R2020F1 A1 HEERHRLHE 19
Number of food centres opened during 2020 R2020 FHBMERFLHEE 1
Number of food centres closed during 2020 R2020 FEEMNERPLEE (m*
Number of food centres as at 31 December 2020 72020412 A31 BN ERHLEE 19

The Group operated 37 food and beverage stalls as at 31 December 7 2020F 12 A31H » A EBH &L L 37/

2020 as follows: BERREAT
FY2020 FY2019
20205/ L EE 2019BFMEE
Owned properties EREEEES 14 13
Leased properties HEMZE 12 15

Food centres managed by HBYE = ANERPLEIE

independent third parties 1 12
Total gzt 37 40

* The food centre closed during 2020 was the food street located at the — * R2020FHAEMERBPLAMNNEDENERR -
shopping district.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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The following sets forth the changes in the number of food and
beverage stalls under the F&B Retail Business for the year stated
below:

Number of food and beverage stalls as

TERSIAREENRERTELB TOER
R BB S

A2020%1 1 ANESIENEE

at 1 January 2020 40
Number of food and beverage stalls opened R 2020 FHAZRME KRB EE

during 2020 3
Number of food and beverage stalls closed R2020 FEEMERIBELHE

during 2020 (6)
Number of food and beverage stalls as 2020412 A 31 BREREMEE

at 31 December 2020 37

The outlook for 2021 continues to be uncertain as a result of
COVID-19 outbreak. A series of precautionary and control measures
have been (and continued to be) implemented across Singapore,
including but not limited to, (i) restrictions on travel; (ii) quarantine
of persons; (iii) heightening of hygiene and epidemic prevention
requirements; (iv) social distancing; and (v) vaccination of the
resident population. Given the dynamic nature of circumstances at
both the global and national levels, it is difficult to predict the
magnitude and materiality of the impact of COVID-19 outbreak for
future reporting periods.

The COVID-19 pandemic has changed the F&B landscape. Going
forward and in view of the challenges brought by the COVID-19
outbreak, the Group will re-evaluate its businesses to identify new
opportunities and develop business strategies for the fast-evolving
market and trends. The Group’s development initiatives will focus
on the following:

COVID-19 MR 3 E 2021 FRI RIS HE T
B o $TANSE &t B BRER (I #3548 ) BRER — R 5]
TEPG RIEHIE G - BIEE RN ) LITRE
(i) N B Fm B ¢ K (i) noa @£ REEK : (iv)
HEHE: RVTREBEES - ERN2IX
MEREBEIBROEAED - SHUATERESR
COVID- 198 KRR RE BRI M B2 E MERE
Mo

COVID-19% IBE B LR ENEN - RER
REER COVID-19/E AR PRS- ANEE
B E RIS T B jiﬁ’%ff%@%ﬁm%@&
EHEBEE  UEHREEZNTSERB
o $;‘%H’9%§J§§+§H%¢EMATEE :
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° divest underperforming assets or businesses, and utilise the
resources to re-invest in the F&B businesses and other
complementary growth areas for the new normal and beyond;

° acquire popular F&B businesses and brands to bolster
product offerings;

° expand presence in Singapore through the opening of new
food establishments; and

o renovate existing food centres to enhance the dining
experience.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group recorded a decrease in revenue of approximately S$7.1
million or 16.9% from approximately S$42.0 million for FY2019 to
approximately S$34.9 million for FY2020. The decrease was mainly
due to lower revenue from sale of cooked food, beverages and
tobacco products, as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.

In early April 2020 the Singapore Government announced a set of
measures to contain COVID-19 including a country wide circuit
breaker or lockdown. The measures, amongst others, required all
non-essential workplaces be closed, and all food establishments
were only permitted to offer take-away or food delivery services.
These measures were subsequently lifted in phases, starting in
mid-June 2020.

During FY2020, sales of the Group was affected by the no dine-in
restriction, and food establishments in the shopping district had to
be temporarily closed, arising from lack of patronage from tourists
due to the partial closure of Singapore’s borders. In addition,
revenue was also impacted by the subsequent cessation of
operations of the food street in the shopping district.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Rental income from lease of premises to tenants reduced by
approximately S$1.0 million, or 17.9%, from approximately S$5.5
million in FY2019 to S$4.5 million in FY2020. This was due mainly
to rental rebates on forbearance of approximately S$1.2 million
given to the Group’'s tenants as required by the Singapore
Government’'s COVID-19 relief measures, offset by positive rental
revisions achieved upon completion of renovations and face-lifts of
food establishments.

The following table sets forth the breakdown of revenue by the
three categories:

mESHHAYENTHS UK ABR 20198 BFE
MAB5EEFME IR LH1.08 BF MK
T8k 17.9% £ 2020 M BFE R 4.5 B B FH N
JC © Ibb Y E B A BT I BT B9 COVID-19 47
RERTAAEENEFREN 1258
I THES EINERATE - R REENE
BRI ERS EAATIEE -

TR = KIR R E D ry U s AR -

FY2020 FY2019
2020 T FE 2019 A&

S$$'000 % S$'000 %

FE M T % FEME T %
Sale of cooked food, beverages HEAR - B K

and tobacco products BEER 28,250 80.9 34,068 81.1
Rental income from lease of premises HAMEFHREHN

to tenants HEB WA 4,548 13.1 5,638 13.2
Provision of management, cleaning REEE  BEK

and utilities services NAEERE 2,103 6.0 2,398 5.7

Total et 34,901 100.0 42,004 100.0

Both revenue streams from lease of premises and provision of
management, cleaning and utilities services were under the
Group’s QOutlet Management business segment, while sales of
cooked food, beverage and tobacco products was under the
Group’s Food and Beverage stalls business segment.

KEMEMEREHREE  BEMRAIBEER
Be R EAREEHERRB D - MiH
EAR KmAEEEMBAKEERELE
e e
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Fair Value Loss of Investment Properties

Fair value gain or loss of investment properties depended largely
on economic conditions, property market sentiment and other
factors. The fair values of the Group’s investment properties were
determined by direct comparison method and income capitalisation
approach where appropriate. The assessment of fair values of
investment properties was carried out by Knight Frank Pte Ltd, an
established independent qualified professional valuer in Singapore
not connected with the Group, which possessed the appropriate
qualifications and experience in the valuation of investment
properties owned by the Group.

Cost of Inventories Consumed

The cost of inventories consumed decreased by approximately
S$3.0 million, or 18.1%, from approximately S$16.5 million in
FY2019 to approximately S$13.5 million in FY2020, which was
broadly in line with the decrease in revenue from sale of cooked
food, beverages and tobacco products. The cost of inventories
consumed primarily represented the cost of purchases of food
ingredients for the Group's Food and Beverage Stalls business
segment, including fresh and frozen meat, seafood, vegetables,
eggs, dried food, canned food and seasonings, as well as
beverages, coffee powder and cigarettes.

Staff Costs

Staff costs were the second largest component of the operating
expenses and amounted to approximately S$11.7 million and S$8.3
million for FY2019 and FY2020 respectively, which comprised
approximately 28.0% and 23.8% of the revenue for the respective
periods. The decrease of S$3.4 million, or 29.4%, was mainly due
o (i) grants from the Singapore Government as part of COVID-19
relief measures amounting to S$2.0 million; and (ii) a decrease in
the number of employees from 343 as at the end of FY2019 to 304
as at the end of FY2020.
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Property Rentals and Related Expenses

Property rentals and related expenses primarily represented the
rental expenses paid for leasing of properties from independent
third parties for the operation of food and beverage stalls and food
centres where exempt from IFRS 16. Property rentals and related
expenses decreased by approximately S$1.5 million, or 34.4%,
from approximately S$4.3 million in FY2019 to approximately S$2.8
million in FY2020. The decrease was mainly due to the receipt of
rental rebates from landlords as part of COVID-19 relief measures
of the Singapore Government, and the non-renewal of food
establishments including the food street.

Management, Cleaning and Utilities Expenses

The management, cleaning and utilities expenses decreased by
approximately S$0.4 million, or 23.2%, from approximately S$1.8
million in FY2019 to approximately S$1.4 million in FY2020. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the lower number of food
establishments managed by the Group, and reduced electricity
expenses as a result of converting air-conditioned food centres to
non-air-conditioned food centres in line with COVID-19 health and
safety measures.

Listing Expenses

The listing expenses were non-recurring, and primarily consisted of
fees paid to professional parties in relation to the listing. No listing
expenses were incurred in FY2020.

Other Operating Expenses

The other operating expenses increased by approximately S$0.1
million, or 5.3%, from approximately S$2.7 million in FY2019 to
approximately S$2.8 million in FY2020. The increase was mainly
attributable to (i) an increase in repairs and maintenance as more
costs were spent on face-lifts of food stalls and food centres to
improve the ambience and attract more customers; (i) an increase
in advertisement and promotion costs to re-brand the face-lifted
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food centres to “Foodcity”; and (iii) an increase in professional fees
for the acquisition of investment properties. However, the increase
was offset by a decrease in donations to recognised charities.

(i WBREMENERERIEN - AW - %
IR IR AR S B IREOR D PrEsH o

2020 2019
2020 & 20194
S$'000 S$'000

T # h03R T FTHNH T

Administrative fee THRER 217 267
Advertisement and promotion EERERE 247 77
Insurance R 44 32
Property tax and related costs SR RARRA A AR 56 332
Repairs and maintenance WHE NRIRE 1,147 709
Legal and professional fee FEREREEER 508 356
Telephone and communication RS 45 54
Donation = 6 461
Others Hib 580 419

2,850 2,707

Finance Costs

The finance costs increased from approximately S$1.4 million in
FY2019 to S$1.7 million in FY2020, which was an increase of
approximately 23.9% mainly due to additional loans taken in
relation to the acquisition of an investment property located at level
1 of People's Park Centre, 101 Upper Cross Street, Singapore
058357.

Taxation
The income tax expense decreased by approximately 8.6% from
approximately S$0.30 million in FY2019 to approximately S$0.28

million in FY2020. The decrease was primarily in line with lower
business activities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Profit for the Year

The decrease in the profit after tax was primarily attributable to (i)
the unrealised loss on fair value changes of investment properties
of approximately S$0.8 million in FY2020, and (ii) net decrease in
operating expenses of approximately S$4.9 million, including cost
of inventory consumed, property rentals and related expenses and
management, cleaning and utilities expenses, due to the decline in
revenue.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

On 30 September 2020, the Group exercised the option to acquire
an investment property located at Block 171 Yishun Avenue 7 #01-
781, Singapore 760171 for a consideration of S$5 million. Please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 30 September
2020, 15 December 2020 and 10 March 2021 for details. The
proposed acquisition was completed on 10 March 2021.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

Save as disclosed below, the Group had no material acquisition or
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

On 8 January 2020, CK Chu Holdings Pte. Ltd., an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, was granted the options by
Thang Teck Jong and Kong Ling Ting (also known as Kang Ling
Ting) to purchase Units #01-02A, #01-02B, #01-02C, #01-02E, #01-
04A, #01-05A, #01-05B, #01-05C and #01-05P on Level 1 of
People's Park Centre, 101 Upper Cross Street, Singapore 058357
by entering into the nine option agreements at a consideration of
S$22,200,000. On 14 February 2020, the options were exercised
and the consideration was settled in cash. The completion of the
acquisition took place on 24 March 2020.

On 20 September 2020, U Property Holdings Pte Ltd, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was granted an option
by Chia Siew Lan and Loo Phuay Szu (Lu Peisi) to purchase the a
property located at Block 171 Yishun Avenue 7, #01-781, Singapore
760171 by entering into an option agreement at a consideration of
S$5,000,000. On 30 September 2020, the option was exercised
and the consideration as settled in cash. The completion of the
acquisition took place on 10 March 2021.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

As all of the operations of the Group were located in Singapore, all
revenue from customers of the Group were derived from activities
in Singapore.

During FY2020, the Group did not experience any significant
difficulty or impact on its operations or liquidity due to fluctuations
in currency exchange rates. The management will continue to
monitor the foreign exchange exposure and take prudent measures
to reduce foreign exchange risks.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout FY2020. The finance department of the Group
was responsible for treasury management functions, which
include, amongst others, researching and evaluating investment
options for further consideration by the management and the
Board, and monitoring the investments on a continuous basis.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

During FY2020, the Group held no significant investment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group's key financial
position indicators as follows:

RBEERUBER

A20204F 201912 8310 A&EEH =
ZYBARRIEZENT

2020 2019
2020 & 20194
S$'000 S$'000

T # h03R T THETT

Current assets MENEE

Current liabilities mEAE

Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE(AE)FHE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings HEIRTTIER

Equity T

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had aggregate outstanding
bank borrowings of approximately S$74.3 million, an increase of
approximately S$18.1 million or 32.3% from approximately S$56.2
million in FY2019. The increase was mainly due to additional loans
taken in relation to the investment property acquired.

14,318 15,674
8,868 10,045
5,450 5,629

74,289 56,151

67,332 65,142

R20205F12 A31 B - REBHKREBRITE
AR AL 743 BB F M IT - 20198 IR
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O T8 32.3% © :Z BN E B RN FEUEE
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These bank borrowings consisted of term loans, secured mortgage
loans and working capital loan. The working capital loan, term loans
and secured mortgage loans related to financing for the purchase
of property, plant and equipment and investment properties were
secured by the respective assets, corporate guarantee provided by
the Company and personal guarantee provided by a controlling
shareholder of the Company.

The Group had unutilised banking facilities of approximately S$15.7
million. The Group aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by
keeping sufficient bank balances and committed credit lines
available to manage its business in a manner consistent with the
short-term and long-term financial strategies of the Group.

GEARING RATIO

Gearing ratio is calculated based on the interest-bearing liabilities
divided by the total equity as at the respective year/period end and
multiplied by 100%. The Group’s interest-bearing liabilities mainly
comprised bank borrowings for the purchase of the investment
properties. As at 31 December 2020, the Group's gearing ratio was
approximately 110.3%, increased from approximately 86.2% as at
31 December 2019. The change in the Group's gearing ratio was
mainly attributable to increase in the Group’s borrowing to finance
investment properties during FY2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stack Exchange on 6 March 2019 for which the Company issued
200,000,000 new shares at HK$0.75 per offer share on 6 March
2019, as set out in the Company’s announcement dated 5 March
2019. After deducting related listing expenses, the net proceeds of
the Share Offer were approximately HK$110.0 million.

LR ERIEFENAR

MARFEHEA2019F3 A5 8 2 AEATHE
ARAREDH2019F3 A6 BEB TR £
o MARFEN2019FE3 A6 Bk FRBE
fi% 19 0.75 7 7T 2 77 200,000,000 A% #7 % 17 = 1
HBRAERE AT % - ROBEMBSRIAFE
HE1100B8ETT -

Expected
Approx.%  Utilisedasat  Balance as at timeline of
Net Proceeds of Net  31December  31December  full utilisation
allocated of Proceeds 2020 2020  of the balance
[y g #2020 12020%
e RERE 128318 12ANE  DEBALH
FE R 28R fhas  HEDREER
(HK$'000) % (HK$'000) (HK$'000)
(f#7r) % (T#xr) (f#7r)
1. Purchase of outlets 1. BEEH
a. 101 Yishun a. 101 Yishun 34,760 32% (34,760) - -
b. 150 South Bridge Road b. 150 South Bridge Road 5610 5% (5,610) - -
2. Provision for future acquisitions 2. BAMBERPLRE
of food centres
a. Purchase price/Renovation o FEE/BF 10 March 2021
35,530 32% (32,080) 3450 2021535108
3. Repayment of bank loan 3. BERTER 11,110 10% (11,110) - -
4. Renovation of existing food centres 4 BERAEZERTD 5,610 5% (5,610) - -
5. Information technology infrastructure 5. EE&# ((EEHHT)) End of 2021
and Systems (“IT") TS 6,270 6% (290) 5,980% 01 EE
Sub-total Nt 98,890 90% (89,460) 9,430 -
6. General working capital 6. —HEEES 11,110 10% (11,110) - -
Total st 110,000 100% (100,570) 9,430
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Notes:

The balance of HK$3,450,000 was utilised to complete the acquisition of an
investment property located at Block 171 Yishun Avenue 7 #01-781, Singapore
760171, on 10 March 2021.

The Group had intended to improve its information technology infrastructure
and systems, and to introduce and implement a cashless electronic payment
system, especially at its points of sale.

By reason of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Singapore Government announced a
set of strict measures in an effort to curb the spread of the virus (the “Circuit
Breaker”) which adversely delayed the Group's implementation plan and
timelines. The Circuit Breaker had the effect of accelerating the digitalisation of
the Singapore economy, as the restrictions on dining-in during the Circuit
Breaker precipitated the widespread adoption of online orders, food delivery

and electronic payment systems.

As a result of these developments, the Group is currently reviewing its
information technology strategy, in particular the plan to develop or adopt a
cashless electronic payment system to address the changing pattern in how
food is consumed, in particular the increasing use of online orders for food
delivery. In this regard, the Group will need to re-evaluate the feasibility of
developing its own electronic payment system, the model to be adopted or
prioritised and the associated information technology infrastructure required.
The Group expects to fully deploy the remaining amount allocated for
information technology infrastructure by 31 December 2021.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 304 employees
(2019: 343). The Group’s remuneration policies were in line with
the prevailing market practice and were determined on the basis of
performance, qualification and experience of each individual
employee. The Group recognised the importance of a good
relationship with its employees. The remuneration payable to its
employees included salaries and allowances.
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in
the annual report of the Company for FY2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high corporate governance
standards to safeguard the interests of Shareholders, enhance
corporate value, formulate its business strategies and policies, and
enhance its transparency and accountability. The Company's
corporate governance practices are based on the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG
Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
During FY2020, the Company has adopted and, save for the
deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code as disclosed in
this report, has complied with all applicable code provisions as set
out in the CG Code. The Group will continue to review and enhance
its corporate governance practices to ensure its continued
compliance with the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry with all the Directors and each of the Directors has
confirmed that he/she has complied with the Model Code for
FY2020.

The Company has also established written guidelines (the
“Employees Written Guidelines”) no less exacting than the
Model Code for securities transactions by employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information
of the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the Employees
Written Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and supervising
the management of business affairs and overall and performance
of the Group.

The Board reserves its decisions for all major matters of the
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control systems,
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular those
that may involve conflict of interests), financial information, change
of Directors, ad hoc projects and other significant financial and
operational matters. The Board has the full support of the
management to discharge its responsibilities.

The day to day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to executive Directors and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the above
mentioned officers.

The Directors have full access to information of the Group and the
management has an obligation to supply the Directors with
adequate information in a timely manner to enable the Directors to
perform their responsibilities. The Directors are entitled to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at
the Company's expense.

In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to
the board committees of the Company. Further details of the board
committees of the Company are set out on pages 36 to 43 of this
annual report.

For FY2020, the Board has reviewed the above arrangements for

the delegation of responsibilities to the senior management and
considered it to be appropriate.
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Directors and officers’ liabilities

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnity the Directors for their liabilities arising from corporate
activities. The insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual
basis.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises six Directors, consisting of three
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors
as detailed below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigiang)
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Leow Poh Hoon (Liao Baoyun)
Ms. Chu Pek Si (Zhu Peishi)
(re-designated as an executive Director on 10 October 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Loke Tan

Mr. Loh Eu Tse Derek

Mr. Mah Seong Kung

During FY2020, save as disclosed in this report, there was no
change in the composition of the Board.

The biographical information of the Directors is set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 10
to 17 of this annual report.

Ms. Leow is the spouse of Mr. Chu and Ms. Chu is the daughter of
Mr. Chu and Ms. Leow.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 10 to 17 of this annual report, the
Directors have no other financial, business, family or other material,
reference relationships with each other.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Under the current organisational structure
of the Company, Mr. Chu is the chairman and chief executive
officer. With extensive experience in the food and beverage
industry, the Board considers that vesting the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer in the same person is beneficial to the
business prospects and management of the Group. The balance of
power and authority is ensured by the operation of the senior
management and the Board, which comprise experienced and high
caliber individuals. The Board currently comprises three executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors, therefore
the Board has a strong independence element in its composition.

Independent non-executive Directors

During FY2020, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing one-third of the
Board. These independent non-executive Directors are seasoned
individuals from diversified backgrounds and industries and one
member has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The independent non-executive Directors serve the relevant
function of bringing independent judgment and advice on the
overall management of the Company. They take the lead where
potential conflicts of interests arise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for
FY2020. The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance
with the terms of the guidelines throughout FY2020.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years and will
continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other. The executive
Directors can only serve the termination notice after the initial fixed
term in accordance with their service contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial fixed term
of one year commencing from the Listing Date and will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than one month’s notice in
writing by served by either party on the other.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation). In accordance
with the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles of
Association”), all the Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and any new Director
appointed to fill a causal vacancy shall submit himself for election
by the Shareholders at the first general meeting of the Company
after appointment and new Director appointed as an addition to the
Board shall submit himself for re-election by Shareholders at the
next following annual general meeting of the Company (the
“Annual General Meeting") after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, monitoring the appointment, re-election and
succession planning of Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

To oversee particular aspect of the Company’s affairs, the Board
has established four Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Internal Control Compliance Committee
(together, the “Board Committees”). The Board has delegated
responsibilities to the Board Committees as set out in their
respective terms of reference.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 1 February 2019
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules and the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The principal roles and functions of the Audit Committee include
but are not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, approving
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and handling any question of resignation or dismissal
of that auditor;

° reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s
independence, objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process in accordance with applicable standards and
discussing with the auditor the nature and scope of the audit
and reporting obligations before the commercial of the audit;
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developing and implementing a policy on the engagement of
an external auditor to supply non-audit services;

monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, annual report and accounts, half-year report and
quarterly reports, and reviewing significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them;

discussing the Company's risk management and internal
control systems with the Company’s management to ensure
that it has performed its duty in having effective internal
control systems. This discussion should include the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function;

considering major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on
its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings;

ensuring co-ordination between the internal and external
auditors, and to ensure that the Internal Audit Function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company, and reviewing and monitoring its effectiveness;

reviewing the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management in
respect of the accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and management’s response;

ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor's management letter;

reporting to the Board on the matters in the terms of
reference of the Audit Committee;

considering other topics, as defined by the Board;

acting as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;
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reviewing the Group's financial and accounting policies and
practices; and

establishing a whistle blowing policy and system for
employees and those who deal with the Company (e.g.,
customers and suppliers) so that they can, in confidence, to
raise concerns about possible improprieties in any matter
related to the Company and ensure that proper arrangements
are in place for fair and independent investigation of these
matters.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Mah, Mr. Loh and Mr. Wong. Mr. Mah is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

The members of the Audit Committee possess appropriate
professional qualifications and/or experience in financial matters.

The Audit Committee reviewed, together with senior management
and the external auditors, the financial statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2020 and for FY2020, the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Company, statutory
compliance, other financial reporting matters, risk management and
internal control systems and continuing connected transactions of
the Company.

During FY2020, the Audit Committee held two meetings for
considering the interim results of the Company for the six months
ended 30 June 2020 and the annual results of the Company for
FY2020. Details of the attendance of the members of the Audit
Committee in the said meetings are set out under the sub-heading
“Attendance Records of Directors and Board Committee
Members"” on page 45 of this annual report.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board (which
endorsed the recommendation) that, subject to Shareholders’
approval at the Company's forthcoming Annual General Meeting,
Fan, Chan & Co. Limited be re-appointed as the Company’s
external auditors for the year 2021.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 1
February 2019 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The written terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The principal roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
include but are not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and
members of the senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure in the
development of a remuneration policy;

° making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of all individual executive Directors and members of
the senior management, including benefits in kind and
compensation payments;

° reviewing and approving the management’s performance-
based remuneration proposals by reference to the Board's
corporate goals and objectives from time to time;

° ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associate(s) is
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration;

° making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors;

° considering factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
directors, and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group
and desirability of performance-based remuneration; and

° reviewing and approving compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management of the Company for any
loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it
is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and
not excessive.
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The Remuneration Committee comprises an executive Director,
namely Mr. Chu, and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Loh, Mr. Wong and Mr. Mah. Mr. Loh is the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee.

During FY2020, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings
to (1) review the remuneration policy and structure and to make
recommendations to the Board on determining the annual
remuneration packages of the executive Directors and members of
the senior management and other related matters; and (2)
recommend the remuneration of Ms. Chu as an executive Director
to the Board for approval.

Details of the attendance of the members of the Remuneration
Committee in the said meetings are set out under the sub-heading
“Attendance Records of Directors and Board Committee
Members"” on page 45 of this annual report.

Details of the fees and other emoluments paid or payable to the
Directors and the five individuals with the highest emoluments are
set out in notes 10 and 11 to the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for FY2020 (the “Consolidated Financial
Statements”) respectively.

The remuneration paid to members of the senior management by
band during FY2020 is set out below:

In Singapore dollars (“S$")

LA pn3g e ([ 3 hn3g e 1) &+
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 1
February 2019 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the CG Code. The written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The principal roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
include but are not limited to:

° reviewing the structure, size and diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
skills, knowledge, professional qualifications and industry
experience) of the Board at least on an annual basis and
making recommendations on any proposed change to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° identifying individuals who are suitably qualified to become
Board members and selecting or making recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

° assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive officer of the Company; and

° developing and reviewing the policy of the Board on diversity
and measurable objectives for implementing such policy from
time to time and adopted by the Board and reviewing
progress on achieving the objectives.
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The Nomination Committee consults the chairman of the Board
about his proposals relating to the process for Board appointments
and for identifying and nominating candidates as members of the
Board.

The criteria for the Nomination Committee to select and
recommend a candidate for directorship include the candidate’s
skills, knowledge, experience and integrity and whether he/she can
demonstrate a standard of competence commensurate with his/
her position as a director of the Company.

The Nomination Committee has also adopted a nomination policy
(the “Nomination Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria
and procedure of appointing and re-appointing a Director. Details of
the Nomination Policy are set out under the sub-heading
“Nomination Policy” on pages 48 to 49 of this annual report.

The selection criteria used in assessing the suitability of a candidate
include, inter alia, his/her academic background and professional
qualifications, relevant experience in the industry, character and
integrity and whether he/she can contribute to the diversity of the
Board as detailed in the board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”). Details of the Board Diversity Policy are set out
under the sub-heading “Board Diversity Policy” on page 47 of this
annual report.

The Nomination Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong, Mr. Mah and Mr. Loh. Mr.
Wong is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During FY2020, the Nomination Committee held two meetings to
(1) review composition of the Board, review the Nomination Policy,
assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors
and recommend the Board on the re-election of Directors; and (2)
recommend the re-designation of Ms. Zhu as an executive Director
to the Board for approval.

Details of the attendance of the members of the Nomination
Committee in the said meeting are set out under the sub-heading
“Attendance Records of Directors and Board Committee
Members"” on page 45 of this annual report.
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Internal Control Compliance Committee

The Company established the Internal Control Compliance
Committee on 1 February 2019 with written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code.

The principal roles and functions of the Internal Control Compliance
Committee include the following:

° monitoring and ensuring the Group's compliance with
Singapore laws, rules and regulations as applicable to the
Group’s operations;

° providing status reports to the Board on a regular basis;
° engaging external advisers where necessary; and

° taking all necessary measures as it thinks appropriate to
ensure the aforesaid measures are properly implemented.

The Internal Control Compliance Committee comprises an
executive Director, namely Mr. Chu, an independent non-executive
Director, namely Mr. Loh and a member of the senior management
team, namely Mr. Cui. Mr. Loh is the chairman of the Internal
Control Compliance Committee.

During FY2020, the Internal Control Compliance Committee held
one meeting to review the Company's policies and practices on its
internal control and policies and practices and compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements.

Details of the attendance of the members of the Internal Control
Compliance Committee in the said meetings are set out under the
sub-heading “Attendance Records of Directors and Board
Committee Members” on page 45 of this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code:

developing and reviewing the Company’'s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and members of
the senior management;

reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to employees and the
Directors; and

reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

During FY2020, the Board had reviewed the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance issues, the Company’s
compliance with CG Code, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines,
the disclosure in the corporate governance report, and monitored
the training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and members of the senior management.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND

BOARD COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board, the Board
Committee meetings and the general meeting of the Company

held in FY2020 is set out in the table below:

EESNESZEEREHFETE

BESEN2020FWRFERITNESE &
EFREEERNMARRBRAE 2 HF ik E

RT% -

Attendance/Number of Meetings

bl ¢ Va-£ VA
Internal
Control Annual
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination ~ Compliance General
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting
R A
Name of Directors ESpg Ese EyzZEe  HMZEE® RE#ZEE  ARZE®  RREEAE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Chu Rk 4/4 - 22 - 1 i
Ms. Leow Bt 44 - - - - i1
Ms. Chu Kt 4/ - - - - "
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Wong Wong %4 4 22 20 0 - i
Mr. Loh EXE 44 20 202 202 11 i
Mr. Mah Di4 4/ 22 22 22 - 7
Senior Management BREER
Mr. Cui ERA - - - - 1 17
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors

The Company will from time to time arrange continuing
professional development training for the Directors such as
internally-facilitated briefings and provision of reading material on
relevant topics to ensure the Directors keep abreast of regulatory
developments and changes in order to effectively perform their
responsibilities and to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. All Directors are also encouraged to
attend relevant training courses at the Company's expense.

The following Directors pursued continuous professional
development and relevant details are summarised as follows:

ESNHHEERER

AR TR REFTTHRBETREREI
AN RS e SR AR B R R AV B R Y - REAR
EXEZREERRMNEENFAIREITHE
£ UBRAREEABEL THEES(ELIEM
BRL - NRPISBENIRFTE E S LRSI
2 BRAARRAEE -

TIEEEETHEZTERR  GRAFBEHRL
LU

Attended

services/ Reading

briefings materials
Name of Directors EEHA HERE,EAN BEM R
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Chu KkE Vv Vv
Ms. Leow Bt v vV
Ms. Chu K+ Vv v
Independent non-executive Directors BIAKHTES
Mr. Wong Wong %t & vV Vv
Mr. Loh Bk Vv Vv
Mr. Mah S Vv v
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to the code provision A.5.6 of the CG Code, the Board
has adopted Board Diversity Policy which sets out the approach to
achieve diversity of the Board.

The Board sees diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. In designing the Board's composition,
the board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service and any other factors that the Board might
consider relevant and applicable from time to time. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee
will review annually the structure, size and composition of the
Board and where appropriate, make recommendations on changes
to the Board to complement the Company's corporate strategy and
to ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth
and is also committed to ensure that recruitment and selection
practices at all levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately
structured so that a diverse range of candidates are considered.

At present, the Nomination Committee considers that the existing
Board Diversity Policy is sufficient to serve the purpose and will
review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its
effectiveness.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for
selection and appointment of Directors to the Nomination
Committee.

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy which sets out the
selection criteria and process and the Board succession planning
considerations in relation to nomination and appointment of
Directors and aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
Company and the continuity of the Board and appropriate
leadership at Board level.

The Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following:

° character and integrity;

° qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

o diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service;

° requirements of the proposed independent non-executive
Directors;

° independence of independent non-executive Directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules;

° directorship in other public companies and corporate
governance structure of these companies; and

° commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest

to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
Committee(s).
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The procedure of appointing and re-appointing a Director is
summarised as follows:

nomination and invitation of suitable candidates by any
member of the Nomination Committee or the Board;

° evaluation of the candidate by the Board based on all
selection criteria as set out in the Nomination Policy;

° performing due diligence in respect of each candidate and
making recommendation for the Board’s consideration and
approval;

° in the case of the nomination of an independent non-
executive Director, assessing the candidate’s independence
under the relevant code provisions from the CG Code and the
Listing Rules;

° where nominating an independent non-executive Director for
election at general meetings, having due consideration of
matters under code provision A.5.5;

° in the context of the re-appointment of retiring Directors,
reviewing the candidate’'s overall contribution and
performance and making recommendations to the Board and/
or the Shareholders in connection with his/her re-election at
general meeting; and

° convening a meeting of the Board to consider the
appointment or re-appointment of the candidate as a Director.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group on an on-
going basis and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and they can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Company's strategic objectives, and establishing and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing the design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk management
procedures and guidelines with defined authority for
implementation by key business processes and office functions,
including project management, sales and leasing, financial
reporting, human resources and information technology.

All divisions/departments have conducted internal control
assessment regularly to identify risks that potentially impact the
business of the Group and various aspects including key operational
and financial processes, regulatory compliance and information
security. Self-evaluation has been conducted annually to confirm
that control policies are properly complied with by each division/
department.

During FY2020, the Board, through the Audit Committee,
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, including the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experiences, training
programmes, internal audit and financial reporting functions. In this
respect, the Audit Committee communicates any material issue to
the Board.
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The internal auditor is responsible for performing independent
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems. The internal audit function examined
the key issues in relation to the accounting practices and all
material controls and provided its findings and recommendations
for improvement to the Audit Committee.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee, as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings, reviewed the
risk management and internal control systems, including the
financial, operational and compliance controls, during FY2020 and
considered that such systems are effective and adequate. The
annual review also covered the financial reporting and internal audit
function and staff qualifications, experiences and relevant
resources.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for FY2020.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainty relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out
in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 107 to 113 of this
annual report.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditors of the
Company, Fan, Chan & Co. Limited, in respect of audit services
and non-audit services for FY2020 is set out below:

BT

72020 f1 BUF E LR BOR TS MR BURTS E
NARBIMNEZBEERG5TRITTERAFH
MELTESIT

Fee Paid/Payable

ENER ENEAR

(S$'000)

Service Category BRI (FFFET)
Audit service ZERTE

— annual audit services — FEZHRE 100

Non-audit service IERZ AR =

Total et 100

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged In.Corp Corporate Services (HK)
Limited (formerly known as RHT Corporate Advisory (HK) Limited),
an external service provider, and Mr. Man Yun Wah has been
appointed as the Company’s company secretary. Mr. Man Yun
Wah's primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Cui Kewei
Joshua, the chief financial officer of the Company.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the

company secretary on corporate governance and board practices
and matters.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company engages with Shareholders through various
communication channels and a shareholders’ communication policy
is in place to ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are
appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure
its effectiveness.

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolutions
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general
meetings, including the election of individual Director. All
resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each
general meeting.

Procedures for Convening an Extraordinary General
Meeting and Putting Forward Proposals at Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association, the Board may,
whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting.

Any one or more members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company’s company secretary, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The requisition must state clearly the name of the requisitionist(s),
their shareholding in the Company, the reason(s) to convene an
extraordinary general meeting, the agenda proposed to be included
and the details of the business(es) proposed to be transacted in the
extraordinary general meeting and signed by the requisitionist(s).
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiry to the Board, the Shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Unit 912, 9/F
Two Harbourfront
22 Tak Fung Street, Hunghom
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 3422 8030

Email: feedback@fuchangroup.com

For the avoidance of doubt, the Shareholders must deposit and
send the original duly signed written requisition, notice or
statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address
and provide their full name, contact details and identification in
order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be
disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with the Shareholders and in particular, through the
Annual General Meetings and other general meetings. At the
Annual General Meeting, Directors (or their delegates as
appropriate) are available to meet the Shareholders and answer
their enquiries.
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To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
communication policy for the Shareholders which aims at
establishing a two-way relationship, communicating between the
Company and the Shareholders and maintaining a website at
www.fuchangroup.com, where up-to-date information on the
Company’s business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information
are available for public access.

During FY2020, the Company has not made any change to the
Articles of Association. An up-to-date version of the Articles of
Association is also available on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on payment of
dividends. The Company does not have any pre-determined
dividend payout ratio. Depending on the financial conditions of the
Company and the Group and the conditions and factors as set out
in the dividend policy, dividends may be proposed and/or declared
by the Board during a financial year and any final dividend for a
financial year will be subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the
Annual General Meeting.
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Directors’ Report
EEEWE

The Directors present herewith their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for FY2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated and registered in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability on 13 March 2018. The Shares were
initially listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on the
Listing Date.

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 36
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for FY2020. During
FY2020, there was no significant change in the nature of the
Group's principal activities.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group's revenue and contribution to the results
by principal operating activities and the Group’'s assets and
liabilities by reportable segments of operations for FY2020 is set
out in note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for FY2020.
All of the Group’s businesses were carried out in Singapore during
FY2020 and all of the Group's revenue from external customers
was generated in Singapore during FY2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group as at 31 December 2020
together with the future business development is set out in the
sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 9 and pages 18 to 30
respectively of this annual report. A description of the Group's
corporate governance and the Group's risk management and
internal control system is provided in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 31 to 55 of this annual
report. A discussion on the Group’s environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders and the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group are provided
in the section headed "“Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” on pages 75 to 106 of this annual report.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Consolidated Financial Statements are set out on pages 114 to
219 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
FY2020 (2019:Nil).

The forthcoming Annual General Meeting will be held on Tuesday,
29 June 2021. A notice of which shall be sent to the shareholders
of the Company in accordance with the Articles, the Listing Rules
and other applicable laws and regulations.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 24 June
2021 to Tuesday, 29 June 2021, both days inclusive, during which
no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. To be
eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, all
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company's Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar,
Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited of 2103B, 21st Floor, 148
Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 23 June 2021 or at another time and/or
date as advised.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during FY2020 are set out in note 16 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements to FY2020.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group
during FY2020 are set out in note 15 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements to FY2020. All of the Group's investment properties
were revalued by independent professional property valuers as at
31 December 2020 using the direct comparison method and
income capitalisation method.
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BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2020 are
set out in note 25 to the Consolidated Financial Statements to
FY2020.

SHARES CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the share capital of the Company
during FY2020 are set out in note 27 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for FY2020.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company's reserves available for
distribution to equity holders comprising share premium and
retained earnings amounted to approximately S$16,032,000
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company during
FY2020 are set out in note 28 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for FY2020 and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 117 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for the pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis
to the existing Shareholders.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 220 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

DONATIONS

During FY2020, the Group donated approximately HK$34,000
(approximately S$6,000) to the recognised charities in Singapore.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For FY2020, the Company did not redeem any of its listed
securities, nor did the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchase
or sell such securities.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during FY2020 and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigiang)
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Leow Poh Hoon (Liao Baoyun)
Ms. Chu Pek Si (Zhu Peishi)
(re-designated as an executive Director on 10 October 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Loke Tan

Mr. Loh Eu Tse Derek

Mr. Mah Seong Kung

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Ms. Leow Poh Hoon (Liao
Baoyun) shall retire and being eligible, will offer herself for re-
election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each
of the independent non-executive Directors and, as at the date of
this annual report, still considers them to be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and members of the
senior management are set out on pages 10 to 17 of this annual
report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company, under which they agreed to act as executive
Directors for an initial term of three years, which may be
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served
by either the Director or the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for an initial term of one year
commencing on the Listing Date, which may be terminated by not
less than one month’s notice in writing served by the independent
non-executive Director or the Company. Under the respective
appointment letters, each of the independent non-executive
Directors is entitled to a fixed Director's fee.

The appointments of the Directors are subject to the provisions of
retirement and rotation of Directors under the Articles of
Association. None of the Directors has entered into a service
contract or appointment letter with members of the Group that
cannot be terminated by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed "“Related Party
transactions” in note 32 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for FY2020, no contract of significance was entered into between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling
Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries during FY2020 or subsisted
as at 31 December 2020 and no contract of significance for the
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a
Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries was entered into
during FY2020 or subsisted as at 31 December 2020.
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FEEoWmE(E)

Nne=<

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Related Party
Transactions” in note 32 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for FY2020 contained in this report, no transaction, arrangement
and contract of significance to the business of the Group which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director or any entity connected with such a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31
December 2020 or at any time during FY2020.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of each
Director and the Chief Executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

Long positions in the Shares of the company

Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest
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Number of shares Percentage of
held (Note 1) shareholdings (%)

s & A BREEDL
EEME B0 RmtE (Kiat1) (%)
Mr. Chu Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 600,000,000 (L) 75%
KEE RYEEEE R (K 2)
Ms. Leow Interest of spouse (Note 3) 600,000,000 (L) 75%
Bt fe i@z (A77%3)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(Continued)

Notes:
1. the letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the relevant Shares.
2. the entire issued share capital of Strong Oriental Limited (“Strong Oriental”)

is legally and beneficially owned by Mr. Chu. Accordingly, Mr. Chu is deemed
to be interested in 600,000,000 shares held by Strong Oriental by virtue of the
SFO.

3. Ms. Leow is the spouse of Mr. Chu. She is deemed to be interested in all the
shares in which Mr. Chu is interested or deemed to be interested by virtue of
the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company had any interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the following corporation (other than a
Director or the chief executive of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the Shares as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the company

Name of Shareholder Capacity/nature of interest

FERRRROREBRODNVES

MR2020F 12 A31H U TNEAB(EEH AR
BIEBITRA BRRIN) IR B L8 IR
BES NSNS 336 KB TFEE 2 S
RIS SAR T ¢

RARBEBROEFR

Number of Shares Percentage of
held (Note 1) shareholdings (%)

FiEROE A
RREH B REmE (HtaE1) BEE DL (%)
Strong Oriental Limited Beneficial Owner 600,000,000 (L) 75%
EmiEBA
Note: Bifet -
1. the letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares. 1. FH L] EZBALTRBROZTE -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no other
corporation which/person (other than a Director or the chief
executive of the Company) had any interest or short position in the
Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the Directors and members of the senior
management of the Group are decided by the Board by reference
to the recommendation given by the Remuneration Committee,
having regard to the Group’'s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five
highest paid individuals in the Group for FY2020 are set out in
notes 10 and 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for
FY2020.

For FY2020, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any
Director or any of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the Directors has waived any emoluments for
FY2020.

Saved as disclosed above, no other payments have been made or
are payable, for FY2020, by the Group to or on behalf of any of the
Directors.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives or rewards to eligible persons,
including the Directors and employees of the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that (i) will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares or (ii) require the Company to enter into
any agreement that will or may result in the Company issuing the
Shares were entered into by the Group during FY2020 or existed
as at 31 December 2020.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during FY2020 or as at 31 December 2020 was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt
securities including debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolution of the sole Shareholder passed
on 1 February 2019, the Company adopted a share option scheme
conditional upon the Listing (the “Share Option Scheme”). The
Share Option Scheme became effective on the Listing Date. As no
share option has been granted by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme since the Listing Date, there was no share option
outstanding as at 31 December 2020 and no option was exercised
or cancelled or lapsed during FY2020.

(a) Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is enable the Board
to grant options to Eligible Persons (as defined below) as
incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group and to recruit and retain high calibre
Eligible Persons and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group.

(b) Eligible persons

The Directors may at any time and within a period of ten (10)
years commencing from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme at their absolute discretion and subject to
such terms, conditions, restrictions or limitations as they may
think fit offer, at the consideration of HK$1.00 per option, to
grant option to any person belonging to the following classes
of participants (the “Eligible person(s)”)

() any employee or proposed employee (whether full time
or part time, including any director) of any member of
the Group or invested entity; and

(i) any supplier of goods or services, any customer, any
person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support, any Shareholders or other
participants who contribute to the development and
growth of the Group or any invested entity.

BRESE

RIEME—RRERMN 201942 A1 BERIBHEMEHR
FERAQRAFLETEREMN—TEEREE
([BREE]) - BRETENLETARHE
o ARARRARE LT H AR EREER
RERT & AR AR - #p020206 12 A 31
Bt E M ARITE 2 BRE - BR2020 8 B F
[EBLEE AR I TT{E - AR -
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(b) WSEMAL

B0 ARMERES 8 BB T 010)
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(c)

(d)

66

Maximum number of Shares available for issue

(i) the maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be allotted and issued upon the exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company shall not, in aggregate,
exceed 30% of the total number of Shares in issue
from time to time.

(i) the total number of Shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
not in aggregate exceed 80,000,000 Shares, being 10%
of the total number of Shares in issue as at the date of
this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible person

Unless approved by the Shareholders in general meeting and
subject to the following paragraph, no option shall be granted
to any Eligible Person if any further grant of options would
result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all options granted and to be granted to such person
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in
the twelve (12) months period up to and including such
further grant would exceed 1% of the total number of Shares
in issue from time to time.

Where an option is to be granted to a substantial Shareholder
or an independent non-executive Director (or any of their
respective associates), and such grant will result in the
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company in the twelve (12) months period
up to and including the date of such grant: (1) representing in
aggregate over 0.1% of the total number of Shares in issue
at the relevant time of grant; and (2) having an aggregate
value, based on the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
each grant, in excess of HK$5 million, such grant shall not be
valid unless approved by the independent Shareholders in
general meeting.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Period within which the securities must be
exercised under an option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the
Board may determine which shall not exceed ten years from
the date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination
thereof.

Performance target or minimum period for which
an option must be held before it can be exercised

There is no performance target that has to be achieved or
minimum period in which an option must be held before the
exercise of any option save as otherwise imposed by the
Board in the relevant offer of options.

Period for and consideration payable on acceptance
of an option

An offer of grant of an option may be accepted by an Eligible
Person within the date as specified in the offer letter issued
by the Company, being a date not later than twenty-one (21)
days inclusive of the date upon which it is made, provided
that such date shall not be more than ten (10) years after the
date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme or after
termination of the Share Option Scheme, and no such offer
may be accepted by a person who ceases to be an Eligible
Person after the offer has been made. The amount payable
by a grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance on
the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00. Such
consideration shall in no circumstances be refundable.
Subject to the rules of the Share Option Scheme, option may
be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee at any time
before the expiry of the period to be determined and notified
by the Board to the grantee which in any event shall not be
longer than ten (10) years commencing on the date of the
offer letter and expiring on the last day of such ten (10) years
period.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(h)

(i)

Basis of determining the exercise price

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such
price as determined by the Board, and shall be at least the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer
to grant an option (the “Offer Date”), which must be a
trading day, on which the Board passes a resolution approving
the making of an offer of grant of an option to an eligible
person; (i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share on the Offer Date.

Remaining life

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general
meeting or by the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be
valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, after which
period no further option shall be granted.

COMPETING BUSINESS

During FY2020, none of the Directors, the Controlling Shareholders
or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had
any interest in any business (apart from the business of the Group)
that competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group other than being a director of the
Company and/or its subsidiaries.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Mr. Chu and Strong Oriental, each being a Controlling Shareholder
have entered into a deed of non-competition dated 1 February 2019
in favour of the Company (the “Deed of Non-competition”),
pursuant to which each of them had irrevocably undertaken with
the Company on joint and several basis (for itself and for the
benefit of each of the subsidiaries) that he/it would not, and would
procure that any of his/its associates (except any member of the
Group) would not, during the period from the Listing Date, to the
date when the Controlling Shareholders or their associates cease
to hold equity interest in the Company and they are not considered
as substantial Shareholders directly or indirectly, either on his own
account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or
company, among other things, carry on, participate or be interested
or engaged in or acquire or hold (in each case whether as a
shareholder, partner, principal, agent, director, employee or
otherwise) any business which is or may be in competition with
the business of any member of the Group from time to time.

The Company has received the confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholders in respect of their compliance with the terms of Deed
of Non-competition for FY2020.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed and
confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders have complied with
the non-competition undertaking and the non-competition
undertaking has been enforced by the Company in accordance with
its terms for FY2020.

Saved as disclosed above, during FY2020, none of the Directors,
the substantial Shareholders or the management Shareholders or
any of their respective associates has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group or has any other conflict of interests with
the Group.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in this report, the Company does not have any
other disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of
the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the Directors’ service contracts and appointment
letters, no contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
was entered into or in existence as at 31 December 2020 or at any
time during FY2020.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Group was not involved in any material legal proceeding during
FY2020.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Due to the nature of business, the Group's customers for the food
and beverage retail business were mainly individual customers who
patronise its food and beverage stalls, and customers for its outlet
management and leasing business were mainly stall tenants who
rent food stalls in the Group's food centres and food street. There
was no single customer that accounted for more than 5% of the
total revenue for FY2020.

Under the outlet management and leasing business, the Group
typically enter into tenancy agreements with stall tenants for the
rental of food stalls for terms ranging from one to five years.
Generally, such tenancy agreements the Group enter into with stall
tenants contain key terms such as the licence or lease period and
commencement date, the monthly licence fees or rental and the
minimum daily operating hours by the tenant.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (Continued)

For FY2020, total revenue attributable to the top 5 tenants
amounted to approximately S$1,438,000, or approximately 4.1% of
the total revenue, with approximately S$406,000, or 1.2%
attributable to the largest tenant. For FY2020, purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
S$8,590,000, or 48.6% of the Group’s total cost of inventories
consumed and property rentals and related expenses, with
approximately S$2,200,000, or 12.5% of the relevant cost from the
largest supplier.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), or any Shareholder
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the issued Shares) had any significant beneficial interest in the
Group's five major customers or the Group's five major suppliers.

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND GUARANTEES TO
AFFILIATED COMPANIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had not provided any financial
assistance and guarantee.

COMPLIANCE ADVISER'’S INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2020, save and except for the compliance
adviser’'s agreement entered into between the Company and
HeungKong Capital Limited (the “Compliance Adviser”), neither
the Compliance Adviser nor its directors, employees or close
associates had any interest in relation to the Company which is
require to be notified to the Group pursuant to Rule 3A.23 of the
Listing Rules.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Sufficient resources and training have been allocated and provided
to ensure the on-going compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. During FY2020, the Board is not aware of any
incidence of non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group’s business where the
Group is operating, and the Group has complied in material
respects in the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the business and operation of the Group.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of the subsequent events are set out in note 38 to
Consolidated Financial Statements for FY2020.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company had maintained the public float (i.e., at least
25% of the Company'’s total issued Shares was held by the public)
as required under the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for FY2020
are set out in the note 32 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for FY2020, and none of the related party transactions constitutes a
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction subject
to independent Shareholders’ approval, annual review and all
disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed, with the management of the
Company, the Consolidated Financial Statements for FY2020, and
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
system of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate
governance for enhancing the management of the Company as
well as preserving the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the CG
Code as its own code to govern its corporate governance practices.

In the opinion of the Directors, save for the deviations as disclosed
in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 31
to 55 of this annual report, the Company has complied with the
relevant code provisions contained in the CG Code during FY2020.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the
Company with an aim to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance.

Details of the Group's corporate governance practices can be found
in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 31
to 55 of this annual report.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If the
Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in or exercising of any
right in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult their
professional advisers.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director or other
officers of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages or
expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason
of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution
of their duties. The relevant provisions in the Articles of Association
were in force during FY2020 and as at the date of this annual
report.

Throughout FY2020, the Company has maintained appropriate
directors and officers liability insurance cover providing indemnity
against liability, including but not limited to liability in respect of
legal action against the Directors and officers thereby sustained or
incurred arising from or incidental to execution of duties of his/her
offices.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

During FY2020, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited resigned as
auditor of the Company and Fan, Chan & Co. Limited were
appointed by the Board to fill the casual vacancy so arising. A
resolution to reappoint Fan, Chan & Co. Limited as auditor of the
Company will be put forth at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Chu Chee Keong (ZHU ZHIQIANG)
Chairman

29 March 2021
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE - A8 MEIATRE

INTRODUCTION

The Group is based in Singapore with more than 16 years of
experience in the ownership and operation of food establishments.
Currently, the Group's business operations include (1) QOutlet
Management and (2) Food & Beverage Stalls.

This environmental, social and governance report (the "ESG
Report”) summarises the environmental, social and governance
("ESG") initiatives, plans and performances of the Group and
demonstrates its commitment to sustainable development.

The ESG Governance Structure

The Group has assigned staff from relevant departments to assist
in data collection and compilation of the ESG Report. The assigned
staff would periodically report to senior management, assist in
assessing, identifying and managing risks of the Group on ESG
aspects, and whether its internal control system is appropriate and
effective. The senior management reviews the ESG performance
of the Group, including environmental, labour practices, and other
ESG aspects. The senior management sets the tone at the top for
the ESG strategies, and is responsible for ensuring effective risk
management and internal controls.

SCOPE OF REPORTING

Unless specified otherwise, this ESG Report covers the Group's
overall sustainability performance, including its food establishments
and food stalls, which represent the Group’s major sources of
revenue. The ESG key performance indicator (“KPI"”) data is
gathered and included subsidiaries under the Group's direct control.
The Group will extend the scope of disclosures when and where
applicable.
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Ri5 - g kERkE (8)

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the "ESG
Reporting Guide") as set out in the Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Information relating to the corporate governance practices of the
Group has been set out in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 31 to 55 of this annual report.

REPORTING PERIOD

The ESG Report describes the ESG activities, challenges and
measures taken by the Group for FY2020.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Company values its stakeholders and its feedback regarding its
businesses and ESG aspects. In order to understand and address
their key concerns, the Company has maintained close
communication with its key stakeholders, including but not limited
to employees, shareholders, investors, customers, tenants,
suppliers, government and regulators, media, non-governmental
organisations (“NGOs") and the public.

The Company takes stakeholders’ expectations into consideration
in formulating its businesses and ESG strategies by utilising
diversified engagement methods and communication channels.
The following table shows stakeholders’ expectations of the Group
and related communication channels.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - @ NERHRE(E)

Stakeholders

Communication channels

Expectations

BHE BERE meE
Employees o Trainings, seminars and briefing o Employee health and safety
sessions ° Employee development and training
° Regular meetings o Compliant operation
° Performance reviews
== o Bl HgkERE s [EEREEZE

Shareholders and investors

BRREEE

Customers and tenants

EPLMP

Suppliers

HEm

Government and regulators

BT M B E AR

Media, NGOs and the public

REe RS R AR

o  TEHIEH

o  BHEX

o Annual general meeting and other
shareholder meetings

° Financial reports

° Announcements and circulars

° Company website

s REBFAGRAEMKRERE

o BTG

o YN & il

o YNGIFERA

° Customer satisfaction survey

° Progress meetings

° EPEmEEAL
e EEER

° Supplier management meetings
and events

° Supplier audit

o  HERBESRRXED

o HERES

° Site visits

o Financial reports

° Announcements and circulars

o B E R

o BIHRG

o NCYSE D

° Company website

° ESG report

o NGIF R

e IR HERELBWRE

e  [EEBERIKE

. AmEE

o Anti-corruption

o Compliant operation

o Food safety and quality

° Quality of products and services
provided

° Protection of customers’ and
tenants’ privacy

o Compliant operation

e RAmZEREES

e FRHEMMRBHES

o  REEPRBEFILE

o  SHEE

° Fair and open procurement
° Sustainable development of supply
chain

S N
o  HEBENAFEER
o Anti-corruption

o Compliant operation
o Payment of taxes

. RESS
. aRuE
. @

o Transparent information disclosure
° Community service

e  EHMEEEE

. 1% RS

The Company aims to collaborate with its stakeholders to improve
its ESG performance and create greater value for the wider
community on a continuous basis.

ARBEEEFNEANE  EFAHRE - i
GRERKRAENTH AT EZHRAIEE KE
-
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The management and staff of the Group’'s respective major
operations have participated in the preparation of the ESG Report
to assist the Group in reviewing its operations and identifying
relevant ESG issues and assess the importance of related matters
to its businesses and stakeholders. Based on the assessed
significant ESG issues, a data collection questionnaire was
prepared in FY2019 to collect information from relevant
departments and business units of the Group. For FY2020,
management has determined that the material ESG issues
remained unchanged from FY2019.

The following matrix is a summary of the Group's material ESG
issues included in this ESG Report.

2020 MATERIALITY MATRIX

EEMME

ERERAEETIZLENE TR ERR
TIRE - e REBRE - BIHASERTE
LENEBARERE e hkEREELNE
ZEEEHEEBRBOENEZNE - REL
FEMERRE HekERZE BAR
2019 M F EARBERINERS - URAE
*HE@%BF‘?&%W%@H&ZEﬁﬂ #2020 BF
BFEE EEECETEARE HERER
EEE2019UBFEER -

THEREBURANRE - & REAWEIEA
SEMERRE HEREAREE:

2020 MATERIALITY MATRIX

Supply chain management j
HEREE

" 2020F EEMEME
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2]
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e
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[a)

=z

<<

2 &

&

s 5 Water consumption
A ®” IKIRHRE
o K

2 & ‘Snugsﬁgggg‘é Commgmtﬁy\’:fstment
o ARERM HEBERE

w 2

g .

T ﬁg Responsible marketing
2= BEENTISEH
% i

< & *

5 o=

LA Emissions

% Pencn

L

)

=z

]

o

=

o

=

Food safety and quality
BRREELEE
Employment and
Food waste labour practices

% ERRETER

Energy consumption
S
BEIRHFE Development and training

R RS

Health and safety
(2 s

Anti-corruption
a5

SIGNIFICANCE OF ECONOMIC, ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACTS

A

During FY2020, the Group confirmed that it has established
appropriate and effective management policies and internal control
systems for ESG issues, and confirmed that the disclosed contents
are in compliance with the requirements of the ESG Reporting
Guide.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - @ NERHRE(E)

CONTACT DETAILS B 4% 75

The Company welcomes stakeholders to provide their opinions and ~ ANA T EGLEF O ERHE R RES - KER[ S
suggestions. They can provide valuable advice in respect of the &% ix & # & feedback@fuchangroup.com 2
ESG Report or its performance in sustainable development by #HAEREIRE H & NESHRE N AN BIFE A

email at feedback@fuchangroup.com. BERITENRBENEESER -
A. ENVIRONMENTAL A. RIE
A1. Emissions A1, B

The Group has integrated the “Green Environment” RERB[GBRE| MAERSE
into its decision-making process and embraced the B2 WAEAR|ZIRIE N IHERE
responsibilities to create an environmentally sustainable EBEHNET  ANBEREELRE
business. To enhance its environmental governance BRRE e B IRIEELENTE -
practice and mitigate the environmental impact AEBDEBTHINERRITENA
produced by its operations, the Group has complied HEARENRE TR HOARGRE
with the requirement of all relevant policies in the RREITHEET - ZRIAEH
Singapore’s food industry, and committed to the social RIZEBME  NEECD RIS R
responsibility of protecting the environment. FHEHEBRLEMEE - §iI/KkRE
Considering the Group’s business nature, it has taken HWERITEANERERERRR - K&EM
measures to facilitate the environmental friendliness of T ASESEERAAREEE
its business and operation in terms of energy, water K URSRIELEERNIRE
and resources saving. In the long run, it will continue to &
enhance its environmental management strategies and
minimise the environmental impacts brought about by
its operations.
During FY2020, the Group was not aware of any R2020 BFE - AE BT A
material non-compliance with the relevant BN EERAABREEEER
environmental laws and regulations in Singapore, (BIEETERIINENCGRERE
including but not limited to the “Environmental EHEIBAR))  MEAREBRLEE
Protection and Management Act” of Singapore, that REAFZENBR -

has a significant influence on the Group’s operations.
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30

Emissions

Exhaust Gas Emissions

The Group's businesses focus on the provision of food
and beverage, with limited use of motor vehicles for
travelling. Hence, the Group generates limited exhaust
gas emissions during its operation and regards exhaust
gas emissions immaterial or insignificant to its
operation. It has adopted the following measures to
mitigate the exhaust gas emissions:

° Remind employees to turn off engines for idling
vehicles; and

° Encourage the use of public transportation for
business commuting purposes.

The awareness of employees on exhaust gas emissions
has been enhanced through the implementation of the
above measures.

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions

The Group is committed to reduce GHG emissions
through more efficient use of resources and
implemented waste management systems into all areas
of the business, where possible. It has installed
appropriate equipment, such as ventilation systems,
and they are regularly inspected, maintained and
repaired with the aim to lower the GHG emissions and
reduce non-hazardous waste generation.
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BRwmE (8)

Due to its business nature, the principal direct GHG
emissions of the Group are generated from
consumption of fuels for kitchen operations and motor
vehicles (Scope 1). The principal energy indirect GHG
emissions of the Group are generated from purchased

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIR - (g K

AR ASENEREE X EH
BRERBHNREBEERRA
ERREDERE(BE) - AEEN
EBEREZ R EREIRRE
BEH(FEE2) - 120209 K F

electricity (Scope 2). During FY2020, the summary of B BREREENERETERL
GHG emissions and its intensity were as follows: PN

Indicator’ Unit 2020
BE B 2020 &
Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) tCOe 537.27
BEERERBYHE (HE1) M —SEALIRE 2

Energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) tCOe 1,424.18
REERAERBYNE (BE2) W —fLiRE =

total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and 2) tCO,e 1,961.46
RERBHERYMES (BE1M2) Wi — iR E 2

Intensity of total GHG emissions tC0O,e/S$ million revenue? 56.20

AERBERMBERE
Notes:

1. GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide
equivalent and are based on, but not limited to, “The
Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standards” issued by the World Resources Institute
and the World Business Council for Sustainable Development,
the latest released emission factors of Singapore’'s power grid,
“Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions Measurement and Reporting
Guidelines — Appendix to Part Il: Monitoring Plan” (Version 15
January 2020) issued by the National Environment Agency of
Singapore, “How to prepare an ESG Report? — Appendix Il:
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong, “Global Warming Potential Values”
from the IPCC Fifth Assessment Report, 2014 (AR5).

2. As at 31 December 2020, the Group recorded a revenue of
approximately S$34.9 million. Unless specified otherwise, the
data is also used for calculating other intensity data.
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82

The Group has adopted the following measures to
mitigate the direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) in its
operations:

o Appoint head chefs to supervise the staff to turn
off gas stoves, cooking appliances and water
heaters when not in use;

° Clear and defrost unwanted materials and thick
ice regularly from refrigerators;

° Install energy saving cooking facilities and
equipment in the food centres; and

° Set up an area in each of its food establishments
for qualified contractors to collect and dispose
used cooking oil and grease trap wastes.

Consumption of electricity is considered as the most
significant source of energy indirect GHG emissions
(Scope 2). To reduce energy consumption, the Group
has implemented measures as stated in “Energy
Consumption” of Aspect A2 below in order to enhance
energy efficiency and minimise carbon footprint.

Sewage Discharge

During daily operation, the Group generates domestic
sewage mainly in the course of food preparation and
cleaning. The Group has rigorously monitored the
disposal of sewage, and complied with relevant laws
and regulations to meet Singapore government sewage
discharge standards. Since the Group’s sewage are
discharged through the sewage pipe network to the
water reclamation plants, its sewage discharged
amount is considered as the water consumption
amount. Hence, the performance of sewage discharged
will be disclosed in the section headed “"Water
Consumption” in Aspect A2.
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Waste Management

Hazardous Waste Handling Method

Due to the Group’s business nature, it does not
generate any hazardous waste during its operation.
Nonetheless, it has established guidelines in governing
the management and disposal of hazardous waste. In
case there is any hazardous waste produced, it must
engage a qualified chemical waste collector to handle
such waste, in compliance with the relevant
environmental regulations and rules.

Non-hazardous Waste Handling Method

Food Waste

The Group’'s wastes mainly come from Food and
Beverage Stalls, including non-hazardous wastes such
as leftover or unconsumed food. With the aim of
minimising the environmental impact from non-
hazardous wastes generated from its business
operations, the Group has implemented guidelines for
food ordering and processing in the Code of Practice in
the Employee Handbook and training manual. The
Group’s employees are aware of food waste reduction
and related concepts. With the controls over food
ordering and processing, the Group is able to reduce
food waste effectively and avoid excessive food waste.
In a long run, the Group will strive to streamline its
processes for its Food and Beverage Stalls, and to use
resources in the most efficient manner.
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Paper Waste

Printing of documents in the head office is the main
source of paper waste. The Group constantly
encourages all staff to reduce paper usage by duplex
printing and adopting electronic information systems for
sharing information or internal administration
documents. It has implemented the following
procedures to encourage employees to share the
responsibilities in waste management, minimise waste
generation and promote recycling:

° Utilise electronic media for communication;

° Avoid single-use disposable items; and

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - @ NERHE(E)

R

REWERITEHEREANERK
R REBE TS REEEE TEB
EHITHREREFERRERLKE
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AEEER NIRRT ASERERE D
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BZYEEMMCERRMNA

s ERAETFERER

e  EMRER—XMRm: R

. Place “Green Message"” reminders in office and o EPRAE R RERE [IRIRN

food establishments.

With the above waste reduction initiatives, employees’
awareness on waste management has been enhanced.

During FY2020, the amount of non-hazardous waste

BIER-

Bl R BEEYHEE BB
MEEMEREBF[UES -

R2020 M E - FREENEE

generated and its intensity were as follows: BEEMBERAZENT :

Type of non-hazardous waste Unit 2020
EEBERWER B 2020 &
Food waste tonnes 11.08
Bk Mg

Paper tonnes 1.03
i A

Total non-hazardous waste tonnes 12.11
BEERVES 1A

Intensity tonnes/S$ million revenue 0.35
HE =R Ry b ol

84 K2 F&BHOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

R - g RERkE (8)

A2. Use of Resources

As a sustainability-oriented corporation, the Group
places great emphasis on environmental protection and
the efficient use of energy and resources. The Group
strives to optimise resource consumption and takes
initiatives to introduce measures on promoting resource
efficiency towards different stakeholders and adopt
eco-friendly approaches in its operations.

Energy Consumption

Purchased gas for cooking (LPG and town gas) and
purchased electricity are the major sources of energy
consumption by the Group. The Group aims to minimise
environmental impact in its operations by promoting
energy saving with various energy-efficient measures
and related policies. Regular review is conducted on its
energy objectives and targets to seek continuous
reduction in the Group's energy usage.

The Group has implemented monthly monitoring on the
usage of electricity, water and other resources.
Unexpected high consumption of electricity or water
will be investigated to find out the root cause and
preventive measures adopted. The Group has
implemented the following measures to reduce energy
consumption:

° Turn off gas stoves and water heaters when not
in use;

o Switch off idle lights during non-office hours;

° Set air-conditioners at a comfortable temperature

of 25 degree Celsius; and

o Install LED light fittings in offices and food
establishments.

A2.
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During FY2020, the energy consumption of the Group R2020 0 FE - AEEHRER

and its intensity were as follows: HEREZENT :

Type of energy Unit 2020
gERER By 2020
Electricity MWh 3,486.38
ESW) JK L

LPG MWh 2,175.88
BILAER JKEL

Town gas MWh 37.97
B JKELBF

Charcoal MWh 254.40
RIK KBS

Petrol MWh 65.14
YU JKEL

Diesel MWh 25.68
4em JKELBR

Total energy consumption MWh 6,045.45
EREREE JK L

Intensity MWh/S$ million revenue 173.22
mE KEEF B B I e

Water Consumption HKIEEFE

36

Water consumption of the Group is mainly for daily
operation, including food preparation, cooking and
cleaning of kitchen utensils. To encourage water
conservation, the Group has identified water saving
initiatives and has adopted water-saving production
methods and equipment to reduce water consumed. It
has also assigned its head chefs and outlet managers to
ensure there is no unwarranted use of water.
Furthermore, the Group has conducted regular
maintenance of water pipes to prevent leakage of water
and repair any defective component. The Group has
been strengthening its waste water practice and
programmes to align with the Group's sustainability
management approach.
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To increase water efficiency, the Group has BREBKEE  KEEDEHEI

implemented the following measures: T -

o Reduce water pressure to the lowest practicable . KB IE E REATITKFE
level;

. Install self-closing taps where practicable; and o RAfTHB R TLZEBEE

BA7KEERE © &

. Fix dripping taps to avoid leakage and wastage. e (BIEF/KHIKEETE - @R
E—TRRERE -

Through the above measures, the Group has enhanced FEIA LG AEERES TES
employees’ awareness on water efficiency. HIEKE R,

During FY2020, the water consumption of the Group MR2020 I FE - AEEHAK
and its intensity were as follows: FEZFEIT :

Water consumption Unit 2020
IR #E B 2020 &
Freshwater m? 163,426
N SR

Intensity m?3/S$ million revenue 4,682.69
mE SR BB T

Due to its operating locations, the Group has not HRELEBEMNE  AEBEWEHEIR
identified any issue in sourcing water that is fit for FESKEGE AKR EMERERE - I
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results BHRAKAGETEIRER -
achieved.
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Use of Packaging Materials

As the Group’s main business is food and beverage,
one of the main services provided to customers
includes take-away. Plastic bags and containers are the
major packing materials used in its business operation.
To minimise the usage of packing materials, the Group
has set out guidelines for staff to use packing materials
reasonably.

During FY2020, the packaging materials consumption of
the Group and its intensity were as follows:

BEMBER

RRARENEIZEBLER ¥
AEFREMNET AT EZREE
EINE - BRRRBABREERE
EBFIRNIZREMNE - REER
LEEMBNER  AEEERE
TEEERBEMBHIERES -

R2020 R - AEENER
MEDERMEZEWT

Indicator Unit 2020
BE B 2020 &
Packing materials Tonnes 73.51
DR i

Intensity tonnes/S$ million revenue 2.11
mE WE, B &N T
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As an on-going commitment to corporate sustainability,
the Group recognises the importance in minimising the
potential negative environmental impacts of its business
operations and maximising resource efficiency and
waste management. The Group regards environmental
protection as part of the Group’s business goals and
strategies, and strives to raise awareness on
environmental issues at work and in life amongst staff
through education and training, and encourages
employees’ engagement in improving the Group's
environmental performance. The Group regularly
assesses the environmental impacts of its businesses,
and supports community activities in relation to
environmental protection and sustainability. It is also
devoted to achieving sustainable development for
generating long-term value to the community and its
stakeholders.

Sustainable Ingredients

In addition, the Group is aware of the influence of the
selection of food sources to sustainability. There is
rising concerns on the selection of sustainable food
sources in society. As a responsible corporation to
protect the environment and promote sustainability, it
does not serve any endangered animal in its dishes,
such as shark fins.

A3. The Environment and Natural Resources A3.

BRERRXRER

ERYEEARFBEEROFEA
o AEERABREREXBEE
HRENEEAATZEIRAICE
IRE AR IR RERME IR
MEZM - AEEHRFRESER
BERERN—HD  BBRHER
FBN R EBETH TERE
ARERENER  UREET2
HEFAAREENRIREN - AEH
EHHEEXRBHREZE kX
FABRRBEREETFERRNT
BEE - ARETFBMNONERAR
BRER RUERRBNDEERS
BfE-

EESE 2

BEAN - N EURBFR FER YRR E
AREERMTRONTE -HER
RARRTERZBAHENRYRK
R AER—REBNRERRE R EE
ARFEERNBETEE  A&E
TEREAEARES TR
5 (Planssd) o
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B. SOCIAL
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B1.

Employment
Employment and Labour practices

Human talent is the foundation for the Group's
continued success. Therefore, employment policies
relevant to health, safety and welfare were established
to underpin the Group's responsibility towards
employees. The Group is strictly in compliance with
various laws and regulations, and also seek to
implement strict health and safety standards throughout
the Group.

During FY2020, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with employment related laws
and regulations in Singapore, including but not limited
to the “"Employment Act” of Singapore that would have
a significant impact on the Group.

Remuneration and Dismissal

To attract and retain talent, the Group strives to provide
an equal working environment for its employees. The
Group has developed a set of sound employment rules
and regulations and made clear provisions of the rights
and obligations of employees in the Employee
Handbook.

The Group highly appreciates the contributions of
employees to its development and has developed a
comprehensive remuneration package for them. The
Employee Handbook clearly states the obligations and
benefits for all employees, such as daily working hours
and annual leave entitlements. In addition to offering
competitive remuneration packages, discretionary
bonuses and share options may also be granted to
reward employees based on individual performance. A
long-service award is also set up to appreciate
employees who have worked for the Group for more
than 5 and 10 years.
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Moreover, the Group is aware of the importance of
education and the potential financial burden posed to
them as parents. Thus, it has set up the Fu Chan
Education Fund for qualified employees to reduce their
financial burden in the education of their offspring.
During FY2020, 19 employees received financial
support from the Fu Chan Education Fund.

In the event of misconduct or contravention of the
express or implied terms and conditions of
employment, the Group will only dismiss employees
after due process. The dismissal process will only be
carried out on a reasonable basis, and dismissal will be
notified in writing when the employee has persistently
committed the offence and has not improved after
repeated warnings.

Recruitment and Promotion

The Group adheres to the principles of openness and
fairness when recruiting and considers candidates
based on their merits instead of age, gender or ethnic
backgrounds. Candidates are assessed based on their
suitability for the position and potential to fulfil the
Group’s current and future needs.

The Group offers promotion and development
opportunities that is equally applied to all employees.
Through an open and fair assessment system, eligible
employees are offered the opportunity for promotion to
develop their career and encourage good performance.
Staff performance reviews are carried out regularly to
ensure that all employees can be recognised by the
Group with respect to their efforts and contributions.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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Diversity, Equal Opportunity and Anti-
discrimination

The Group appreciates the importance of cultural
diversity and is committed to provide an inclusive and
collaborative work environment that is free from
discrimination, and physical or verbal harassment on the
basis of race, religion, ethnic origin, gender, physical or
mental disability, age, marital status and sexual
orientation. The Group seeks to establish necessary
procedures to ensure all candidates are treated equally
and the employment is in compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations.

The following graphs show details of employees as at
31 December 2020:

Zuft - FPEHRERRER
REBMAAXCZTENERE -

BORREHRET KB ENTFER
B ARERER ¥ KE -
MR HBIAERRAK - Fik - B
IAAOR R ER A AR - S EgskA
SRR - AEEB NI MENTE
Fr o DIERFIEIREABSATE
FRERNTAEMEAREER -

TEZI/RR2020F12 A31 BAE
BFIE

Total Workforce (By Gender)
REE (RIERED)

65 years old or

Total Workforce (By Age Group)
REEEE (RFRAERNED)

18-30 years old

above E;o\ 59 18%305%
Female 655k A |
pegis
\ 47
31-40
51-64 years old
Male yearsold — 31405
St 512645% 99 \ 41-50
years old
A1ZE508%
Total Workforce (By Employment Type)
BB (ZEEEEES)
Parttime  ____ 34
R
270
Full-time
All of the Group's employees are engaged in Singapore. AEEMAFAEEEHIRFMNE LT
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B2. Health and Safety

Health and safety of employees in the working
environment is always the utmost concern of the
Group. To ensure a safe workplace for its employees,
the Group has established safety policies and guidelines
which set out the safety procedures and promote safety
at work sites stipulated by the relevant laws and
regulations. The Group is dedicated to providing a safe
working environment and will continue to invest in
resources and devote efforts to reduce the risks
involved in health and safety.

During FY2020, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with health and safety-related
laws and regulations in Singapore, including but not
limited to “"Workplace Safety and Health Act” of
Singapore, that would have a significant impact on the
Group.

Health and Safety

Reinforcing employees’ safety awareness is of crucial
importance to the Group. All newly hired operational
employees are required to participate in training on
occupational safety and health hazards during their
orientation. To encourage and support newly recruited
employees, training buddies are assigned to them to
ensure they are able to adapt to the new working
environment smoothly and follow safety measures. The
Group has also purchased work injury compensation
insurance and foreign worker medical insurance for its
staff.

The measures for fire emergency are embodied in
policies and guidelines to assist employees in taking
sensible immediate action should fire accidents occur.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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B3. Development and Training

The Group recognises the valuable contribution of its
talent for the sustainable growth of its business.
Nurturing talent and polishing the skills of its human
capital is crucial in striving for excellence. It is
committed to inspiring its employees for continuous
learning and improving their knowledge and job skills in
relation to food preparation and preservation, customer
services and quality control in different aspects of the
operation. This is achieved through the development of
training strategies that focuses on creating values and
serving the needs of its customers, its talent and
society.

Development and Training

The Group understands the importance of keeping its
employees abreast of the changing work environment,
job requirements as well as all other safety and
environmental practices at the workplace. Hence, apart
from on-the-job training, the Group also provides
training offered by professional training institutes or
experts to its employees.

To ensure its employees have good knowledge about
correct equipment utilisation and temperature control in
food preparation, the Group has arranged for training on
food safety and hygiene, proper temperature regulation
of food and ingredients, factors contributing to
outbreaks of foodborne illnesses and practices to
maintain good personal hygiene to all operational staff.
The Group engages food hygiene training providers
approved by the National Environment Agency and
SkillsFuture Singapore to conduct these training
courses.

In addition, the Group also facilitated seminars and
training programmes for selected staff in safety
awareness and restroom cleaning to improve their
awareness in safety and hygiene standards.
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The Group ensures that there is at least one supervisor
in each outlet to strictly implement food safety and
hygiene requirements during food processing. The
Group’'s employees receive training in alignment with
their job nature and requirements. The Group continually
assesses the training needs of its staff and emphasises
the importance of continuous learning to enhance their

competency and development.

B4. Labour Standards

Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited during
recruitment as defined by laws and regulations. The
Group is committed to eliminating all forms of forced
labour and supporting the effective abolition of child
labour. The Group is fully in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations related to prevention of

child labour and forced labour.

Prevention of child and Forced Labour

The Group has established a complete recruitment
process to examine candidates’ background and official
reporting procedures to handle any exception. The
Human Resources Department of the Group collects
personal data during the employment process and
verifies identity documents of suitable candidates to
prevent recruitment of child labour. To prevent forced
labour, working hours are clearly specified in the

Employee Handbook.

During FY2020, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with child and forced labour-
related laws and regulations in Singapore, including but
not limited to “Employment Act” of Singapore that
would have a significant impact on the Group.
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B5. Supply Chain Management
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Supply Chain Management

The Group highly values its relationship with suppliers
and places heavy emphasis on the management of
potential environment and social risks in supply chains.
Hence, the Group has established the principle of
ethical business conduct that all supply chain partners
are required to uphold. Meetings with food suppliers
and other service providers on a regular basis are set
out to ensure the provision of quality dining service to
customers. Food and beverage suppliers are carefully
selected based on factors including but not limited to
food quality, food safety management, sources of
ingredients, pricing, capacity, availability, track record,
reputation, payment method, delivery options and
schedules.

All suppliers are evaluated carefully and subjected to
regular monitoring and assessment to ensure their food
ingredients meet the stringent requirements on a
consistent basis. For other suppliers, the Group selects
them based on criteria including quality, pricing,
payment terms and availability. The head chefs are
responsible to check and inspect the purchased
ingredients and food items before they are used. The
Group diversifies the source of key ingredients suppliers
to ensure a continuous supply of this critical resource.
In case of non-conformity, the Group will reject and
return the ingredients and food items back to their
suppliers.
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B6. Product Responsibility B6. EmET

Being in the Food and Beverage industry, the Group
values the quality and safety of its food products and
aim to fulfil customers’ needs and expectations.
Through efficient internal control processes, coupled
with adherence to its policies and procedures to deliver
excellent customer services, the Group is committed to
improving food quality and services and satisfying its
customers’ expectations.

During FY2020, the Group was not aware of any
incidents of non-compliance with laws and regulations
in Singapore, including but not limited to the “Sale of
Food Act” and “Personal Data Protection Act”
(“"PDPA") of Singapore, that have a significant impact
on the Group, concerning advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.

Food Safety and Quality

The Group recognises the importance of achieving and
maintaining high food quality standard to the sustainable
growth of the Group. It is its responsibility to ensure
that the food ingredients are safe, fresh and of good
quality upon delivery, in storage and during processing.
All suppliers are evaluated carefully before selection,
and it maintains good relationship only with qualified
suppliers.

To further enhance the quality and safety of food
products, the Group continuously improves its
procurement as well as the food production processes.
The Group attaches great emphasis on quality
management to maintain high product quality. Apart
from performing regular identification of hazards, the
Group also establishes critical control points and timely
implements effective control and monitoring measures.
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The Group appoints head chefs and supervisors to
monitor quality at each of its food establishments. Their
responsibilities include inspecting the food and
beverage supplies and ingredients, overseeing the food
preparation process and monitoring the dining
environment and kitchen area. Each of the food
establishments are cleaned and sanitised by the
Group's staff in accordance with the policies and
procedures.

Customer Services and Privacy Protection

To drive the Group’s continuous improvement, it has
established multiple feedback channels, including email,
social media and facsimile, to facilitate communication
with customers and to satisfy customers’ needs. The
Group has also implemented a set of procedures to
handle customers’ complaints. Complaints received will
be handled by relevant department and action will be
taken promptly to address the identified issues.

The Group takes protection of its customers’
confidential information seriously. The policies listed in
the Employee Handbook have been established in
accordance with the PDPA. It seeks to protect the
customers’ information by employing data security
measures such as firewalls and anti-virus software. The
Group's employees are prohibited to use the personal
information of its clients for purposes not related to the
business context, no matter during employment or after
termination of employment.

Protection of Intellectual Property (“IP”) Rights
The Group believes its brand and IP rights are critical to
the success of the Group. For any infringement of its

IP, the Group would not hesitate to take action against
the infringers through the appropriate channels.
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B7.

Responsible Marketing

The Group prohibits the advertisements to disclose
descriptions, claims or illustrations that are not true. The
Group organises promotion campaigns and creates
advertising materials in compliance with the relevant
regulations and guidelines to ensure they are reliable,
reasonable, and not containing any deceitful detail or
element in order to protect consumers’ interests, rights
and benefits.

Anti-corruption
Anti-corruption

The Group believes that integrity and credibility of
employees are vital to the Group's sustainable
development. The Group has zero toleration of any
corruption, fraud and other behaviour. It values and
upholds integrity, honesty and fairness in the way it
conducts businesses.

To achieve and maintain highest ethical standards, the
Group has established a Code of Practice (the “Code”)
in compliance with related laws and regulations to serve
as the general guideline in conducting business
operations. The principles stated in the Code highlight
that all directors, officers and employees must observe
all anti-corruption laws, rules and regulations that are
relevant to the Group.

During FY2020, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering in Singapore, including but not limited to the
“Prevention of Corruption Act” of Singapore.
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B8.

Grievance Channel

The Employee Handbook sets out internal control
policies and procedures to govern the investigation and
follow-up procedures of reported fraud incidents, and it
is mandatory for employees to report any action or
behaviour of bribery or misconduct.

Community Investment
Community Investment

The Group believes that giving back to society through
social participation and contribution is a form of
responsible corporate citizenship. It also sees the
potential to nurture a caring corporate culture and
inspire its employees towards social concerns as part of
work life. By participating in activities that contribute to
the community, it can enhance the civic awareness of
its employees.

The Group participates in various community activities
to help the needy in society. In previous years, it has
arranged monthly events to help elders in the Asian
Women's Welfare Association. However, this was
suspended in FY2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic.
The Group had also made donations to various
charitable causes.

The Group is committed to developing long-term
relationships with all stakeholders and sustaining its
corporate social responsibility as a part of the strategic
development of the Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - (g hERWmE ()

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

Subject Areas, Aspects,

&8

REXZMARQAHCRE
HERERBEESDRBTRSIX

General Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
TEHE - EFEH - —REE
RERERER g 5 8H
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEAT: HHY
General Disclosure Information on: Emissions
(a)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to Exhaust Gas and GHG
emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.
—ARHEE BHERIORERBHN - MKk Y

KPI'A1.1 (“comply or explain”)

BREMERA V(T ETRER])

KPI'A1.2 (“comply or explain”)

BREIIERA 2([ FBTRER )

KPI A1.3 (“comply or explain”)

RARENIERA1 ([ A BTRERE )

KPI' A1.4 (“comply or explain”)

BREMERA A TETRER )

PRS- BEREEERYNELS

HY :
(@) BE: &
(b)) BEPHBITABEAXEZNAGE

ERBIRBIER o

The types of emissions and respective
emissions data.

BER iR AR K AR RE BE IR -

GHG emissions in total (in tonnes) and
intensity.

BERBAHNE (UNEETE) REE -

Total hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and intensity.
FrEXBEREEDRE CAETE) IR
K

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in

tonnes) and intensity.

FRELBEEREEMAE AN E) k&

B o
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Emissions — Emissions; Exhaust Gas
Emissions; GHG Emissions; Sewage
Discharge; Waste Management
PR — HERY)  BERBERL  RER
BEBERL : aKEERN  BEEMER

Emissions — GHG Emissions
B — R EREHEN

Emissions — Waste Management
(Not applicable — Explained)
P — BEEMEIR (TNER — B
)

Emissions — Waste Management

P — BERYMEE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - @ NERHE(E)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPls

TEHER EH - —REKE
RARENER

Description

t:pus

Section/Declaration

E® B

KPI' A1.5 (“comply or explain”)

BREIUERA ([ FEBTRER )

KPI' A1.6 (“comply or explain”)

BREIUERA 6([ T ETRER])

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
EBEA2: ERER

General Disclosure

— R EE

KPI' A2.1 (“comply or explain”)

RARERUERA2 V([ FBTRERE )

KPI A2.2 (“comply or explain”)
BREIUERA2.2([ FBFRER )
KPI' A2.3 (“comply or explain”)
BREIIERA23([FEBTRER )

KPI A2.4 (“comply or explain”)

BREIIERA2A( A BTRER )

102

Description of reduction initiatives and
results achieved.

BRI BRI IE R PTISAR

Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction initiatives and results
achieved.
HilEEEEREEREEYNTE R
EPENE A FEHE R FTS AR o

Policies on the efficient use of
resources, including energy, water and
other raw materials.
BREAER(BIERIR  KEREMER
MED BIBER o

Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by type in total and
intensity.

RENE DO ERE R HEERLIRERE

EREE -

Water consumption in total and
intensity.
BFEKEREE °

Description of energy use efficiency
initiatives and results achieved.

st IR (L A as 5t 8 TSR ©

Description of whether there is any
issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and
results achieved.
HSKEGE KR LR B AR RE -
RRFRKEEEIRAENR -

LA
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Emissions — Emissions; Exhaust Gas
Emissions; GHG Emissions

Bentn — BERD  BERBEEM : RER
BEHEIR

Emissions — Waste Management

B — EEMER

Use of Resources

BIREM

Use of Resources — Energy
Consumption

BIRER — ERBRE

Use of Resources — Water
Consumption

BRER — KRARE

Use of Resources — Energy
Consumption

BRER — ERER

Use of Resources — Water
Consumption

BRER — KRHER



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - @ NERHRE(E)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPls

TEHER EH - —REKE
RARENER

Description

t:pus

Section/Declaration

28 B9

KPI' A2.5 (“comply or explain”)

BIRENIERA2 ([ FBTRER )

Total packaging material used for
finished products (in tonnes) and with
reference to per unit produced.

X mPTABREMENRE (UBEETE
FEBEERMEE -

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

EEA3 : RERRARER

General Disclosure

— R E

KPI' A3.1 (“comply or explain”)

RARERIERAS ([ A BT RERE )

Aspect B1: Employment
EBEB1 : EfE

General Disclosure

—fRIER

Policies on minimising the issuer’s
significant impact on the environment
and natural resources.

BARBIT AHIRBERRAEREKREKX
FEREER

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them.
HIMEBEHHRBERRABERNEKX
FERDERDNERBHEENITE -

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.

BAF R - BB REA - TIER

HRBE - TEHEE  Zalb REE

VAR E b 5738 AR A9 -

(@) HE: &

(b) ETFTHBETABEATENIEH
EERBBIEER

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2020 & =&

Use of Resources — Use of
Packaging Materials

BIRER — BEMEHER

The Environment and Natural
Resources

RERRAER

The Environment and Natural
Resources — Sustainable Ingredients

RERRAER — A FERN

Employment

1l
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - @ NERHE(E)

Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPls Description Section/Declaration
TEGE  EH- - —REE

RERENER i B 8H
KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, Employment

RS AE IR IR B

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
BEB2: BEHEZE

General Disclosure

— R EE

employment type, age group and
geographical region.

RIER - EBEED - FiRARKRE (ERE
DHEBHE -

Information on: Health and Safety
(a)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws

and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe

working environment and

protecting employees from

occupational hazards.
FRARMZ2TIERRLRERERS REETS
BEMEER
(a) BE: &
(b) ETFTHBETABEATENIEH

ER RO ER o

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[EE B3 : #RE K&

General Disclosure

— R EE

Policies on improving employees’ Development and training
knowledge and skills for discharging

duties at work. Description of training

activities.

ERRAEEBTIERENAB R BREKE
BEBVIBR o HRTIEE -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - @ NERHRE(E)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPls

TEHER EH - —REKE
RARENER

Description Section/Declaration
g 56 8H

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEB4 : & TR

General Disclosure

—RRIREE

Information on: Labour Standards

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and
forced labour.

B EETSEHIBIA :

(@) BE: &

(b)) BEBTHBITABEAXENIEH
ERRBOINER

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[EEBS : HEEEE
General Disclosure

—RRHEE
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EEB6: EREME
General Disclosure

—RIEE

Policies on managing environmental
and social risks of the supply chain.
BB EREAIRE Rt g RMEGE o

Supply Chain Management

HrERE R

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of
redress.

BEMREERNRGSHREREZ S

BE - EHRELBEEARBR A E

Product Responsibility

EmAT

Hy -
@) BE: &
(b) ETFHETABEAFZEMAEH

ERIIROIEER o

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2020 & =&
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RiE - g ReEnks (8)

Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPls Description
TEHE - EFEH - —REE
RERENER i

Section/Declaration

Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption
[BEB7: RKES
General Disclosure Information on:
(a)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering.

—MRIREE B ILEERE 9% - BEFRERE
Hy -
(@) B R

b) ETHEHBEITABERTZENIER
ERNBROINER -

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EEBS : #HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to
understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’

interests.

—RHEE BREM T ERSER THREEMELES
SNBRAZBEDGE B EN =L
B o

Anti-corruption

Community Investment
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Independent Auditors’ Report
PRV 2 (e ey

Rooms 1007-1012, 10/F.
K. Wah Centre
191 Java Road

IR @3t BRAT A MR 2 3]

B
ld:=:
BEE 1915

Fan, Chan & Co. Limited  North point BEEBERL
Hong Kong 10718

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of K2 F&B
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 114 to 219, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirement of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2020 & =&
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

BN A RS ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

BRENEE

FRREFAFELSREESNEXHE  RARN
BEEHARENGEAMBRRERTRAER
MEE BSEHSRAMBRREBEBETER
Yttt EHERRERILEEE - MAEHI
SERBREBNER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Key audit matter

HMEEEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEERNMEEBRETER

Valuation of investment properties:

RENRME

We identified the valuation of investment properties as
a key audit matter due to the inherent level of complex
and subjective judgements and estimates required in
determining the fair values.
EERPREMEGLEERBRETFE  RARET
NEHERFREMIEER - WHEL 86 R -

The Group's investment properties portfolio comprises
food courts located in Singapore and is stated at fair
value of approximately S$126,300,000, accounting for
approximately 85.5% of the Group’s total assets as at
31 December 2020 with a fair value loss on investment
properties of approximately S$846,000 recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year then ended as
disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BEEENREMEEEBEMLRATMENERES - T
A F{EX) 126,300,000 5 10 THIER - (h EEBER
20205F12 A31 HMBEEEL85.6% * REME LN FE
B8 47846,000 5T K TENEZEZ R LFENEEE
wmREMEERERAER GG MBHRERMTE15) -
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Our procedures in relation to the valuation of
investment properties included:

BEEHREMFHEETHRFEE

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and
objectivity of the Valuer and obtaining an
understanding of the Valuer's scope of work
and their terms of engagement;

o FTEHERMEVERE - e N REEIE - TR
BT TIESEE RERIE

o Evaluating the appropriateness of the Valuer's
valuation approaches to assess if they meet
the requirements of the IFRSs and industry
norms;

o  HAMEMzZAEEBAARSEE  UFHESZ
B & HERMBHREERRITEEMNNRE



Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

BN A RS ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BEETEE

REESEEAE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEERNEEBRENSR

Valuation of investment properties: (Continued)

REWRME )

The Group's investment properties are measured using
the fair value model based on a valuation performed by
an independent qualified professional valuer (the
“valuer”). As disclosed in notes 4 and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements, in determining the
fair values of the Group’'s completed investment
properties, the Valuer has applied comparable sales
method, as appropriate, for respective properties,
which involves, inter-alia, certain estimates, including
appropriate capitalisation rates, reversionary rental
value and market transactions of comparable
properties.
EREENKREMEDBRBE Y EREEMAERM (A
B 1) ETEAE  IRAQXTERNE - HEe 5%
WEMTARGPTRE  REE BEXEEEKKRED
EZRTER - HEMERSVEERNEAERAMLL
BIHEE(RBRABAME) B8RP R(ER 8B BEE
AR E - EREERAILBYE s TSRS 2ET
st e

Challenging the reasonableness of the key
assumptions and appropriateness of valuation
models applied based on available market data
and our knowledge of the property industry and
whether the assumptions and methodologies
are consistent with those used in prior year;
BRERETSHBERESEHYETENRR
hBEETEREMEEMRAEABEELNE
BN UREBRERTERGEBEFERN
FREEF

Assessing the reasonableness of key inputs
used in the valuation, on a sample basis, by
checking to the publicly available information
on comparable market transactions, comparing
rental income, terms of existing leases to the
existing lease summary of the Group and
evaluating whether capitalization rates adopted
are comparable to market; and
FRREAAAIGHNAILRTSEXSER &
HeWARREHEKRKE EXERFEE
MEELR - ARFEAKANERNMEEEZE
BHEAISEE - M EEEREANEEH
BRAREEE &

Checking arithmetical accuracy of calculations.
mEEMTEREEMREER
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

BN A RS ()

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. WWe have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

110
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

BN AZEEN RS ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

&

MAZBE RS ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

BN A RS ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Fan, Chan & Co. Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Leung Kwong Kin
Practising Certificate Number P03702

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

=IAN

meEmEMEE WS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{Z 20204 12 A 31 HIFF/E

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Notes S$'000 S$'000
B aE F 37003 7T TN T
Revenue & 6 34,901 42,004
Fair value (loss)/gain of EMENTE(E18) s
investment properties 15 (846) 5,149
Other income, gains and losses, net HAiUg A -~ s M EIEE e 7 384 194
Cost of inventories consumed Fr R ER AR (13,482) (16,469)
Staff costs BTIKA 9 (8,295) (11,741)
Property rentals and related expenses ¥4 RAABR X (2,824) (4,304)
Management, cleaning and IR BREAMNAHAEERY
utilities expenses (1,353) (1,761)
Depreciation of property, VI BB R ERETE
plant and equipment 16 (435) (381)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTHEEEENE 17 (1,025) (1,020)
Listing expenses WX 9 - (2,125)
Other operating expenses HEmg Rz (2,850) (2,707)
Finance costs B RS AR 8 (1,708) (1,378)
Profit before tax RRBE AR T 9 2,467 5,461
Taxation fia 12 (277) (303)
Profit for the year FEERERN 2,190 5,158
Other comprehensive income Hi 2w - -
Profit and total comprehensive FEEBANEEZEWBALLLEE
income for the year 2,190 5,158
Earnings per share SREF
Basic and diluted (in Singapore cents)  ELZK K& #5E (Eransg (L) 14 0.27 0.67
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ARe MR

As at 31 December 2020 20204 12 A31 H

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Notes S$'000 S$'000
B &E F Frhn3g 7o FHE N IT
Non-current assets kREBEE
Investment properties "B 15 126,300 104,300
Property, plant and equipment ME - WMENMEKE 16 6,674 6,747
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 353 1,619
Deposits paid BRE 20 111 320
133,438 112,986
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 18 172 152
Trade and other receivables B 5 &EMpERIE 19 824 1,064
Prepayments and deposits paid ERFERE RS 20 1,419 1,979
Other financial assets HEMorEE 21 685 676
Pledged bank deposits BIRRERI T 22 1,015 15
Cash and cash equivalents ReEkBEEY 22 10,203 11,688
14,318 15,574
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables B 5N RIR 23 2,395 2,464
Accruals, other payables and FERTER - A RIER
deposits received BUIRE 24 2,719 2,752
Borrowings =R 25 3,256 3,635
Lease liabilities HE&sE 26 313 1,072
Tax payables FERTRIE 185 222
8,868 10,045
Net current assets REBEEFE 5,450 5,529
Total assets less current liabilities #BEERABER 138,888 118,515
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
A B R (B8)

As at 31 December 2020 20204 12 A31 H

2020 2019
2020 & 2019
Notes S$'000 S$'000

B FHMET  THIKT

Non-current liabilities FRBEME

Borrowings B 25 71,033 52,616

Lease liabilities HEBE 26 43 568

Deposits received Blie 24 480 189
71,556 (SIELI7/E]

Net assets FBEE 67,332 65,142

Capital and reserves BEXRFEE

Share capital A& X 27 1,381 1,381

Reserves & 28 65,951 63,761

Total equity RS 67,332 65,142

The consolidated financial statements on pages 114 to 219 of this  ZANEIRE 114 E 219 B 4RSI B REH 2021
annual report were approved and authorised for issue by the Board 43 329 BEEE & /4 MIFRET)E - WA

of Directors on 29 March 2021 and signed on its behalf by: TEEREES
Mr. Chu Chee Keong (Zhu Zhigang) Ms. Leow Poh Hoon (Liao Baoyun)
KEREE BEz=mzt
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEFE HITEF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEmEB)R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{Z 20204 12 A31 HIFF/E

Other
Share Share reserve Retained Total
Capital premium (Note) earnings equity
Hitrf s
AR R RE GBS REEF BER
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
FHMETL  FEMET O FEMET O FEMET O TEMER
At 1 January 2019 019F1A1H - - 2,790 34,105 36,895
Issue of new shares pursuant to BEE AR BITRITHRG
the capitalisation issue 1,036 (1,036) - - -
Issue of new shares pursuant to BB B E TR
the share offer 345 25,637 - - 25,982
Transaction cost attributable to BIMBRREERIHA
issue of new shares - (2,893) - - (2,893)
Profit and total comprehensive AEEGEAN ARG RE
income for the year - - - 5,158 5,158
At 31 December 2019 and R20196 12 A31H K
1 January 2020 2020F1 A1 H 1,381 21,708 2,790 39,263 65,142
Profit and total comprehensive AFEERMREERGZLE
income for the year - - - 2,190 2,190
At 31 December 2020 #2020 12 A31H 1,381 21,708 2,790 41,453 67,332
Note: The other reserve of the Group represents the reserve arising from  Misf : AEBEMEEEAEEREAAHBEEHEES

restructuring of the Group on initial public offering.

01 -

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2020 & =&

117



Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

n\/T\ E/% sz //IL 2%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{Z 20204 12 A 31 HIFF/E

2020 2019
2020 20194
S$$°000 S$'000
F# s T T
Operating activities REEE
Profit before tax B 758 A1 a5 ) 2,467 5,461
Adjustments for: BLATIER EH A -
Depreciation of property, VI BB R EREITE
plant and equipment 435 381
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE 1,025 1,020
Finance costs U ID RN 1,708 1,378
Exchange (gain)/loss FEH (W), B8 (246) 38
Income from other financial assets HmemBEERA (9) (12)
Interest income FLE A (20) (113)
Fair value loss/(gain) of BEWMENTEEE, (W)
investment properties 846 (5,149)
Loss on early termination of lease REHRIEHEEE 20 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - HEMKEEN
plant and equipment, net W e F 58 (8) (1)
Operating profit before changes EEESBEAKERR
in working capital 6,218 3,003
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and B 5 K H b WK IE
other receivables w,(FE ) 240 (5632)
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories FEdgEm, R (20) 9
Decrease in prepayments and BEFIENME N HE R
deposits paid 1,164 293
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables & 5 e FRIEIL 11, (5 4) 176 (302)
Increase/(Decrease) in accruals, other  JEtE R - A ENRIER
payables and deposits received BRS8N Crd) 258 (851)
Cash generated from RETFTEHRERS
operating activities 8,036 1,620
Income tax paid EATFTEH (362) (755)
Income tax refund FriSBiR K 48 -
Net cash generated from RETHRBRS TR
operating activities 7,722 865
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

l\‘/T\ Eﬁ\/;ﬁE%Qng\

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #{Z 20204 12 A31 HIFF/E

2020 2019
2020 20194
Notes S$'000 S$'000
P aE F 37003 7T TR
Investing activities REEE
Interest income received B2 UF B A 20 113
Purchase of property, BEMZE - BREREE
plant and equipment (377) (2,005)
Purchase of investment properties BEREME (5,086) (6,178)
Deposits paid for purchase of EEREMEENHE
investment properties (395) S
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BEMEEBATEREIE
plant and equipment 23 5
Increase in pledged bank deposit DR HRIR I TR ERIE N (1,000) -
Net cash used in investing activities REEHFFABR L EE (6,815) (8,067)
Financing activities BESEE
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITIEFRPATISFUR 5,000 -
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEN (4,622) (6,695)
Finance costs paid BB SRR (1,708) (1,378)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHERE (1,062) (999)
Proceeds from issue of shares by ARt B E R BTG
way of share offer FriS k18 - 25,982
Transaction cost attributable to issue  Z¥7TH R0 FE(L 22 B AN
of new shares - (2,893)
Net cash (used in)/generated from FEEE (FiAH) FIERLFHE
financing activities (2,392) 14,017
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ReRESEEY(RD)
and cash equivalents EHNFEE (1,485) 6,815
Cash and cash equivalents at FEEYRERESEEY
the beginning of the year 11,688 4,911
Exchange losses on cash and Re kB SEYAELEE
cash equivalents - (38)
Cash and cash equivalents at FEVNRERRESEEY
the end of the year 22 10,203 11,688
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z

120

GENERAL INFORMATION

K2 F&B Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law as an
exempted company with limited liability on 13 March 2018.
Its parent company is Strong Oriental Limited which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The shares of the
Company have been listed on the Main Board (the “Main
Board"”) of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”) on 6 March 2019. The registered office
is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The headquarters
and principal place of business in Singapore is located 51 Ubi
Avenue 1, #02-17/18, Paya Ubi Industrial Park, Singapore
408933.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the leasing, outlet and
stall management. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Singapore dollars (“S$"), which is the functional
currency of the Company. All values are rounded to the
nearest thousand (“S$'000"), except when otherwise
indicated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A SRR (8

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRSs issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB")
and the following amendments to IFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group:

° Amendments to |AS 1 and |IAS 8, Definition of Material

° Amendments to IFRS 3, Definition of Business

. Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7, Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z

2.

122

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs"”) (Continued)

Amendment to IFRS 16, COVID-19 Related Rent
Concessions

The Group has early applied the Amendment to IFRS 16,
COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions.

For rent concessions relating to lease contracts that occurred
as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic, the
Group has elected to apply the practical expedient not to
assess whether the change is a lease modification if all of the
following conditions are met:

° the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

o there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions
the same way it would account for the changes applying IFRS
16 "Leases" if the changes were not a lease modification.
Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are accounted for
as variable lease payments. The related lease liabilities are
adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in
the period in which the event occurs. The Group has early
adopted the amendment in the current accounting period.
The application has no impact to the opening retained
earnings at 1 January 2020. The Group recognised changes in
lease payments that resulted from rent concessions of
approximately S$1,068,000 in the profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A ISR M (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The Group has not applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IFRSs, Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2018-202(%

Amendments to |IAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-Current®

Amendments to IAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended Usée?

Amendments to IFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, Sale or

Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts'
Amendments to IAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of

Fulfilling a Contract?

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
impact of these new and amendments to IFRSs but is not yet
in a position to state whether these new and amendments to
IFRSs would have a material impact on its results of
operations and financial position.

2.

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2020 & =&

F& P 37 =T B R B 5 3 S
MRET B HREER ) RE
HEAMEET A (&)

C 28 5 1B 155 R A 2 3 5] Bl PR B A% 4R
o 2 B % 50 PR B S i o R RS RT AR

REME R AN ZEFHE P BHREREA N
TEEMERERZFIBEERET B RE
R & BRI F s RS RT A

28I (B
PR Bt 75

o BRI HRELER(EEIAR) - 2018
F 22020 4F B BX 81 7 # 25 2E R Y
F[F it

. REEAF1FEFTA) - B
BB RRERIFTE:?

o EBEEHEAEIRBITA)
MBS R : ERVEBRA
HIBT ISR R

s BRBMBHSEAFEIR(EET
) 2EHHEL?

o  BIRMBHmEERF 105 KBEK
SR ERE2BR(EFTR)  KE
FHABENFA E1R 2 A
BELEXTE

e BRUBBSENFE TR R

B

e BIREGFERFEI7THR(EFTAN)
ERIEEH) — BITEHIZKA?

o BRMBHRESENFIN  BFRE
FHERIZE395% - BIR M % W& £
AIE 75 BRPFEHREEREL
55 e BAER B 75 i 5 2RI 55 16 5% (12
RIAR) P R E — F 25

i M2021F1 AVBRZ BRABHFE
gﬂ?ﬁﬁi@(”

2 R2022F 1 A1 A2 &M FE
AR o

3 R2023F1 A1 B BRAKNTEE
HART A

4 REFBETNBEHR 2 #HENFE
gﬂ?ﬁﬁi@(”

AEBE R FEZ S R] BRI %R
AR e BR B 7% S ERNE AT AN
B ME R R BERL AR X AT AT BIRR B 75
SR L BERBREENET ARG
UAKBNZEXERMBRARELSE

S/ 480
A& o

123



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A SRR (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z

3.

124

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all the applicable IFRSs issued by the IASB.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for investment properties
which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based payment, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 16 Leases, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2
Inventories or value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For investment properties which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technigue that unobservable inputs is to be
used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition
the results of the valuation technique equals the transaction
price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significant of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3.

126

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses

and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Merger accounting for common control combination

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements items of the combining entities or
business in which the common control combination occurs as
if they had been combined from the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the control of the
controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or business are
combined using the existing book values from the controlling
party’s perspective. No amount is recognised with respect to
goodwill or any excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over its cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the contribution of the
controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income include the results of each of the
combining entities or business from the earliest date
presented or since the date when combining entities or
business first came under common control, where this is a
shorter period, regardless of the date of common control
combination.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between the combining entities or business are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are eliminated but considered
as an impairment indicator of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of combining entities or business have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration
fees, cost of furnishing information to shareholders, costs or
losses incurred in combining operations of the previously
separate businesses, etc., incurred in relation to the common
control combination that is to be accounted for by using
merger accounting are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (other than using merger
accounting)

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group which qualifies as
business combination, except for those acquisitions which
qualify as a common control combination and are therefore
accounted for using the merger accounting.

Under the acquisition method of accounting, subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the
date of exchange and, all acquisition-related costs are
expensed. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net
assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case
of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue and other income recognition

Under IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
("IFRS 15"), the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as
the Group performs;

° the Group's performance creates and enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group performs;
or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue and other income recognition (Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Food and beverages income

Revenue arising from the sale of food and beverages is
recognised in profit or loss at the point of sale to
customers. Revenue is after deduction of any sale
discount.

Rental income

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.

Provision of management, cleaning and utilities
services

Revenue from the rendering of outlet management
services and utilities services to the tenants are
recognised over time.

Revenue from provision of cleaning services is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the terms of the
service agreements upon rendering of services.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are
not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is
applied to the amortised cost (i.e., gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the asset.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under IFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the
terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of food centres that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption for
lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis
over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits
Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value

at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

Except for COVID-19 related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, lease payments
included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

° fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentive receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or
rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date;

o the amount expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of purchase options, if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising of an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The lease liabilities are presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for
a lease modification as a separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-
use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)
Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess
whether the change is a lease modification if all of the
following conditions are met:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

° there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions
the same way it would account for the changes applying IFRS
16 if the changes are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or
waiver of lease payments are accounted for as variable lease
payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect
the amounts forgiven or waived with a corresponding
adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in the period in
which the event occurs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of lease

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. WWhenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the commencement date at
amounts equal to the Group’s net investment in the leases,
measured using the interest rate implicit in the respective
lease. Initial direct costs (other than those incurred by
manufacturer or dealer lessors) are included in the initial
measurement of the net investments in the leases. Interest
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term except for
investment properties measured under fair value model.
Variable lease payments for operating leases that depend on
an index or a rate are estimated and included in the total
lease payments to be recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income when they
arise.

Interest and rental income which are derived from the
Group's ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Classification and measurement of lease (Continued)
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease
components, the Group applies IFRS 15 to allocate the
consideration under the contract to each component. Non-
lease components are separated from lease component on
the basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the consolidated
entities, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At each reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. S$) using exchange rate prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that
period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the
transaction are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of exchange reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to
an expense item, it is recognised as profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the
grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as profit or loss in
equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related
asset.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Government grants (Continued)

When the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets, the
asset and the grant are recorded at nominal amounts and
released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a
pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset
by equal annual instalments.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they become receivable.
Government grants relating to compensation of expenses are
deducted from the related expenses.

Employee benefits
Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group makes contributions to the Central Provident Fund
("CPF") scheme in Singapore, a defined contribution pension
scheme. These contributions are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they become payable in accordance
with the scheme. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.

There were no forfeited contributions utilised by the Group to
reduce existing level of contributions for each of the years/
periods.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “Profit before
taxation” as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and their respective tax bases used
in computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

(b)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

(b)

Deferred tax (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time, rather than through
sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group
first determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not
recognised at initial recognition and over the lease
terms due to application of the initial recognition
exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EASHBEK(E)

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued) | (&)

(¢) Current and deferred tax for the reporting period (c) RMBEHEAEHRIELRE
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, BVEA R AE R IE A B e TR - MERD
except when they relate to items that are recognised in Hi R EFS TE B N E fh 2 TR U 2 3k
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in BHERERERNIER BERER
which case, the current and deferred tax are also SN FEREIER T - BIHR R AR ERL I8
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly TR B E fih 2 T W25 Bk B B i
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax =IER - AEBE T ARME
arises from the initial accounting for a business AR B SR TR - B
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting BAAEBESHSETERE -

for the business combination.

(d) Goods and services tax (“GST") (d) BEREEEH(HRRERBEHD
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of WS A MEETRE S MR
the amount of GST except where the GST incurred on a BHESEER  HEEEENRE
purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from BB E A i m MRS T T e m B 1%
the taxation authority, in which case the GST is HERFUL IR AN - A IER T © B ok
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset RRBRER AW IEEEKAT—
or as part of the expense item as applicable. Mo BEXEEN— o (W0iE

) -
Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of FEW R TE R FEM FIBEEE BTN
GST included. R o R RS 2 B — 0151 8K o
The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, FE UK Sk RS R A5 i A e R M AR S R
the taxation authority is included as part of other SHEER ?v?;/:l\ﬁﬁkﬂﬁxﬂﬁﬁ)\ﬁ@f
receivables or payables in the consolidated statement e FRIA Sk RS FRIE R — 2B

of financial position.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production
or supply of goods and services, or for administrative
purposes (other than construction in progress), are stated at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Freehold land is stated at cost and not depreciated.
The property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the

straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Office building 50 years
Furniture and fittings 3 years
Food establishment and office equipment 3 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items (other
than construction in progress) over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account of their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any,
and the carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or
loss in the year in which the item is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
therelevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (“CGU") to which the asset belongs.

K2F&BHOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUALREPORT 2020

EREFEE(H)

REME

REMFER/IFEARNAE S K EE KIZ
Bz -

AR - REMEREA (BEEM
BEEEERZEE - RYIPHERE - &
BYMEDRATEINEQAFEZBNE
mﬁ@u/u °

BREMENLERIEREVEKED
BEAREHEZYETEEREM
REALBEN s b5 42 A FERR - KR ILTER Y
EFrEL 2 EMRREEE(RZEELZ
HEMBSHREFREEEZREELE
%E AE)REIEERZDENERET AR

o

BX &

FEMEE (BERIN) BIE

RIFER A EEEHEDE - BE

REARFREEENRTE  UAE
EERBEAMNBRERZESEED TR
BEERE- - MEETRNZSTR  Ale
HEEEEEN T NE S EUAETRE
BB (E) 22E -

W - RS N AR A DA K fik R #E A EE L
fAET AT UL E 2 58 o i K (B Bl f4 5t AT U
& MAKEGTEEMBRSE
ABEN(REELBEMDWAIKEIESE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

;\‘/T\

S BHRWE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or the CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or CGU) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average cost
basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest and dividend income which are derived from the
financial assets and shareholders’ rights are presented as
other revenue and other income.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income ("FVTOCI"):

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application of IFRS 9 or initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in other comprehensive income (“OCI") if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which IFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

K2F&BHOLDINGS LIMITED / ANNUALREPORT 2020

EREFEE(H)

TRI A&
ERMEE (H)

ETHEENTBREL]E (H)

A TR ZEMEERLRIRAFE
AtAEMEEKE ((EDFEFT AR
2EKE])EE

. ‘f?ﬂﬁ??ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ’%&%@
ABHRERENEBERXTES
&

s BNEFNFTEAHEENESR
EERXNAERREERAEHF

B o
o

FrEREMESREERLRIRAFERAR
At E o BRERERBEERMBERSEER
FORANEBEREMEEZASN - W
PEHE 15 B 0 R H5 1F B B I IF BB B 75
SEAEIREFAHFERNRB TR
XA RN NARE  AEEA
EETAHEEZRRERE QA TFENE
BECII TR EMEE RS ((HME2E
Wz )



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

;\‘/T\

S BHRWE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

(i)

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at
which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the
cumulative amortisation using the effective interest
method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before
adjusting for any loss allowance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and effective interest method (Continued)

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and at FVTOCI. For
financial assets other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset. If, in
subsequent reporting periods, the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is

included in the “Other income, gains and losses, net”
line item (note 7).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (Continued)

(ii)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at

FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent
they are not part of a designated hedging relationship.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset
and is included in the “Other income, gains and losses,

net” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
loss (“ECL") on financial assets which are subject to
impairment under IFRS 9 (including trade and other
receivables, deposits paid, pledged bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial

recognition of the respective financial instrument.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting period.
Assessment are done based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting period as well as

the forecast of future conditions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually and/or collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost
or effort. Forward looking information considered
includes the future prospects of the industries in which
the Group's debtors operate, obtained from economic
expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies,
relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as
well as consideration of various external sources of
actual and forecast economic information that relate to
the Group's core operations.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial
instrument, e.g., a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant determination in
the operating results of the debtor; and

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if:

1. it has a low risk of default (i.e. no default history);

2.  the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

3. adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit
risk when it has internal or external credit rating of
investment grade in accordance with the globally
understood definition.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that financial
assets that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable:

° when there is a breach of financial covenants by
the counterparty; or

° information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in
full (without taking into account any collateral held
by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iif)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(a)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event (see (ii) above);

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower'’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts
are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
the assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater
for cases where evidence at the individual instrument
level may not yet be available, the financial instruments
are grouped on the following basis:

° nature of financial instruments (i.e., the Group’s
trade receivables are assessed as a separate
group. Other receivables and deposits paid are
assessed for expected credit losses in an
individual basis);

° past-due status;

o nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° external credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification of financial liabilities or equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount

of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the reporting date, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money

is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the

receivable can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R TE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

() the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiaries is related to the
others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group which the other entity is a
member);

(i) both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;
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3.

164

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties transactions (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); or

(viii) the entity or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or the Group's parent.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealing with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources, or obligations between
the Group and a related party, regardless of whether a price
is charged.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group's executive directors, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purpose of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of the Group's various lines
of business and geographical locations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A ISR M (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’'s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, which are not restricted as to use.

Dividends

Dividends proposed by the Directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained earnings within the equity
section of the consolidated statement of financial position,
until they have been approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. When these dividends have been approved
by the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a
liability.
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166

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

In the applications of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of trade and other receivables and
deposits paid

Upon adoption of IFRS 9, the management estimates the
amount of loss allowance for ECL on trade and other
receivables and deposits paid that are measured at amortised
cost based on the credit risk of the respective financial
instruments and counterparty. The loss allowance amount is
measured as the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows with the consideration
of expected future credit loss of the trade and other
receivables and deposits paid. The assessment of the credit
risk of the trade and other receivables and deposits paid
involves high degree of estimation and uncertainty. When the
actual future cash flows are less than expected or more than
expected, a material impairment loss or a material reversal of
impairment loss may arise, accordingly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

The Group reviews its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets for indications of impairment at each
reporting period. In analysing potential impairments identified,
the Group uses projections of future cash flows from the
assets based on management’s assignment of a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Income tax expense

The Group has exposure to income taxes in Singapore. In
determining the income tax liabilities, management is
required to estimate the amount of capital allowances,
deductibility of certain expenses and applicable tax incentives.
There are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recognised,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
income tax recognised in the period in which such
determination is made. The carrying amounts of the Group's
current income tax liabilities as at 31 December 2020 were
approximately S$185,000 (2019: approximately S$222,000).
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4.

168

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Depreciation

ltems of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful life of the assets, after taking into account
the estimated residual value. The Group reviews the
estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation expense to be
recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives are
based on the Group's historical experience with similar assets
and taking into account anticipated technological changes.
the depreciation expenses for future period are adjusted if
there are significant changes from previous estimates.

Fair value measurements and valuation process

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The
management works closely with the qualified external valuers
to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
to the model.

Further information on the carrying amounts of these assets

and the valuation technigues and inputs are provided in note
15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A ISR M (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z

5.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management’s purpose, the Group is organised into two
operating business segments, namely:

(a) Rental and outlet management

The business segment of rental and outlet management
operation is involved in the leasing of food
establishment premises to tenants and the provision of
cleaning and utilities services to tenants (the “Rental
and Outlet Management”).

(b) Food and beverage stalls

The business segment of food and beverage stalls
operation primarily involves in the retailing of beverage,
tobacco products, and cooked food directly to
consumers such as mixed vegetable rice, zi char,
roasted meat and chicken rice located in food
establishments operated and managed by the Group
and third parties (the “"Food and Beverage Stalls").

Inter-segment revenue from service income and rental
income are priced with reference to prices charged to
external parties for similar services or premises, and inter-
segment management fee revenue included in service
income is charged at a mark up percentage over the staff
costs.

Management monitors the operating results of its business
units separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss
which in certain respects is measured differently from
operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial
statements.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 4.
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, directors’
emoluments, exchange gain/(loss), bank interest income and
finance cost arising from lease liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EREARNTE(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %= 20204 12 431 HiFF/E

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. REDHER(F)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020: HZE2020F 12 A31ALLEE :
Rental and Food and
outlet Beverage
management Stalls  Unallocated Total
ek
EHER BHUEQ AOE @t
$$'000 $$'000 $$'000 $$'000

T g T T T4 M T TH g T

Segment revenue ik 16
External revenue from contracts RERFAHM
with customers e 2,103 28,250 - 30,353
External rental income SN EMA 4,548 - - 4,548
6,651 28,250 - 34,901
Inter-segment revenue oz
— Rental and service income —HSWA 13,991 - - 13,991
Elimination HH (13,991) - - (13,991)
6,651 28,250 - 34,901
Segment profit/(loss) DEWEF/(FE) 1,423 3,403 (2,359) 2,467
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %= 20204 12 431 HiFF/&E

5.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. REHHER(FE)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020: (Continued) BZ2020F12831HILFEE : ()
Rental and Food and
outlet Beverage
management Stalls  Unallocated Total
ek
EHER BHRENQ AAE @t
S$000 $$'000 $$'000 $$'000
T T TR T FHME T T30
Other segment information HitrpHER
Included in the measures of segment  REFES ST/ (BB)
profit/(loss) and segment assets: B BEERTA
A& -
Fair value loss of investment properties &Y A TEEE (846) - - (846)
Finance costs BT AR AN (1,636) - (72) (1,708)
Addition to non-current assets (Note) ERBEERE (M) 23,112 60 51 23,223
Depreciation of property, plant NE - BERRETE
and equipment (222) (96) (117) (435)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE (840) (185) - (1,025)
Staff costs BIRA (1,256) (5,334) (1,705) (8,295)
Property rentals and related expenses ~ ¥1%E4 RiAEHE X (2,113) (711) - (2,824)
Gain on disposal of property, plant HENE BE
and equipment Bclioles - 8 - 8
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e M HmARNE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %= 20204 12 431 HiFF/E

5.

172

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. K&EHIER (&)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020: (Continued) HBZ2020F12 831 HILFEE : ()
Rental and Food and
outlet Beverage
management Stalls  Unallocated Total
ek
EHERE BHUER AAE @t
$$000 $$'000 $$°000 $$'000
FHMER FHMER FHME T T MK
Reportable segment assets THREPHEE 136,453 6,022 - 142,475
Other financial assets EhemEE - - 685 685
Pledged bank deposits BIERRITER - - 1,015 1,015
Other unallocated assets: HittRDREE -

— Property, plant and equipment — W% BEIEKE - - 3,581 3,581
Consolidated total assets SREEAE 136,453 6,022 5,281 147,756
Reportable segment liabilities AEHAHEE 76,845 2,945 - 79,790
Tax payable FENTIE - - 185 185
Other unallocated liabilities: HitxD i EE

— Accruals and other payables —EHERAK

HiERFE - - 449 449
Consolidated total liabilities ReBEeE 76,845 2,945 634 80,424
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %= 20204 12 431 HiFF/&E

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. REFIER (&)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019: HZE2019F 12 A31HIEFE ¢
Rental and Food and
outlet Beverage
management Stalls Unallocated Total
ek
[RHER R AP Bar
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
T FHmHE T T FH KT
Segment revenue ik 16
External revenue from contracts KERFAHM
with customers SMERUIA 2,398 34,068 - 36,466
External rental income SNBTREMA 5,538 - - 5,638
7,936 34,068 - 42,004
Inter-segment revenue ARG
— Rental and service income — e RRBBA 17,933 - - 17,933
Elimination 155 (17,933) - - (17,933)
Segment revenue from external REMIEFH
customers 2BWEH 7.936 34,068 - 42,004
Segment profit/(loss) AR,/ (F8) 7,696 2,405 (4,640) 5,461
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5.

174

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. K&EHIER (&)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019: (Continued) HZ2019F12 A31HILFE : (8)
Rental and Food and
outlet Beverage
management Stalls Unallocated Total
ek
ERER EHlEhL Aol w5t
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
T T FETIEIT FEgT FEgT
Other segment information HitnpHEH
Included in the measures of segment  REFESH%HF/(BB)
profit/(loss) and segment assets: RO BEERTA
ATEIE -
Fair value gain of investment properties R &WEAFEU 5,149 - - 5,149
Finance costs BTSP AR (1,315) - (63) (1,378)
Addition to non-current assets (Note) ERBBERE (F:T) 16,014 2,570 1,929 20,513
Addition to right-of-use assets FREEERE - 784 - 784
Depreciation of property, plant 0¥ BERRETE
and equipment (101) (204) (76) (381)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE (667) (353) - (1,020)
Staff costs BIHR (1,808) (7,749) (2,187) (11,741)
Property rentals and related expenses #1214 RiBEH Y (2,926) (1,378) - (4,304)
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE BE
and equipment PE e - 1 - 1
Note: Non-current assets included investment properties and property, plant MisT : SERBEEBEIREMEURDE BEL

and equipment
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z

l\‘/T\

5.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. RK&EHIER(HE)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019: (Continued) HZ2019F 12 A31 HILFE : (8)
Rental and Food and
outlet Beverage
management Stalls  Unallocated Total
Hek
BT BB vl Bt
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
FHIEIT  FEOET O TR FEINET
Reportable segment assets ARESWEE 118,084 5,845 - 123,929
Other financial assets HihemiE - - 676 676
Pledged bank deposits BEIRRI TR - - 15 15
Other unallocated assets: Hit R LEE
— Property, plant and — W% HE
equipment B - - 3,624 3,624
— Trade and other receivables —BHREM
e IR - - 316 316
Consolidated total assets GREEEHAE 118,084 5,845 4,631 128,560
Reportable segment liabilities AEHAHEE 59,348 3,718 - 63,066
Tax payable EATE - - 222 222
Other unallocated liabilities: Hib kol aE
— Accruals and other payables — EFERR
H e 5a - - 130 130
Consolidated total liabilities HEBEA% 59,348 3,718 352 63,418
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l\‘/T\ ﬂw&#&% IZTT IIIE (l\\/\)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; % 20204 12 A 31 HiFF/Z

5. OPER_ATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. RK&EHIER(HE)
(Continued)
Information about major customers EBEXEEZEFHNEHR
No single major customer contributed more than 10% of the BiEE —FEXPEAEEBKREERR
Group's total revenue. The revenue is spread over a broad 10% - e DR EZEFE -
base of customers.
Geographical information IR E R
The Group operates mainly in Singapore with revenue Z’RE?IREA*EMEA@EL ez TR
generated in Singapore. Accordingly, an analysis of revenue *EZJED B o !Jit; ﬁxfﬂ&fﬁﬁ 73 5 )
and non-current assets of the Group by geographical AREKEREED
distribution has not been presented.
6. REVENUE 6. W=
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
S$$°000 S$'000

FHMET  THIET

Revenue from contracts with customers ZF & QK

Sales of goods at a point in time RE—RREEEECER
— Sales of cooked food, beverage —HEAR - KM
and tobacco products MEEER 28,250 34,068
Services income over time R—ERREA 2 BRF A
— Provision of management, —REEE  BEK
cleaning and utilities services NASEERS 2,103 2,398
30,353 36,466
Revenue from other sources Hth 3R =
Rent from leases of premises to tenants  [A7E = HFAZHHTE S 4,548 5,538
34,901 42,004
7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 7. HHIWA  WEREBEEFEE
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
S$'000 S$'000
F 37003 7T TR
Gain on disposal of property, HEYE BMENEEZ
plant and equipment, net W EsF%8 8 1
Exchange gain/(loss) PE 5 U zs(E518) 246 (38)
Interest income FBUA 20 113
Sundry income HETEIE A 110 118

384 194
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %= 20204 12 431 HiFF/&E

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. B A
2020 2019
2020 20194
S$’000 S$'000

FHMET  THIKT

Interest on borrowings == Gorlist 1,666 1,321
Interest on lease liabilities HEaBENFE 42 57
1,708 1,378

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9. PBREIANER
2020 2019
2020 20194
S$$000 S$'000

FHMEIT  THEHIHT

Profit before tax is arrived at after B AR A TR 0RR A N & 1818
charging the following items: ER
(a) Staff costs (including director’s (a) EIA(BIEEEHE)
emoluments)
Salaries and benefits (Note) Fe@A () 7,698 11,066
Contribution to defined contribution EREFURIRGTEIAHR
retirement plans 597 675
8,295 11,741
(b) Other items (b) EMhIEE
Auditor's remuneration 1% D 37 B
— annual audit services — FEZHRE 100 132
— listing services (included in — EWRB GTA
listing expenses) EmHAX) - 781
Listing expenses WX - 2,125
Expenses relating to AR EEENRE
short-term lease 2,824 4,304
Note: For the year ended 31 December 2020, COVID-19 related government MisE © #ZE 202012 A31 HILFE © BCOVID-19
grants or assistance amounted to S$2,027,000 have been offset against 1 7 %12,027,000 7 h0 3% 7T 69 BT 74 B 3%
staff costs. EHEEBEE TR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EREARNTE(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %= 20204 12 431 HiFF/E

10. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS 10. EEEHE
Details for the emoluments of each director of the Company AARZESNMEA AN F S0
during the reporting period are as follows: T

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BZ2020512A31BLLEE
Contributions
to defined
contribution Other
Directors’ Discretionary  retirement short-term
fees Salaries bonuses plan benefits Total
ERMTEN Hit
Ezne E2ic BERA  ENER BHEN #st
$$'000 $$'000 $$'000 $$000 $$'000 $$'000

THOET FTHHMRT FHMET  FHORT THIRT THRMRT

Executive directors: HITESE:
Mr. Chu Chee Keong REBEE(TREE]

(Zhu Zhigiang) (“Mr. Chu”) - 550 46 12 - 608
Ms. Leow Poh Hoon BEzut([Bat))

(Liao Baoyun) (“Ms. Leow") - 150 75 12 - 237
Ms. Chu Pek Si (Zhu Peishi)  &flid&+ ([k&t])

("Ms. Chu") (Note (a)) (3t (@) 20 16 2 3 - 41

Independent non-executive BYEHTES

directors:
Mr. Wong Loke Tan Wong Loke Tan %4
(“Mr. Wong") (Note (b)) ([Wong %4])
(P& (b)) 26 - - - - 2
Mr. Loh Eu Tse Derek EBTRE(EEE])
("Mr. Loh”) (Note (c)) Rz (c)) 26 - - - - 2
Mr. Mah Seong Kung DERNEE(SEE])
(“Mr. Mah”) (Note (d) (Pt5E(d) 31 - - - - 31
103 716 123 27 - 969
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

10. EXM< (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE2019F 1231 BIEFE
Contributions
to defined
contribution Other
Directors’ Discretionary retirement  short-term
fees Salaries bonuses plan benefits Total
ERHFRA Hith
ESHe e  BEEL GENMK REEN @it
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
T TR TEMET O FEET TRIRT  FENET
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Chu REE 40 510 186 19 - 755
Ms. Leow Bit - 147 53 19 - 219
Non-executive director: FHITES
Ms. Chu (Note (a)) Rt (@) 21 4 - 1 3 29
Independent non-executive B EHTES
directors:
Mr. Wong (Note (b)) Wong %&£ (FizE (b)) 21 - - - 3 24
Mr. Loh (Note (c)) BRAE () 21 - - - 3 24
Mr. Mah (Note (d) D& (M () 25 - - - 3 28
128 661 239 39 12 1,079
Notes: B E

(a)

(c)

Ms. Chu has been re-designated as an executive director with effect
from 10 October 2020.

Mr. Wong has been appointed as an independent non-executive director
of the board on 1 February 2019.

Mr. Loh has been appointed as an independent non-executive director
of the board on 1 February 2019.

Mr. Mah has been appointed as an independent non-executive director
of the board on 1 February 2019.

(a) RETEHAERHITESE - 52020F 104

10 BAR -

(b)  WongstE£R20196 21 HEZTAES

SEMIFRITES -

(c) ELXER2019F 2 1HEZTAERESHE

SIIEMITES o

(d) DEER2019F2 1 BRZTAEEESE

SIFEITEE -
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S BHRWE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; % 20204 12 A 31 HiFF/Z

10.

11.

180

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The Company’s executive directors’ emoluments shown
were mainly for their service in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The Company’'s independent non-executive Directors’
emoluments shown was mainly for their services as directors
of the Company.

The remuneration shown above represents remuneration
received and receivable from the Group by these directors in
their capacity as employees to the Group and/or in their
capacity as directors of the Company during the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019 respectively. None of the
directors agreed to waive or waived any emoluments during
the year (2019: Nil). The Company's executive directors’
emoluments shown were mainly for their service in
connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group. The Company’s non-executive
directors’ and independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for their services as
directors of the Company.

EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS
Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid employees during the year included 2

(2019: 2) directors and details of whose emoluments are set
out in note 10 above. Details of the emoluments of the

10. EEM< (&)

11.

FIRZARBIRITESNNEEEIESR
HHEBARNRERAEE EEEBEN
BR#S 2 &5 o

IRz ARBBIFAITESTNME
EREERRNRBEZNRBE 2L -

XTI eEZEEZ U RIEARN
EEREEHE FUARBEETFH
DRI A £ B # = 2020 F K 2019412
A31BLEFEEREERNIE - REF
N BEEZEREREIB2EAHE
(2019%F : &) - ITWARRNITES
e FBIEARHEEEBARNRIRALEE
ZEBHEBRE MY - EXFIRAR
AIEMTTESE RENENTEZNIE
FTEABSETARARESMmK

12 & %

TEBRSHFMAL

RAEE  BRGEFHEEDRIBE2
% (20194 : 2%)§$ mENM

SER EXHIEE10 RARFE 13

remaining 3 (2019: 3) highest paid employees who are not a (20194 : 3% mmFBlES (MWIHE
director during the year are as follows: B)WMEeFBOT
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
S$$'000 S$'000
F# I T T
Salaries, other allowances and e EMEBREWET
benefits in kind 531 458
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 22 28
Contributions to defined contribution TF R FGRIRETE A H R
retirement plan 47 42
600 528
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
ARE ISR MR (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z

11. EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 11. EEEHM (&)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued) EEBRSEHMAL (&)
The number of non-director highest paid employees whose HHELA TSHENIFEEEaHWES
emoluments fell within the following bands is as follows: ANEIAT -
2020 2019
2020 & 2019

Nil to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to
Nil to S$175,439)
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

% 1,000,0008 7T (HHERE
Z 175,439 FH AN IT) 1 2
1,000,001 /87T % 1,500,000 7% 7T

(equivalent to S$175,439 (M 175,439 F N T
to $$263,333) % 263,333 00 T) 1 -

12.

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
(equivalent to S$263,333

to $$350,877) 350,877 # % T)

1,500,001 7T % 2,000,000 7 7T
(H85 7 263,333 T IR T E

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
(2019: Nil). None of the five highest paid individuals have
waived any emoluments during the year (2019: Nil).

TAXATION

No provision of taxation in Hong Kong has been made as the
Group's income neither arose in nor derived from Hong Kong.

The Singapore Corporate Income tax (“CIT") rate was 17%
(2019: 17%) during the year. Income tax expense for the
Group relates wholly to the profits of the subsidiaries, which
were taxed at 17% in Singapore. Major components of
income tax expense for the year are:

12.

RAEE  AEBHERTE RSN
AT ZHEHE - EBIMAKREBSEINA
AEBE R LR EABB®HES (2019
F o E) RAFE  ZABZaHFHA
TR ET A B S (20194F © &) -

BIR

BHRAEEOBALIFKEHRIEE
B MU EPEBHIAELBE -

RAFEE - 2SR ([
BRI EAE17% (20194 : 17%) - A"N&E
E AT B R R 2 58 2 E I B A R AYE A
B ZEMBERRRIINEIE17% 8
FREREF - RAFENEHALZEE
RIS A

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
S$'000 S$'000
F F N3k 7T FET N T

Current tax: BNEATIE -
Singapore CIT IS 185 202
Under provision in respect of prior years BT EEEETE 92 101
277 303
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12.

13.

182

TAXATION (Continued) 12. BIE (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before BAQNBMBARMERZT AT EBRK
tax at the statutory rate for country in which the Company’s RSNt EN S ER Y HIRE
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expenses at the effective R RAENHIERE TSRO T
tax rates is as follows:
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
S$'000 S$'000
F % hn 3 7T TFE T
Profit before tax B R A& A 2,467 5,461
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 17% HETHRENT7% (20195 1 17%)

(2019: 17%) STERBIE 419 928
Non-deductible expenses AR & 267 390
Non-taxable income EHEHBWA (397) (875)
Effect of tax exemption and tax relief IR MR T E (146) (241)
Unutilised tax losses previously S RIARERRE B IBEE

not recognised (31) -
Tax losses not recognised ﬂiﬁE REIAE 8 73 -
Under provision in prior years BEFEBRERENZ 92 107
Taxation charge HIEX H 277 303

No provision for deferred tax was made during the period as
the amount was insignificant (2019: Nil).

DIVIDENDS

The Directors of the Company do not recommend the
payment of any final dividend for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019. No interim dividend was declared
during 2020 and 2019.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z

14.

15.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year of approximately S$2,190,000 (2019:
approximately S$5,158,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of the Company in issue during
the year is 800,000,000 shares (2019: 764,931,507 shares)

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the weighted average
number of ordinary shares for the purpose of calculating basic
earnings per share have been adjusted for the effect of the
completion of the initial public offering relating to the listing
of the Company's shares on the Main Board (the “Share
Offer”) on 6 March 2019.

14. BREF
FREAABFMNDBPERAFESFLY
2,190,000 113 7t (20194F : 495,158,000
) RARRRAEEDBITE R
% 2 N 3 £5 B% £ 800,000,000 f% (2019
£ 764,931,507 B)sHE o

HE2019F12A31BILEE - AxtE
BRERZFN L BRINEFHERE
RKABKHF2019F3 A6 BEER £
THEXAAAZEE((ROBE] TR
FEERAE -

No dilutive earnings per share is presented as there were no EEI RZMEFESETA D RITETE
potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue during both years. SELCERR WA Z2Y|ERREERF -
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REWEE
Total
st
S$'000
TR TT
Fair value A¥EE
At 1 January 2019 720191 A1 H 83,650
Additions INE 15,501
Net gain arising from change in fair value KEYEN T ESEEANFRE
of investment properties 5,149
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 72019912 A31 B % 2020F1 A1 H 104,300
Additions VN1 22,846
Net loss arising from change in fair value REMENTEESELNFER
of investment properties (846)
At 31 December 2020 R 202012 A31H 126,300

In relation to the additions of investment properties during
the year at an aggregate consideration of approximately
S$22,846,000 (2019: S$15,501,000), the purchase
consideration was settled by deposit paid of S$nil (2019:
approximately S$750,000), borrowings of approximately
S$17,760,000 (2019: S$8,573,000) and payment by the Group
during the year of approximately S$5,086,000 (2019:
S$6,178,000).

B 78 F WA 1R (B %) 22,846,000 57 03
JC(20194F : 15,501,000 ¥ M T ) R E
RIREMEMNS  BEREBEUNESHHEE
#n # T (20194 : #9750,000 %7 1
7T ) 18 3 4917,760,000 ¥ h0 3% 7t (2019
% : 8,573,000 FT M3 TL) KA EBRFR
5 3% #75,086,000%7 f0 3 JT(20194F :
6,178,000 ¥ i o) 458 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z

15.

184

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The investment properties of the Group consist of 9 (2019: 9)
food centres that are held under leasehold interests and 1
food centre (2019: 1) that is held under freehold interest to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation as at 31 December
2020 and 2019, all of which are located in Singapore. The
investment properties are stated at fair value. Fair value is
estimated by the management of the Company with
reference to valuation report provided by an independent
valuer, Knight Frank Pte. Ltd. (2019: Jones Lang LaSalle
Property Consultants Pte. Ltd.), who holds a recognised and
relevant professional qualification and has recent experience
in the location and category of the investment property being
valued. The fair value measurements of the investment
properties are categorised as Level 3 valuation. The Group's
investment properties’ fair values are determined using
comparable sales method and income capitalisation methods.

The valuations that have been arrived at using comparable
sales method were determined by reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties in the
similar locations and conditions. The valuation that have been
arrived at using income capitalisation method were
determined by capitalising the market rentals of all lettable
units of the properties by reference to the rentals achieved in
the lettable units as well as other lettings of similar properties
in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate adopted is made
by reference to the yield rates observed by the valuer for the
similar properties in similar locality and adjusted based on the
valuer’'s knowledge of the factors specific to the respective
properties. There was no change in the valuation technique
used to determine the fair values of each of the respective
investment properties in 2020.

The fair values of the investment properties were derived
using valuation technique with unobservable inputs being
used which could result in significantly higher or lower
amounts of the fair values being measured, hence are
categorized as Level 3 valuations.

In estimating the fair value of investment properties, the
highest and best use of the Group’s investment properties is
their current use. The fair value of certain investment
properties have been adjusted to exclude prepaid or accrued
operating lease income to avoid double counting.
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15.

REW= (&)

R 2020F X 201912 A31H » A% B
I E W EBIEIE (20194 : 81@) M
HEREZEENERES X1M(2019
FoE)AXKAEEBTEERNAS
k/SREEAFERENERTL &2
EBRLRF N - REWMETIARTEF
ARFEHARFERELEL2EE
37 {& 1& B Knight Frank Pte. Ltd (2019
% : Jones Lang LaSalle Property
Consultants Pte. Ltd.) IR E R
EY  ZB Y AEMTA SRR
BEEEYE  THKEHEREDENE
B R FTB AR A RS - 1REY
¥R FEFEIEAE=RFE &~
EENKREMERATFERAITELR
HEERRBENOEERE -

ERATELEHE R FHNEEDESR
ZHRE I MR BUN KR 5 EE

HTSRERET - HEDRARGEE
MMEEERE @ FERBBLENLEE
LA MR EAtEEB U EM H 4 R B
MATREMES  BYEMATHEE

MHmIEHEEERNE - FIRANERL
thR B2 EGEMREUEME U E
BRmEzWaEXRET - WREGER
HEMERTEERRNTHRIELFAE - R
2020 - AREESREMELTEN
HERMT I & E) o

REMENRFEDERBERMS
e R EREABE - AJEER
PrEt &R FEREE MR D - FHit
DREBFE=RMAE -

W REMENRTER  REME
RERgRhERsRERSE RER
BEERE  ETREVMENAFEEHE
HE - UBRFAN SREAHEEREWRA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Type of building

BFER

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
fRERIT R
FERARE

15. REW* (&)

Significant
unobservable
inputs
BERTAEE
WAHE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value
TAEER AHE
EATEZER

Industrial building
2020: S$1,500,000
2019: S$1,500,000

T#EF

2020 % 11,500,000
FThn T

20194 1,500,000
TN oT

Direct comparison method
The key input is:

(i) Unit sale rate

BHRLEDE

TEHARES

(i) BEAIEE

Unit sale rate, taking into

An increase in the unit sale

account the time,
location, and individual
factors, such as size,
age, floor and frontage,
between the comparable
and the property, ranging
from S$3,300 to S$3,400
(2019: S$3,300 to
S$3,400) per square
meter on gross floor area
basis for properties

A ELLEETRYE RN

B EE (ST MR
B MR - e E
[ K e i R 5 {E B A
=) N F&F HK3,300
#7003 7T & 3,400 3 113
7T 2 (20194 : 3,300
#7037 2 3,400 31 A0
TO) IR E R E AT

e
=
Ean
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rate used would result in
an increase in the fair
value measurement of the
investment properties by
the same percentage
increase, and vice versa.

PR B4 EEIB I S B E

WEH RN FEFETIRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. REWE (F)
Significant Relationship of
Valuation techniques unobservable unobservable inputs
Type of building and key inputs inputs to fair value
fRER MR ERTAEE FABERAHE
BFEH FTEMARE WABIE BEATLEZBEAR
Industrial building Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate, taking The higher the capitalisation
2020: S$2,000,000 approach: into account the rate, the lower the fair
2019: S$2,000,000 capitalisation of the net value.
The key inputs are: income potential, nature
of the property, prevailing
(i) capitalisation rate; and market condition, of
6.75% to 7.25%.
(ii) market rent per square (2019: 6.75%t0 7.25%)
metre
Market rent, taking into The higher the market rent,
account direct market the higher the fair value.

comparables as the
properties at an average
of S$99 (2019: $99) per
square metre per month.

TERF W B A% BARE E (T RBEAF EXMEERR  AFERE -
20204 : 2,000,000 HEWEARE - MEWD
I FEHABES WABEMR) BE75% =
20194 : 2,000,000 7.25% (20194 : 6.75%
o (i) BRMEE & £7.25%) °
(i) B KkMEHEE mEHAe (K EMEAN mMHEREeRS  ATFERS -

BEEMGAELRIER)
¥ EEAEFH K9
Nk T (20194 : 99T
i IT) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Type of building

BFER

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
fRERIT R
FERARE

15. REW* (&)

Significant
unobservable
inputs
BERTAEE
WAHE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value
TAEER AHE
EATEZER

Commercial Building
2020: S$15,000,000
2019: S$15,000,000

BRETF

20204 : 15,000,000
AN T

20194 : 15,000,000
AN T

Income capitalisation
approach:

The key inputs are:
(i) capitalisation rate; and

(i) market rent per square
foot

Wan B A% -
TBHABES
(i) EAEEE= R

(i) FFHRm5HEE

Capitalisation rate, taking
into account the
capitalisation of the net
income potential, nature
of the property, prevailing
market condition, of
3.50% to 4.00%

(2019: 3.50% to 4.00%).

Market rent, taking into
account direct market
comparables as the
properties at an average
of S$235 (2019: S$235)
per square metre per
month.

B R (R R AF
BMERNCB - W
g IRAMR) B350%
£4.00% (2019 F
3.50% £4.00%) °

MEHAS (K RWENE
EMHEUELKER)F
HeEEREG¥ K235
hn 3% 7T (20194 : 2353
hnsgor) o
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The higher the capitalisation
rate, the lower the fair
value.

The higher the market rent,
the higher the fair value.

EXNfcxRms A¥E
K -

mSHeEE  ATEDS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Type of building

BFER

Significant
Valuation techniques

and key inputs inputs
fRER MR ERTAEE
FTEMARE WABIE

unobservable

15. REW* (&)

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value
FABERAHE
BEATLEZBEAR

Public Housing food
centres

2020: S$107,800,000

2019: S$85,800,000

AHEFEERBP L

20204 : 107,800,000

0T
20194 : 85,800,000
AT

Direct comparison method
The key input is:

(i) unit sale rate

HRLEDA
TBHABES
(i) BAIEE

Unit sale rate, taking into

account the time,
location, and individual
factors, such as size,
age, floor, flow of people
and frontage, between
the comparable and the
property, ranging from
S$28,000 to S$54,000
(2019: S$26,000 to
S$63,000) per square
meter on gross floor area
basis for properties

A B EETRYE RN

BAIEE (KR RERE -
B A R TS - AR - 2
[E X & & i R 5 @ B A
=) N T ¥ 75 K28,000
7 b0 3% JT = 54,000 7 40
¥ o 2 (20194 :
26,000 #T N4 7T & 63,000
%ﬁbuﬁi)ﬂ?ﬁ%%%é&
i E

An increase in the unit sale

rate used would result in
an increase in the fair
value measurement of the
investment properties by
the same percentage
increase, and vice versa.

PB4 & EIB IS BB E

MR RFEFETIEAE
R E DR INETT - R
Z IR ©

The Group's policy is to recognise transfer between levels of
the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur. There were no transfers between levels
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The investment properties of the Group with a carrying
amount of S$126,300,000 (2019: S$104,300,000) have been
pledged to secure borrowings of the Group (see note 25).
The Group is not allowed to pledge these assets as security
for other borrowings or to sell them to another entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B BHRRW T (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z

l\‘/T\

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. M5 - MERRME

Food
establishment
Freehold Office Furniture and office Motor
land buildings and fittings equipment vehicles Total
) KA WAE & RERBEL ) N
b R BT REE T hat:d @t
S$'000 S$'000 $$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
FHmMET FHmET FHmET FHMET FHmsET FHMET
Cost D%
At 1 January 2020 R2020F1A1H 1,510 4,720 324 3,737 255 10,546
Additions RE - - 60 266 51 377
Disposals HeE - - (50) (38) (119) (207)
Written off bk} - - - (900) - (900)
At 31 December 2020 2020512 A318 1,510 4,720 334 3,065 187 9,816
Accumulated depreciation  EiE
At 1 January, 2020 202051 A1H - 80 322 3,142 255 3,799
Charge for the year FRZH - 95 34 301 5 435
Disposals HE - - (43) (30) (119) (192)
Written off A - - - (900) - (900)
At 31 December 2020 2020612 A318 - 175 313 2,513 14 3,142
Carrying values RHE
At 31 December 2020 #2020 12 A31H 1,510 4,545 21 552 46 6,674
Cost BE
At 1 January 2019 B2019F1 A1 8 1,510 220 322 3,320 255 5,627
Additions NE - 4,500 2 510 - 5,012
Disposals il - - - (93) - (93)
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12 A318 1,510 4,720 324 3,737 255 10,546
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZiHIE
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1A1H - 23 322 2,909 255 3,509
Charge for the year FRZH - 57 - 324 - 381
Disposals HE - - - (91) - 91)
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12A318 - 80 322 3,142 255 3,799
Carrying values RHE
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12A31H 1,510 4,640 2 595 - 6,747
Notes: BiaE
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2020, purchases of property, plant (a) HZE2020F12A31HILFE  BEDE -

and equipment amounted to approximately S$377,000 (2019:
$5,012,000). During 31 December 2019, the purchase consideration
was settled by deposit paid of approximately S$125,000, bank
borrowings of approximately S$2,882,000 and the remaining balance of
S$2,005,000 was paid by the Group in cash.

(b) As at 31 December 2020, property, plant and equipment with net
carrying amount of approximately S$6,055,000 (2019: approximately
S$6,150,000) was secured under mortgage loan as below mentioned in
note 25.
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B N 2% #5494 377,000 F A3 7T (2019 4F -
5,012,000 %7 i3 7T ) - B ZE 2019412 A31
BIEFE  BERENUD 4125000
F N3 T K $R 1T 8 R 4Y 2,882,000 % 1N T
A8 i #£%82,005,000 7 13 L E AN E
luiﬁéﬁzﬁ

2020612 A31H - W% - BEREEER

M /5 18 496,055,000 7 10 3 7T (20194F = 47
6,150,000 %1 A% 7T.) B A 1E T UM 5E 25 Frit
B ERMIEE -
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e M HmARNE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; % 20204 12 A 31 HiFF/Z

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

190

17. EFRHEESE

Food centres/

Food stalls
ERFPLRIE
S$'000
TR T
Cost RS
At 1 January 2020 7R2020%F1 A1H 2,639
Additions = -
Derecognition RIETER (1,103)
At 31 December 2020 72020912 A31 H 1,536
Accumulated depreciation 2itire
At 1 January 2020 7 2020%F1 A1H 1,020
Charge for the year FAZH 1,025
Derecognition RIETER (862)
At 31 December 2020 R 2020912 A31H 1,183
Carrying values BREE
At 31 December 2020 2020912 A31 H 353
Cost AR
At 1 January 2019 M2019%1HA1H 1,855
Additions NE 784
At 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H 2,639
Accumulated depreciation ZHIE
At 1 January 2019 20191 H1H -
Charge for the year FRALH 1,020
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12 A31H 1,020
Carrying values BREE
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12 A31H 1,619
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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S BHRWE (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z

17.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

17. EREEE (&)

2020 2019

2020 F 20194

S$$'000 S$'000

F 303 7T T T

Expense relating to short-term leases B AR E MR 2,824 4,257
Repayment of principal portion of EEHEAEASHD

lease liabilities 1,062 999

Interest paid on lease liabilities HEREENTE 42 57

Total cash flow for leases for the year FRNHEERERE 3,928 5,313

The right-of-use assets are rented from the Singapore
government and private entities. The lease terms of the food
centres or food stalls range from 1 to 3 years. Depreciation is
provided to write off the cost of items of right-of-use assets
over their expected useful lives using straight-line method.
When there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be
obtained by the end of the lease term, the assets are
depreciated over the lease term.

The short-term leases are rented from Singapore government
and private entities with the lease term 12 months or less.

The Group does not have the option to purchase the right-of-
use assets for a nominal amount at the end of the lease
terms.

Lease liabilities of approximately S$356,000 (2019:
S$1,640,000) are recognised with related right-of-use assets
of approximately S$353,000 (2019: S$1,619,000) as at 31
December 2020. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

ERREETIRFIRBERILAERE
HE - XRPLARENHEEHN/1E3
FoERAREENEREERE AL
BN IRITE AMSH BB o fi £
ZRERETHENEMRSSERSHAA
% RAEEEMEEMANE -

2 HAFE & T (R ¥ 03K R AT M AL A B R TE
M- HEMS12EARERE -

AEEEECHENERNRARRSER
BEERREE -

MR2020612A31H M & &8 & 8

356,000 %7 A0 # 7T (20194 : 1,640,000

Frndg oT) B AR A {50 A 4 & EE 49 353,000

b7t (20194F ¢ 1,619,000 7 hN3k 7T)

—HER - BEAABENHEEED

m%&%ﬁ3ﬁ£¥9l\ C HEWE TN E R
c MEEETSAEEENEE -

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2020 4§ 191



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e EREARNTE(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %= 20204 12 431 HiFF/E

18. INVENTORIES 18. F&
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
S$'000 S$'000
F T TR T
Raw materials and consumables ERE MR 172 152
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. ESRHMEWRIE
2020 2019
2020 20194
S$'000 S$'000
T # I T F T
Trade receivables B S EW A 252 529
Other receivables H{th e U 018 572 535
824 1,064
Ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables based on AENBEEHE  AEERREHANE
invoice date as at the end of the reporting period is as SRR IBRE ST -
follows:
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
S$$'000 S$'000
F T F AT
0 to 30 days 0E 30K 129 515
31 to 90 days 31290K 81 10
91 days to 180 days 91E 180K 42 4
252 529
The Group allows an average credit period at 7 days to its AEBETEFPHTEHEERATR
customers. Due to the outbreak of COVID-19, the R COVID-19/8% - NS E¥ LR
government encouraged the landlords to extend the credit EEH -
period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
ECL which uses a lifetime ECL model. Trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the historical observed default rates adjusted by forward
looking estimates. Based on historical experience, majority of
trade receivables were settled within credit term and the
Group received certain deposits from these customers,
hence the expected loss rate of current trade receivables is
assessed to be immaterial, no loss allowance on trade
receivable was recognised during the year (2019: Nil).

A default on receivables is when the counterparty fails to
make contractual payments within 90 days of when they fall
due. Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing
to engage in a repayment plan with the Group and the
amount due is significantly larger than the deposit received
by the Group. The Group categorises a receivable for write
off when a debtor fails to make contractual payments greater
than 180 days and the receivables is larger than the deposit
received by the Group. Where receivables have been written
off, the Group continues to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt to recover the receivable due. When recoveries are
made, these are recognised in profit or loss.

The carrying amount of trade receivables approximate their
fair values.

19.
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B K EMERRE (&)
AEERABERMBHRELEANFIR
BET A ERREERE  EHER
HIFRMEEBREDL - B EWHIA
ERBEAZEERRSELEBATEE
B ABNERASNELENRET
DA RBBERLR  KHENEHEK
REEREERASE  MALXKER
ZERPWHETHE  FAUAHES
ERRENERERRGEF AL TE
R WERAFEERE S RYIEN
B iR (20196 - &) o

FEW I N RIELH F I REEREIEA
%BIORALHAEHFE - HESETER
MEIWE  AEBESHESREE
IMEBAREERNEBE] L ERETE

Mz BN AL E KA
® o BEBEHEAREINEHRENS
MEBBI80K - W HEEKRKIBBLZ WA
EEWENE SR AEEBZERR
B A - M5 O M ERRE . K
SEeEENTT TIEUG B W EZEIH

JENFRIE o AU EARE - 2% IR MR
%E\éﬁgwu ©
B HRBIRNBREEEE N FERS -
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B BHRW T (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; % 20204 12 A 31 HiFF/Z

l\‘/T\

20. PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS PAID 20. ERREREIHE
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
S$$'000 S$'000
F 03 T F T
Prepayments TEfI IR 432 462
Deposits paid [=AREA 987 1,517
1,419 1,979
Add: Deposits paid (non-current portion) i : B & (FERIERE S ) 111 320
1,530 2,299

As at 31 December 2020, deposits paid mainly represented
the amount of rental deposit at approximately S$1,098,000
(2019: approximately S$1,225,000).

21. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

R2020F 12 A31H EfNHEEL T EE
HEH 2 E 4 41,098,000 113 7T
(20194 : %91,225,000 F N T) °

21. HbemEE

2020 2019
2020 20194
S$'000 S$'000
F K T FETINE T
Key management personnel life FEERABASRE
insurance policies 685 676

On 24 July 2017, a subsidiary of the Company has entered
into life insurance policies (the “Policies”) to insure the
directors of the Company, Mr. Chu and Ms. Leow. Under the
Policies, the beneficiary and policy holder is a subsidiary of
the Company and the insured sum is USD1,000,000
(equivalent to S$1,324,250) for each of the directors. The
Group is required to pay an upfront deposit of USD562,000
(equivalent to S$744,229). The Group can terminate the
Policies at any time and receive cash back based on the cash
value of the Policies at the date of withdrawal, which is
determined by the upfront payments plus accumulated
interest earned and minus the accumulated insurance charge
and policy expense charge. They have no maturity date and
are classified as current assets as the Group intends to
realise them within one year of the end of the reporting
period. The Group receives an interest at interest rates
guaranteed by the insurer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B BHRRW T (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %= 20204 12 431 HiFF/&E

T A
21. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Income arising from Policies is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The entire amount of the rights under the Policies is
denominated in United States Dollar.

22.

REEENRARES
W KRR ©

B kEMEE

REHPAIEEMNESRIGUAERTFHE ©

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/PLEDGED 22. BERBRELEEY CEFET
BANK DEPOSITS EEN
2020 2019
2020 20194
S$$000 S$'000
F g T T3 N T
Cash at bank and in hand B& MIRTTE 8 11,218 11,703
Less: pledged bank deposits B EEARITER (1,015) (15)
Cash and cash equivalents BehkIREEEY 10,203 11,688
Cash and cash equivalents denominated in foreign currency ReERBSSEBYIIRINETEDT -

are as follows:

2020 2019

2020 F 20194F

S$$000 S$'000

F Frhn3g 7o TR

Singapore Dollar ot 10,182 5,937
Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD") BT ([#7T]) 21 5,751
10,203 11,688

Bank deposits carry fixed interest rates of 1.0% (2019: 0.8%)
per annum as at 31 December 2020, representing deposits
pledged to banks for securing the bank facilities granted by
the bank to the Group and unutilised banking facilities
amounting to approximately S$15,700,000 (2019:
approximately S$4,500,000) as at 31 December 2020.

M2020612 A31H - BT ERNETE
FERERE1.0% (20194 : 0.8%) * 3R
202012 A31 B ARFBRITAAEE
REIBITEE MEE T RITOEREA
&) F R 77 B & £915,700,000 %7 A0 3 7T
(20194F : #74,500,000 F AN TT)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B mRRMEE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; % 20204 12 A 31 HiFF/Z

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS (Continued)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities:

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

BeRESEEY EBEFRIT
7R (&)

BMETHELENEEYHR:

TRALAEEREETHEENEEE
B ERASNREETH -BHELY
EXNBERREREIARRERE
EAKElﬁéﬁ%m%%“%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%
FSRERENEE -

Lease
Borrowings liabilities Total
LR HEESE &5t
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
F T TR T FHrhnE T
At 1 January, 2019 M2019%F181H 51,392 1,855 53,247
Changes from financing REMERSRENEE :
cash flows:
Repayments B (6,695) (999) (7,694)
Finance cost paid EEE AR (1,321) (57) (1,378)
Non-cash changes: FEESEH
Additions of mortgage e prll 11,454 - 11,454
Addition of lease liabilities HEAEEN - 784 784
Finance costs BEK A 1,321 57 1,378
At 31 December 2019 and M2019F 12831 K
1 January, 2020 2020F1H1H 56,151 1,640 57,791
Changes from financing REMERSRENEE :
cash flows:
Proceeds F1S 5008 5,000 - 5,000
Repayments B (4,622) (1,062) (5,684)
Finance cost paid BATRERK A (1,666) (42) (1,708)
Non-cash changes: FEEEE
Additions of mortgage ZIBE N 17,760 - 17,760
Derecognition of lease liabilities KX |FERAEBE - (222) (222)
Finance costs Bl & Ak 2N 1,666 42 1,708
At 31 December 2020 7202012 831H 74,289 356 74,645
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR (B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %= 20204 12 431 HiFF/&E

23. TRADE PAYABLES 23. EZENRIE
2020 2019
2020 20194
S$’000 S$'000

FHMET  THIKT

Trade payables B SRR 2,395 2,464
Trade payables are non-interest bearing. They are generally BoREMNZREATE - BHENKE
settled within 15 days to 90 days. BER15RKEIORALEEN -
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, trade payables were MR2020% 201912 A31H  B5 k&
denominated in Singapore dollars. RFIATYAFT B TTEHE ©
Ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date as at REARIZEZHHNE SRR
the end of the reporting period is as follows: BRERDITAT -
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
S$$000 S$'000

FTHMET  THIET

0 to 30 days 0&30K 1,542 1,898
31 to 90 days 31E90K 831 566
91 to 180 days 91 £180K 22 -

2,395 2,464
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ARE ISR MR (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 &% 20204 12 A 31 H1FF/Z

24. ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS 24. EXHEH  B#ENZERE K

RECEIVED HE
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
S$$°000 S$'000
F g T TN T
Accrued operating expenses (Note (a)) fEErEER Y (M5t (@) 1,354 982
Other payables HA T 30E 925 997
Deposits received (Note (b)) B Re (K5t (b)) 440 773
2,719 2,752
Add: Deposits received s BEliRE
(non-current portion) (Note (b)) GERBE D) (KIFE (b)) 480 189
3,199 2,941
Notes: B EE
(a)  As at 31 December 2020, accrued operating expenses mainly (@) M2020F 12 A31H B2 ERLT X2
represented the accrued staff costs of approximately S$1,241,000 FE T B TR 7K 491,241,000 %1 A0 3% 7T (2018
(2019: approximately S$790,000). 4 1 49790,000 # h¥T) °
(b)  The balances represented the customers’ deposits received in advance. (o) HEHRREREFPELUEINIRS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z

25. BORROWINGS . B
2020 2019
2020 20194
S$$'000 S$'000
F % hn3g 7o FET N T
Classification under contractual terms: ARG TR DR
Current portion BRERER 5
Secured mortgage loans EEFIRBER 2,341 2,310
Term loans ;EHEEJA 211 1,210
Working capital loans CEBETEX 704 15
3,256 3,635
Non-current portion FENHRE D
Secured mortgage loans EEMIRIBER 63,686 48,709
Term loans THIER 3,051 2,267
Working capital loans LEESER 4,296 1,640
71,033 52,616
74,289 56,151
Effective floating interest rates BEERZHAE
Secured mortgage loans ERFIRBER 1.58%-2.68% 1.58%—2.68%
Term loans TFHIER 1.88%-2.38% 1.88%-2.38%
Working capital loans LEETER 2% 2%
The borrowings are repayable as AR EZEROT
follows:
Within 1 year or on demand —FAFIREK 3,256 3,635
Within a period of more than 1 year BiE—FETBBEMRENIHER
but not exceeding 2 years 3,809 2,509
Within a period of more than 2 years BEMFETNEBEALFNEHER
but not exceeding 5 years 11,214 7,372
Within a period of more than 5 years BiEAFRERE 56,010 42,735
74,289 56,151
Note: As at 31 December 2020, the borrowings of approximately MizE © 2020912 A 31 H » {& 547 74,289,000

AN T (20194F + 956,151,000 ¥7 04 7T )
TYAREBMET()WE - BB RSE =
(i) B2 (H5E15) (i) R W
A5 (V) REERAER - K& ANREFHE
DRI SRR IR o

S$74,289,000 (2019: approximately S$56,151,000) were secured by the
pledge of certain Group'’s (i) property plant and equipment (note 16), (i)
investment properties (note 15), (iii) future rental income, (iv) personal 16) :
guarantee of Mr. Chu; and (v) corporate guarantee of the Company and
its subsidiaries.
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e EREARNTE(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # %= 20204 12 431 HiFF/E

26. LEASE LIABILITIES 26. HEEE
The following table shows the remaining contractual TRETHREPRAEEHEGENH
maturities of the Group's lease liabilities at the end of the TAE#ABEA -

reporting period:

Present Present

value of value of
minimum minimum Minimum Minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
REHEE REHE REHEE RIEHE
NRWEE [AROEE T3 T
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2020 2019

#2020 5 20194 12020 F 720194
128318 128311 128318 12A31H
$$'000 S$'000 $$'000 S$'000
Fago  FEMEIT  FTEMET  FTEMERT

Within 1 year —FR 313 1,072 318 1,100

After 1 year but within 2 years —F L EMFEAR 43 568 45 574

356 1,640 363 1,674

Total minimum lease payments REREMNTEE 363 1,674
Less: total future interest expenses & : AR M F| BRI

B (7 (34)

Present value of lease liabilities HEaERE 356 1,640
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T (8

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z
27. SHARE CAPITAL [N
Number of
shares Share capital
B8 g Gk
HK$'000 S$'000
FAET FHmnET
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each SREE0.01ETEER
At 1 January 2019 20191818 38,000,000 380 67
Issue of ordinary shares (note (a)) L@BE I (H5E (a) 9,962,000,000 99,620 17,601
At 31 December 2019 and 2019612 A31B R
31 December 2020 202012 A31H 10,000,000,000 100,000 17,668
Issued and fully paid: BEIRER
At 1 January 2019 M2019F1A18 100 —* —*
Issue of share under capitalisation RIEE AR BITEITIRG (M3t (@)
issue (Note (a)) 599,999,900 6,000 1,036
Issue of new shares by way of BRRMEE BT (D)
share offer (Note (b)) 200,000,000 2,000 345
At 31 December 2019 and 2019612 B31H K
31 December 2020 202012 A31H 800,000,000 8,000 1,381

* The balance represents an amount less than S$1,000.

Notes:

(a)

Pursuant to a resolution in writing passed by all the shareholders of the
Company on 1 February 2019, the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased from HK$380,000 to HK$100,000,000 by the
creation of a further 9,962,000,000 shares. Pursuant to the capitalisation
issue of the Company passed by all the shareholders of the Company
on 1 February 2019, additional 599,999,900 shares were allotted and
issued.

The Company was successfully listed on the Main of the Stock
Exchange on 6 March 2019 by way of share offer of 20,000,000 public
offer share and 180,000,000 placing shares respectively at the offer
price of HK$0.75 per share, with net proceeds of approximately
HK$110,000,000. The proceeds were proposed to be used to finance
the implementation plan as set forth in the section headed “Future
Plans and use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus.
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HEERIE 2R 1,000 7 I T -

RIBEARRTARENR2019F2 A1 BB
MERER  ARANEERARE—H
3% 5%9,962,000,000 A% % 1 1 £8 380, oooﬁén
#2 2 100,000,000 7T ° BIFEA L Edike
HR2019F2 A1 EE@%K@EEME%
17+ BINDER J 3577 599,999,900 A& A% 17 ©

AARIER201943 A6 HAEMEE(E0.75
75 T % £ 20,000,000 f% 2 B & S B 5 &
180,000,000 % Bic & A% {5 72 Bk 32 AT £ 4R A Th
T - FTSRIEF 58494 110,000,000 7T ©
BREERERNEBRERE [ RKaT
BIRETSFHAE ] — SR ETE MRS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; % 20204 12 A 31 HiFF/Z

28. RESERVES

202

(a)

(b)

Reserves

The amounts of the Group’'s reserves and the
movements therein for the current year and prior year
are presented in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.

Statement of changes in equity of the
Company

R
(a) f&fE
AEERBEANCBRERAFE

)SU: FEMNEE  BENGREER
FHE)RET o

(b) FAATEZBEK

Share  Accumulated

premium losses Total
i B ZitEE st
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000

THMET  TEIRT THNET

At 1 January 2019 M2019F1A1H S (2,265) (2,265)
Issue of new shares pursuant to RIEE A BTN

the capitalisation issue (1,036) - (1,036)
Issue of new shares pursuant to BERDESEITHRG

the share offer 25,637 - 25,637
Transaction cost attributable to BT R ZHA

issue of new shares (2,893) - (2,893)
Loss and total comprehensive loss ~ FREE &2 HEBEEE

for the year - (2,182) (2,182)
At 31 December 2019 and M2019F12A31H K

1 January 2020 20201 A18 21,708 (4,447) 17,261
Loss and total comprehensive loss  FREE L2 HEBEE

for the year - (1,229) (1,229)
At 31 December 2020 72020412 A31H 21,708 (5,676) 16,032

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had
distributable reserves of approximately S$16,032,000
(2019: S$17,261,000) calculated in accordance with the
Company Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z

29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 29. &2 BB &R RE

COMPANY
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
S$$'000 S$'000
F 503 7T FE T
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries BB AR ZIE ~* =
% _*
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG E O] 23,367 18,769
Deposits paid 2 HE 222 =
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMASEEY 40 93
23,629 18,862
Current liabilities RBAE
Accruals, other payables and JEETER - HMENRIER
deposits received B 72 220
Amounts due to subsidiaries FET B A Rl 5 6,144 -
6,216 220
Net current assets and net assets REEETHERTEE 17,413 18,642
Capital and reserves BEXRFE
Share capital & A 1,381 1,381
Reserves s 16,032 17,261
Total equity RS 17,413 18,642
* The balance represents an amount less than $$1,000. * ERRIE S EE 1,000 F N IT ©
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30.

31.

204

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS . REHERIE

As lessor EHEBEA

Future minimum lease rental receivables under non- REBENRRE HERBE A BEKESTE
cancellable operating leases of the Group as at the reporting ENARKREEAERIZIBLOT -

dates are as follows:

2020 2019
2020 & 20194
S$'000 S$'000

FHMET  THIET

Within one year —FR 3,516 3,584
In the second year RE—F 891 520
In the third year RE=F 391 891
In the fourth year AP E 63 39
In the fifth year RERF - 63
4,861 5,097
Operating leases, in which the Group is the lessor, relate to AREBALHANKEHEHANEBBE
investment properties owned by the Group with lease terms BERNREMERR HAEHBEA1ES
of between 1 to 5 years. All operating lease contracts contain FoABATHEBZRED  AIAA
market review clauses in the event that the lessee exercises KERESNBEMISEE KN - &
its option to renew. The lessee does not have an option to HAEELAHEREREESME -
purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period.
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 31. EXREE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end RIEIR » NEBEHUATEREE
of the reporting period:
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
S$°000 S$'000

THMET  THEIKT

Contracted, but not provided for BRTHERFIZREEER
the purchase of investment property KEME 4,750 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. BEBARS
In addition to the information disclosed elsewhere in the G a M BRREMITDTHENER
consolidated financial statements, the Group has the G - N5 (B EA R B 5 R AE A 5 9 T AU K
following transactions with related parties: FETUTR S ¢
(a) Compensation of key management personnel (a) TEEEEBAEZFHE
Compensation of key management personnel of the AEBTEEEEBABZME(R
Group, including directors’ remuneration as detailed in FELAME10FEcESHM)
note 10 above is as follows: T:
2020 2019
2020 20194
S$$'000 S$'000

FHIET  THEIET

Directors' fees E=0e 103 128
Salaries and bonuses %‘&frﬁé&?{&il 1,079 1,122
Contributions to defined contribution R FUR IRET B3R
retirement plan 54 66
1,236 1,316
The remuneration of directors and key management EERFETEBREABZHMEBT
personnel is determined by the remuneration E B gz ER A L2 RRETE °
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals.
(b) During the year, Mr. Chu has entered into personal (b) RER - KEEFTLEAERDE
guarantee agreements to secure mortgage loans and NESIRIBER R EEESEN -

working capital loans.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; % 20204 12 A 31 HiFF/Z

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

34.

206

33. REFEITWEMTA

2020 2019
2020 5 20194
S$'000 S$'000
T # g T FE T
Financial assets SEMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost: LB RS BR A % BB E
— Trade and other receivables — B S R EAMEWFRIE 824 1,064
— Deposits received —BEfHE 1,098 1,837
— Pledged bank deposits — BERRITER 1,015 15
— Cash and cash equivalents —RERACEEY 10,203 11,688
Financial assets at FVTPL: BATFEGFABRLHEE
— Other financial assets —HemEE 685 676
13,825 15,280
Financial liabilities cHas
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REEK AT ENEREE
— Trade payables — B S ERNRIA 2,395 2,464
— Accruals, other payables and —EFTEA - HMEIRIER
deposits received BUIRE 3,199 2,941
— Borrowings — & 74,289 56,151
— Lease liabilities —HE&E 356 1,640
80,239 63,196
FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 4. 2V ERLAFERER

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets,
including trade and other receivables, deposits paid, pledged
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents and the Group’s
financial liabilities, including trade payables, accruals, other
payables and deposits received, borrowings and lease
liabilities, approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities. The nominal values less any estimated credit
adjustments for financial assets and liabilities with a maturity
of less than one year are assumed to approximate their fair
values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure
purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual
cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available
to the Group and the Company for similar financial
instruments.
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34.

35.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 4. PFERAFERBH(E)
(Continued)

The fair value of the financial assets at FVTPL is set out BAFEFABENEREENATE
below: BT ¢

Level 2 fair value
measurement
ERAFEFE
2020 2019
2020 20194
S$'000 S$'000
F g T TN T

Key management personnel life FEEBABASRE

insurance policies 685 676
Fair value of the other financial assets is based on the HMemEEMNRAFTEDENRBR AR
account value of the policy as provided by the insurance RUENRERFEBEAE - REAFE -
company. During the year, there was no transfer into or out A A\ S8 B RS B AR o

of level 2 or any other level.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfer between levels of AEENBENBEHRAFEERE
the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in EREENRERERER -

which they occur.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. MiIBEREEBRERBE
AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to financial risks arising from its AEBREEBEEREAERITAM
operations and the use of financial instruments. The key EEMGRAR - TEMBRREEREE
financial risks include credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. Rk - MmiZER KRB E S RE

The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s VAT & &0 12 41 R A 5% 18 P 8 ot B
exposure to the above-mentioned financial risks and the BREROFBELREEZSERRNBEF -
objectives, policies and processes for the management of BUR R o

these risks.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

208

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Group. The major classes of financial assets
of the Group are cash and cash equivalents, pledged
bank deposits, other financial assets and trade and
other receivables. For trade receivables, the Group
adopts the policy of dealing only with customers of
appropriate credit history. For other financial assets, the
Group adopts the policy of dealing only with high credit
quality counterparties.

As the Group does not hold any collateral, the maximum
exposure to credit risk for each class of financial
instruments is the carrying amount of that class of
financial instruments presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group assesses concentration of credit risk by
monitoring the individual profile of its trade receivables
on an ongoing basis.

At 31 December 2020, approximately 49.56% (2019:
approximately 11.49%) of the Group's trade receivables
were due from the top five customers.

(i) Trade receivables

The Group applies simplified approach to providing
for expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected
loss provision for all trade receivables. Based on
historical experience, majority of trade receivables
were settled within credit term and the Group
received sufficient deposit from these customers,
hence the expected loss rate of current trade
receivables is assessed to be approximately zero,
no loss allowance on trade receivable was
recognised.
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>\E4 o

M2020%12 A31H - REBFER
ARBEFHNESZEBZKEYD
49.56% (20194 : #711.49%) °

(i) BEZEWNKE

REBE KA T ERBER
MismEERFEIRABRE
AHREMEEEE  ZER
RAFFBLAA B 5 R UERIRRE
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(i)

(ii)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

A default on receivables occur when the
counterparty fails to make contractual payments
within 90 days of when they fall due. Financial
assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to
engage in a repayment plan with the Group and
the amount due is significantly larger than the
deposit received by the Group. The Group
categorises a receivable for write off when a
debtor fails to make contractual payments greater
than 180 days and the receivables is larger than
the deposit received by the Group. Where
receivables have been written off, the Group
continues to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt to recover the receivable due. When
recoveries are made, these are recognised in
profit or loss.

Other financial assets at amortised costs

In respect of pledged bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents, the credit risk is considered to
be low as the counterparties are reputable banks
and insurance company incorporated in Singapore
with good credit ratings. The existing
counterparties do not have defaults in the past.
Therefore, ECL rate of other financial assets,
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents is assessed to be close to zero and no
provision was made as at 31 December 2020 and
2019.

Other receivables was mainly related to raw
material suppliers’ incentive receivable from multi-
national companies or listed companies. As a
result, the directors assessed the expected loss
rate of other receivables was immaterial. Thus, no
loss allowance for other receivables was
recognised as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

35. MEEBEEREBFERBE(E)

(a) FERBR(E)

(i) EZEWREGER)

FEW R IRE D TINH F Ree
REHBRRIORAZNEL
RIEREHLE - FESIEAN
MEKE NEEEMES
BMEE  PIMEHARER
ANEBETERE S -
& 7R T I AN S [ O ER A R
& BEEEBAREIMNE
HWARIAEMIBRNEBBRI80K
¥ HEBBFAZRAEE
WERH R 2 0 - AEBE#HZ
FEWRIR S R iMEH - A
HEWKR - AR E g%
BT TR BN @ E
WOmRTE o IR - BAR
TR IR R o

2 85 BN A B R O L Ath 2
BE

(ii)

EEARTERREAEE R
ReEBYmMs ARYF
7 RBRARIT R IR
A2 8 R AF1E & FF AR R
DA WERIEEERRER
K- -REAFHTBELEE
Wik - Wit Hib @A
= BEARTERAERE
EReEEMNEREEE
BEREFIEILIFR/ET IR
20204 % 2019412 A31 H
W ARFHEEE -

HEf kB ZARM B
HEmEWHEBER AR K E
MARKMEEBFR - Bt
FEETHEMERFKIBENTE
HEBBEYTEKN - AL
720205 % 2019412 A 31
B o R FE UK SR IE
KB 1B B -
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

210

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Other financial assets at amortised costs
(Continued)

For deposits paid, management makes periodic
collective assessments as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of deposits
based on historical settlement records and past
experience. The management committee
members of the Company believe that there is no
material credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding balance of deposits.

(b) Market risk

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate borrowings and
balance due to changes of interest rate.

The directors of the Company consider the
Group's exposures in relation to the bank balance
are not significant as interest bearing bank balance
have short maturity period and thus they are not
included in sensitivity analysis.

The Group currently does not have any interest
rate hedging policy. However, management
closely monitors its exposure to future cash flow
interest rate risk as a result of changes in market
interest rates and will consider hedging changes
in market interest rates should the need arise.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management note 35(c).
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(i)

(ii)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 December 2020, if the interest rate on all
variable-rate borrowings had been 100 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, the Group's profit for the year would
have been decreased/increased by approximately
SGD575,000 (2019: SGD549,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of each of the
reporting period and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for the borrowings in
existence at that date. The 100-basis point
increase or decrease represents management'’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the end of the
next reporting period. the analysis is performed on
the same basis during the reporting period.

Currency risk
The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary

assets (including bank balances) denominated in
currencies other than functional currency of the

BHEREERERICK (8)

(b) iR (F)

(i) F=EGE
HBETHT

72020512 A31 8+ ¥ F7
B2EEENMELERA T
FE100ME L 2h - AT A E Ath
FERFETE  AAKEEX
FREEFB DRI,
47575,000%7 A0 % 7T (2019
4 : 549,000 F N IT) °

J:%;@Z‘E o A R R AR A

FEPHENEREHRELE
EEJEﬁHECEZEIﬁEE’M%E
MERREERAERTHEE - £
FFRTREI00EREREKRTE
EEHEE TEAHRSHER
AR AT RE R R EF AT
e RIBEHA - ZDTR
MHREAEHETT -

(i) E¥ER

RERESHRUNSEEER
DREEBAINEEFHENR
SEEREE(RRERTHE

respective group entity at the end of each £2)EEEETT ¢
reporting period are as follows:
2020 2019
2020 20194
S$$°000 S$'000
F 7 hn3E T TR T
HKD BT 61 5,751

The Group currently does not have a foreign
exchange hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange exposure should the
need arise.

7R ER B B Al I £ 51 E B IR
ReRm - AEREEEERS
FHMERR YRR AFTE
B B EARSNE R o
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

212

(b) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's
sensitivities to a 10% increase and decrease in
the functional currency of the group against
relevant foreign currency. 10% is the sensitivity
rate which represents management'’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
currency rate. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding HKD denominated monetary
items and adjusted their translation at the end of
the reporting period for a 10 % change. A positive
number indicates an increase in profit for the year

B RRE

EREREGK (&)

(b) THIEER ()

(ii)

B EkE ()
HBETHT

TERFANANEEDEREE R
HEINEAEREZE10%H
GURTE © 10% BV BURE b K
ﬁi‘%%:iiﬁﬁl\ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ@é\
AR BRI - URE
7fﬁ1§@%r‘ﬁi EEMET
AHEERIER  YRBREH
REL10% EEBFHEAME
IE SRR AN 20w Mg o0
B ITTAF NPT IE10% °
fid 78 T 5 # R T 2 B

if HKD strengthens 10% against S$. For a 10% 10% - A& ¥ ARNF EsHE
weakening of HKD against S$, there would be an SHEAERARNTZE -
equal but opposite impact on the profit for the
year.
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
S$$°000 S$'000
F Erhn3E 7T TN T
HKD BT —* —/+50
* The balance represents an amount less than S$1,000 * HEERIE S FE A 21,000 #7003

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent foreign currency risk as the exposure at
the end of each reporting period do not reflect the
exposure during the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter
difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Group's approach to
managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, it
will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when due, such as maintaining sufficient cash and cash
equivalents as disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The table below summaries the maturity profile of the
Group's financial liabilities based on contractual

undiscounted repayment obligations.

As at 31 December 2020

/E\ZI-i‘iHBﬁEIEE &E&Eﬁ(nﬁ)
(c) RBEZER

RBEEEREARENEREIA
*Hﬁ%i%—éﬁﬁEMFf*
MzemaEmskEEREER
HEoRk - AKEERRPESR
BT A RBREERE—EES
ARABDECAENEBBAE
iR emRe KRS EEY
(RAREMBIMKRMT22PAKE) ©

TRBARESORTREREE
AEBEBAENEIHRER -

742020512 A 31H

Weighted On More than More than Total
average demand 1 year but 2 year but undiscounted
effective or within less than less than Over cash Carrying
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years flows amount
KR
&S REX BB1E BB2E BeNE
BRA= F1FR BIR2E BIRGE BB5E 2 kAR
% $$'000 $$'000 §$000 $$'000 $$'000 $$'000
%  FHMER  FHmER  THEDET 0 FHEET O THEMERR TR
Financial liabilities: ~ £MEfE !
Trade payables VAN - 2,395 - - - 2,3% 2,39
Accruals, other payables }?E?rf%fﬁ -t
and deposits received R FUERBYES - 3,199 - - - 3,199 3,199
Borrowings 1’5?& 247 5,270 5,845 16,746 74,144 102,005 74,289
Lease liabilities HEEE 2.92 318 45 - - 363 356
11,182 5,890 16,746 74,144 107,962 80,239
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35.

36.

214

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES . R EEEEREE (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(¢) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REEZREBS(E)
As at 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H
Weighted On More than More than Total
average demand 1 year but 2 year but undiscounted
effective or within less than less than Over cash Carrying
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years flows amount
AR
MET REX ERE B2 Bene
BRI HIER BIR2E EIRGF HiR5F ik REE
% S$'000 S$'000 §$'000 S$$'000 S$$'000 S$'000
%  TEIgT  FEET FENET TR TR TR
Financial liabilities: LRERE:
Trade payables BHERIE - 2,464 - - - 2,464 2,464
Accruals, other payables  [EST B - Eft
and deposits received  EFTRARBIAE - 2,941 - - - 2,941 2,941
Borrowings 1%%”\ 247 4,841 4,035 11,880 55,752 76,508 56,151
Lease liabilities HERRE 292 1,100 574 - - 1674 1,640
11,346 4,609 11,880 55,762 83,587 63,196
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 36. EXREE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
throughout the year. The capital structure of the Group
consists of debt, which includes borrowings, as disclosed in
note 25, net of bank balances and cash and equity attributable
to owners of the Group, comprising share capital and retained
earnings. The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure from time to time. As a part of this review, the
management considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the management, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
the issue of new shares and new debts.
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37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 37. B A RS
At 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, particulars of 7202012 A31H &2019F 12 A31H -
the subsidiaries are as follows: B ARFFBENT

Proportion of

ownership
interest held
Place and date of Share capital/ RENER ARRLA
Company incorporation Paid up capital 2020 2019  Principal activities
MEARERE R AL S R B A BHER 2020 F 2019 FEEK
Directly held:
EERE:
Entire Courage Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
("BVI"),
15 November 2017
Entire Courage Limited REREZHS TR ETT 100% 100%  REER
((RBEZEEB])
2017411 150
Entire Native Limited BVI, Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
30 January 2018
Eastern Native Limited RERZHS TR ETT 100% 100% REEK
201841 A30H
Indirectly held:
BiEEE
Fu Chan F&B Group Pte. Ltd. Singapore, Ordinary S$500,000 100% 100%  The ownership and
10 December 2009 operation of food
centres, and
management of food
and beverage stalls
Fu Chan F&B Group Pte. Ltd. ¥ T imAk 100% 100% #HBEREEERPL
2009612 4108 500,000 #7014 7T PARE BB SRIERL
Fu Chan (100FC) Pte. Ltd. Singapore, Ordinary S$1 100%* 100%  General management
8 August 2010
Fu Chan (100FC) Pte. Ltd. N LA 1 ETIE T 100%* 100% —RERE
201048 A8H
U Property Holdings Pte. Ltd. Singapore, Ordinary S$1,000,000 100% 100%  The ownership and
12 December 2008 operation of food
centres
U Property Holdings Pte. Ltd. O - LR 100% 100% BB REEERBL
2008412 H812H 1,000,000 #7034 7T
CK Chu Holdings Pte. Ltd. Singapore, Ordinary S$270,000 100% 100%  The ownership and
5 May 2005 operation of food
centres, and
operation of food and
beverage stalls
CK Chu Holdings Pte. Ltd. N Lk 100% 100% #HBERKEEERPL
200545 H5H 270,000 3T 03 7T VAR 45 8 B R L

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2020 4§ 215



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
/ﬁﬂﬂi&%ﬁfjﬂfaw\)
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37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
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37. WELF

Proportion of

15 (&)

ownership
interest held
Place and date of Share capital/ BANREA AR L)
Company incorporation Paid up capital 2020 2019  Principal activities
HELR AR AR A BRA/BEER 20205 2019F FEEH
Indirectly held: (Continued)
HERSE (@)
FC 883 Pte. Ltd. Singapore, Ordinary S$10,000 100% 100%  The ownership and
18 March 2015 operation of food
centres, and
management of food
and beverage stalls
FC 883 Pte. Ltd. #rin - LB 100% 100% %ﬁ&”“%?%ﬁq:‘/u ,
201563 A 18 H 10,000 ¥ A3 7T AT 8 2 A BRI
Fu Chan F&B Pte. Ltd Singapore, Ordinary S$300,000 100% 100%  The ownership and
29 January 2004 operation of food
centres
Fu Chan F&B Pte. Ltd. s - B 100% 100% HEERELERBL
200441 A29H 300,000 A% 7T
Fu Chan (23) F&B Pte. Ltd. Singapore, Ordinary S$160,000 100%* 100%  The operation of food
16 May 2005 and beverage stalls
Fu Chan (23) F&B Pte. Ltd. BN - Timik 100%* 100%  EEEEA
200545816 H 160,000 7 i3 7T
Master Coffee Cafe Pte. Ltd. Singapore, Ordinary S$100,000 100%* 100%  The operation of food
26 May 2009 and beverage stalls
Master Coffee Cafe Pte. Ltd. i Tk 100%* 100%  EEEREA
200945 A 26 H 100,000 7 i3 7T
The Cosmopolitan F&B Pte. Ltd. Singapore, Ordinary S$300,000 100%* 100%  The operation of food
1 November 2013 and beverage stalls
The Cosmopolitan F&B Pte. Ltd. ¥l Tk 100%* 100% B EEA
2013F 11 A1H 300,000 #Th03% 7T
Lady Boss Kitchen Pte. Ltd. Singapore, Ordinary S$50,000 100%* 100%  The operation of food
16 May 2013 and beverage stalls
Lady Boss Kitchen Pte.Ltd. N - AR 100%* 100% REERIEN
201345816 H 50,000 7 I 7T
FS 100 Pte. Ltd. Singapore, Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls
FS 100 Pte. Ltd. Fring - TR R T 100% 100% #EEERIEM
201543 A18H
FS 200 Pte. Ltd. Singapore, Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls
FS 200 Pte. Ltd. BTN - TR IR T 100% 100% e B ERIEM
201543 A18H
FS 300 Pte. Ltd. Singapore, Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls
FS 300 Pte. Ltd. Eons - LR F IR TT 100% 100%  AEEERIEN

2015F3 A 18H
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #;% 20204 12 431 HiFF/Z

37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Proportion of

37. MB A RS (#&)

ownership
interest held
Place and date of Share capital/ BRNER AERLA

Company incorporation Paid up capital 2020 2019  Principal activities

HELR AR AR A RA, BBER 2020 & 2019F FEEH

Indirectly held: (Continued)

HERSE (@)

FS 400 Pte. Ltd. Singapore, Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

FS 400 Pte. Ltd. N - LBAR N F AT 100% 100% #EEERIEN
201543 418 H

FS 500 Pte. Ltd. Singapore, Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

FS 500 Pte. Ltd. o HimAR 1 FT AT 100% 100% EEEERIEAL
201543 418 H

FS 600 Pte. Ltd. Singapore, Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

FS 600 Pte. Ltd. N - LimAR 1 FT AT 100% 100%  EEEERIEAL
20153 A 18H

FS 700 Pte. Ltd Singapore, Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

FS 700 Pte. Ltd. N - iRk 1 FT AT 100% 100%  EEERIEL
201643 A18H

FS 800 Pte. Ltd Singapore, Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

FS 800 Pte. Ltd. N - AR 1 BT 100% 100% & EEERIEAL
201643 A18H

FS 900 Pte. Ltd Singapore, Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

FS 900 Pte. Ltd. N - LB FTE T 100% 100% A& EERIEAL
201543 4184

FS 881 Pte. Ltd Singapore, Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

FS 881 Pte. Ltd. AN B R 100% 100%  #EEBERIENL
201543 188

FS 882 Pte. Ltd Singapore, Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

FS 882 Pte. Ltd. N - B R T 100% 100% S EEERIENL
201543 A18H

FS 884 Pte. Ltd Singapore, Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

FS 884 Pte. Ltd. I - LR FIRT 100% 100% #EEEHRIEM
201543 A18H

FS 885 Pte. Ltd Singapore, Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food
18 March 2015 and beverage stalls

FS 885 Pte. Ltd. E) 1b TEMR T 100% 100%  #SEBERIENL

201543 4188
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37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. B A RS (H&)

Proportion of

ownership
interest held
Place and date of Share capital/ BRNER AERLA

Company incorporation Paid up capital 2020 2019  Principal activities
HELR AR AR A BRA/BEER 20205 2019F FEEH
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BERE (@)
FS 886 Pte. Ltd Singapore, Ordinary S$1 100% 100%  The operation of food

18 March 2015 and beverage stalls
FS 886 Pte. Ltd. o LR 1 ETIE T 100% 100% EEBERIEAL

201593 A 18H
LB 101 Pte. Ltd. Singapore, Ordinary S$1 100%* 100%  The operation of food

18 March 2015 and beverage stalls
LB 101 Pte. Ltd. H - LR FTIRT 100%* 100% #EEERIEL

201543 A18H
Lady Boss Food Channel Pte. Ltd.  Singapore, Ordinary S$1 100%* 100%  The operation of food

18 March 2015 and beverage stalls
Lady Boss Food Channel Pte. Ltd. ¥ - T mAR 1 FT AT 100%* 100%  EEEEA

201643 A18H
Winston's Recipe Pte. Ltd. Singapore, Ordinary S$1 100%* 100%  The operation of food

16 December 2013 and beverage stalls
Winston's Recipe Pte. Ltd. RN - TR FIE T 100%* 100% @B RIBM

2013912 A 16H
Chu Dynasty Pte. Ltd. Singapore, Ordinary S$1 100%* 100%  The operation of food

15 February 2016 and beverage stalls
Chu Dynasty Pte. Ltd. g TRk F T 100%* 100%  #EEEREN

2016F2 A 15H
* As at 31 December and up to the date of the consolidated financial * R1I2A3NHBREZSZAMBRERBEE - M

statements, the subsidiaries were in the process of striking off during BRAREHZE2020F12 831 HILFEEES
the year ended 31 December 2020. B A -

All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in Singapore. LR EMB AR EREFIMBLE - ©
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding 2020412 A31 B X% 201912 A31 B
as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 or at any FRTAER - HENBRRBTARE
time during the years. BIEHE
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38. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 30 September 2020, the Group entered into an agreement
to acquire an investment property located at Block 171
Yishun Avenue 7 #01-781, Singapore 760171 for a
consideration of S$5 million. Details of the proposed
acquisition are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 30 September 2020 and 15 December 2020. The
acquisition had been completed on 10 March 2021.

Since January 2020, Coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19")
pandemic across Singapore and other countries has affected
the usual business environment. Due to the relaxation of
Restriction Order by the government in Singapore, the
Group's financial results may be affected, the extent of which
could not be estimated as at the date of this annual report.

38.

K2 F&B HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2020 & =&

HEHRER

7 2020F 9 B30 H » AREBET %
g B i M Block 171 Yishun Avenue 7
#01-781 * Singapore 760171 &) & & %)
¥ REAECEEBHMNET B E
FEHHAQA HEA2020549 A30H
K 202012 B16HRWAE - B EIE
BER2021 43 810 B °

H2020F 1 B8 - #ins R E MBI RIE
% 1920194 7 Ak & fw (COVID-19])
B BERE—REBRE - ARFX
BHREREEHNS Bl EREH
M EEE  NERBEREGBTESY
EIZE o
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Five Years Financial Summary
hEMBHRE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #; % 20204 12 A 31 HiFF/Z

For the five years ended 31 December 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019 and  # £ 20164 20174 - 20184 ~ 20194F &
2020: 202012 A31 AL AEFE :

RESULTS E 3

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
2020 20194 20184 2017 F 2016 4
S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000
FHMET  FEMET  FEMET O FEMET FEHNET
Revenue U zs 34,901 42,004 44,995 43,975 36,596
Profit before taxation MRS F 2,467 5,461 4,370 6,101 6,381
Income tax expense FTEHiRY (277) (303) (371) (590) (166)
Profit for the year FRER 2,190 5,158 3,999 5,511 6,215
Total profit and comprehensive ~ ER%HFI L2 H
income for the year W estE%E 2,190 5,158 3,999 5,611 6,215
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALLEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
2020 & 20194 20184 20174 20164
$$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000 S$'000

FHmEr  FEMET  FEMET O FEMET FENET

Total assets BELRE 147,756 128,560 95,519 96,743 89,238

Total liabilities aEeRE 80,424 63,418 58,624 60,409 55,801

Total equity B 67,332 65,142 36,895 36,334 33,437
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